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WEIR GROUP MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED Company No. 5C408562

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their first annual report together with the financial statements of the
company for the period from 3 October 2011 to 28 December 2012.

The company was incorporated on 3 October 2011.

ACTIVITIES
The company did not trade during the period, nor is it expected to do so within the foreseeable
future.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the company during the period were:

Alan Mitchelson {appointed on 3 October 2011 and resigned on 2 August 2012)

Jon Stanton (appointed 3 October 2011)
Keith Ruddock (appointed on 2 August 2012)

By the order of the Board

@uﬁ»)\

C J Stead
Secretary
26 June 2013




WEIR GROUP MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED Company No. SC408562

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit
or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently, make
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, state whether applicable UK
accounting standards have been followed and prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that the financial statements comply with the above requirements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the finangcial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.




WEIR GROUP MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED Company No. SC408562

BALANCE SHEET
as at 28 December 2012

Notes 2012
£
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors — amount due from holding company 2
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 4 2

Audit Exemption Statement

For the period from 3 October 2011 to 28 December 2012, the company was entitled to
exemption from audit under section 480(2) of the Companies Act 2006 relating to dormant
companies.

Directors’ responsibilities:

« The members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the
year in question in accordance with section 476, and

« The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of
accounts.

Keith Ruddock
Director
26 June 2013




WEIR GROUP MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED Company No. SC408562

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

2. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

No profit and loss account is prepared.

3 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
The company has no employees.
None of the directors received emoluments or other payments from the company during
the period.

4, SHARE CAPITAL

Aliotted, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 2

5. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The directors report that The Weir Group PLC (registered in Scotland) is the company's
ultimate parent company. This is the only parent undertaking for which group financial
statements are drawn up and the anly group of which the company is part. The address
from which copies of these group financial statements are available to the public is: The
Weir Group PLC, Clydesdale Bank Exchange, 20 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2
6DB.
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THE WEIR GROUP
IS A GLOBAL
ENGINEERING
GROUP

We are focused on delivering engineering solutions to
customers in the minerals, oil and gas and power markets.
Operating in more than 70 countries and employing more than
14,000 people, we support our customers through a worldwide
network of around 200 manufacturing and service facilities.

> Read more about the Company on page 2.

The equipment and support we provide, together with a
commitment to excellence across the value chain, helps our
customers to deliver resources upon which society depends.
> Read more about our performance from page 12.
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Direciors' Report: Cvervisw of Walr

2012 Highlights

Financial

Revenue Profit bofore tax®
£2,538m £443m
+11% +12%

Operating profit! Order input'
£486m £2,397m
+18% -2%

Dividend por share Eamings per share*
38.0p 150.4p
+15% +12%

Net debt

£689m

Financial and Strategic

Record pre-tax profits up 12% to £443m;

Record Group operating margin, supported

by strong performance by Minerals;
Strengthening aftermarket input: 57% of total
orders (2011: 52%);

Resilient Qil & Gas performance, supported

by positive contributions from acquisitions;
Strategic progress: higher R & D investment;
expanded product portfolio and service presence;

Full year dividend increased by 15% to 38.0p with
further double digit increase planned in 2013.

1. 2011 restatac 81 2012 fvbtage axChangs rmies.
2. Comimsng operalions ach to exciud vl tarrss and intangiblkes prmortsation.

Tha Welr Group PLEC Annusl Report and Finencia) Statementa 2012




Diractors” Report: Overview of Welr
Weir at a Glance

Our divisions provide mission critical engineering
equipment, services and support to customers in
the global energy and natural resources markets.

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION

Our alm of extending our positions in the high growth, long cycle minerals, ol and gas
and power markets is delivered through our stretegic pillars of value chain excellence,
innovation, collaboration and giobat capabiity.

> Rlaad more sbout strategy on page &
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MINERALS

Minerals

Designing, manutactuning and supporting
prochucts used in mining and minerals
processing. Wealr Minerals is the giobal
leader in sturry handling equipment.

o0 & GA

Oll & Gas

Designing, manutacturing and supporting
procucts used in upstréam prassure-
PUMping, pressure control end downstream
refining operations. Weir Ol & Gas is the
markat leader in pressure-pumping equipment
In Norih America.

mn

B

POWER & INDUSTRIAL

Power & Industrial

Deasigning, manutacturing and supporting
valves, pumps and turbines for the
conventiongl and ranewable power

end industrial and ofl and gas markets,

Revenue Revenue Revonus

+12% +13% +7%

Operating profit Operating profit Operating profit

+21% +14% 20%

Warmen, Vuico, Cevex end Linstex SPM, Seebonrd, Novatech, Mesa, Gatbloneta Roto-Je1, Blakerorough, Atwood 8 Morri, Batioy Vaive,

Sain markets: nag 'wor O & Gas Bervices BOK, Fopkinaons., Triconirc, Sarask-RESD, Sebim,

Mining and minarels. processing: of sands; apgregal Main mark Alon Stoam Turbines, Amesdcan Hydro and WEMCO

ua gas desuphurisation and knneling and dredging O and gas Oriling and cornpistion; o raining Main markets:

Major operations locations: operstional beations: Nmmmﬂ?ﬂ mm.‘,
-m?"mmugmmmm.&w- enid 8nd ofl and gas; waste

US, Canacta, Chite, Brasll, Peru, UK, Notheriancs,
South Alrica, indis, Ching and Austraka

Major customera:

umr and Junior Mﬂnc Housos; EFCa {Engnenring,
ion Cormpanias); Natonsd

nnd tntermational 0! Gumpd*n

Empliyyses:
7,900

Addressable market
£5.7on

and Austrata

Mpjor cUStOmars:
Qilfeic Service Companiss; National and intemationel
0ll Companies; EPCa

3,100

Addresrable muriet:
€4.50n

0 energy; biomass; paper end pulp and foodstults

Major operationsl jocations:
US, Conada, UK, France, Spain, South Koroa,
Singapore, South Atrica. india end Chine

hiajor customenrs:

Utsity Comp G y Inchuszrial Ci
EPCa

E

3,170

ACHeaREte Merket:

£7on

» Read more gbout Wair Minersis’ psriormance
from pege 24,

» Rasd more about Welr O & Gas' parformance
from page 26.

» Aaad mare sbout Waeir Power & Incustriaf'y
partormence from page 32.

The Weir Group PLE Annual Repart and Fnonaal Siatements 2012 3




Directory' Raport; Overview ¢f Welr

Chairman's Statement
Lord Smith of Kelvin

The Weir Group continued to perform well during 2012,
bome out by revenues which grew 11% to £2.5bn and
record pre-tax profits from continuing operations, before
exceptional items and intangibles amortisation, of £443m,
a 12% increase on 2011.

We are proposing a final dividend payment to sharehoklers
of 30.0p par share, making 38.0p tor the full year, an
increasg of 15%, Iin 2013, wa plan to continue the double
digit dividend growth rate which we hove delivered every
yeear gince 2005. This will be the 30th consecutive year
of dividend growth for the Group.,

The 2072 performance was delivered against a background
of testing conditions in the North Amarican ol and gas
prassure-pumping sactar, one of cur main served markats,
and a significant contributor to the Group's growth in
racan! years.

Focused, but diversified

To my mind, this tells us a number of important things
aboui the Group. Firsi, there are strong benefits In

the diversity of our chosen markats, ensuring in 2012
that ditfich upstieam oil and gas pressure-pumping
conditions could be oftsat by the performances of our
Minerals and Power & Industria) divisions, This diversity
extends nat only to cur markets and divisions, but also
10 our operating geographias and our ability to drive
revanues from both original equipment manutacturing
and aftermarkat support. This provides stable and mora
predictable eamings even in timaes of mariet volatilty.

Secondly, it highlights the ongoing relgvance of the
Group's strategic pillars of innovation, cdllaboration,
global capabdity and value chain excellance. This means
that, despite operating In diverse soctors, all divisions
benefil from an increasing number of cross-divisiona!
tachnological and operational initlatives, providing
consistency across the Group and ensuring a return
greater than the sum of 1the parts as we reap the
benefits of common supply chains and a Group-wide
low cost footprint.

A STRONG PERFORMANCE
FROM A FOCUSED, YET
DIVERSIFIED GROUP

4 The Welr Group PLC Arnual Report and Fnancial Staternents 2012




Finally, in addition to organic initiatives, the Group
continues to benafil from its stralegy of accelerating
growth through acquisttion. In 2012, Seaboard and
Novatach contributed positively with Ssaboard
astablishing the Group's positicn in the pressure control
market. In December, we announced the scquisition of
Mathena, Inc, expanding our pressure control offering
Mo the drilling phase of the welicycle, and complated
the sale of non-core LGE Procesa.

Strategic momentum has also continued in the important
area of innovation during 2012 with a number of new
product launches and also tangible evidence that the
infrastruciure put in place by the Group to develop

new technology and establish a sustalnable pipefine

of Innovation Is bsearing fruit. More cletails of the strategy
in action guring 2012 are given in the Strategic Reviaw.

Qur wider commitments

The Group makes a significant economic contribastion
to the communities where it operates. Since the launch
of the new strategy In 2010, we have provided nearly
3.000 new jobs worttwide, Weir also supports businessas
in 88 countries and every continent through its suppty
chain, And as Welr continues to grow, the Board

is focused on ensuring that the Group's sociat end
anvironmental responsibilities are met fully, How we
support our own people and thoss in the communitios
which surrcund our operations, the actions we deploy
to mitigate and minimise our environmental impacts
and the example we sat in the way we do business are
tungamental to maintaining our Bcenca to cperate.

This year, the milout of the Weir Erwlronment, Health

and Sataty system marks ah imponant step towards
world dass safety stendards across the Group and

the introduction of & behavioura! satety systsm at the
beginning of 2013 recognisas the emphasis placed on
establishing a strong culture o risk assessment across
the business. Each of our businesses aims to mitigate
greenhouss gas emissions through a humber of inltiatives.
QOur emisslons by turnover remained constant on the 2011
performance, We remain committed to reducing our
carbon ntensity ankl an action pfan developad towards
the end of the ysar provides a strong platform to enabie
the Group to taks the next steps on its sustainability
Journay. Finafly, the Welr Code of Conduct continues to
Inform amployees of tha right way to do business: ethically
and with integrity. Tralning on the Code is mandatory.

The Welr Group PLC Annual Report and Financin! Statements 2012

The Board's work programme during 2012 was
axtensive, providing a good ovarview of market
conditions end opetfgational priorities. As happens
annuafly, we visit the Group's operations to develop
further our understanding of the business. This year,
we spent time in Texas at our largest pressura-pumping
businass, SPM. Thase trips are invailuable 10 every
Non-Executive Director, providing a chance to truty

get under the akin of the Group’s activities. Once egain,
the quality and commitment of cur people was self-
avidenl, with a growing number taking advantage

of the opportunities provided by the Group's recently
introduced Isaming and devalopment framework. The
quality and commitment of Weir emplovess was also
matched during the year by my fellow Board membars.
$ would like to thank them for their contribution. Earlier
this month, we announced the appaintment of a new
Non-Executive Director. Charles Berry joins the Board
on 1 March 2013 end wil add greal experience and
knowisdge of International energy markats,

it 2012 has taught us anything. it is that a challenge

in one of our markets doas not prevent the dafivery of

a strong perfonmance from the Group. Weir's geographic
and market exposures. combinad with the growing
capabifity of tha business, enable value crestion in lower
growth conditions. Togather with a proven, ested
strategy and business model, the Group approaches
2013 with confidence and a number of opportuniiies

to continue to grow and develop the business.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
27 February 2013




Directors’ Report; Overview of Welr

Our Strategy and Business Model

The Group’s strategy is to strengthen and extend its addressable
markets in the attractive minerals, oil and gas and power sectors
and to deliver sustainable growth ahead of these markets.

Woe will achigve this by continuously buikling on morg than 141
years of engineoring excellence to attain the status of ‘partner
of cholce’ for inngovative engineered products and services for
customers in the global energy and natural rescurces markats
that we sarve. Attaining and maintaining this status is achieved
by focusing on the four pillars which drive growth The Welr Way:
value chain excellence, innovation, collaboration and
glohsal capahitity.

.} Tha Weir Group PLE Annual Report and Finoncla! Statements 2012

Through effective delivery of thesa pillars we seek to grow revenues
faster than our markets, deliver top-quartile marging and Increase
returns on capital whilst relaining a solid financial base to pursus
crganic and acquisition-led opportunities.

Our key performancs Indicators, shown on pages 8 and 9 are
dasigned o track our performance in delivering this strategy.




Principal Risks and Uncortainties

Intormation an how our business s atfected by risk is contalnad
later In this gdocumant.

> Read more shout how we mansge rizk on page 42.

The Welr Group PLE Annual Report and Rnsncial Statemens 2012




O s" Report: Review of the year

Key performance indicators

The Board uses a range of financial and non-
financial metrics, reported on a periodic basis,

to monitor the Group’s performance over time.
The key performance indicators and their linkage
to Group strategy and operating priorities are

set out below.

Stratogic Priority

Free

Retum

Oporating cash on capite) Yota)
tnput* margin*  flow empioyed’ Inventory Incidont
(&m] ) (£m) {£m) tums®  Rats (TIRY
1. @ @
Strengthen and extend
addressable markets in minerals,
oil and gas and power sectors
2. ® L ®
Attain status of partner of choice
for engineered products and
services in our chosen markets
3. @ ® ® ® ®
Value chain excellence
4. o L J L
Innovation
5. e ® ®
Collaboration
® @ ® ® ®

8.
Global capability

1. C d 81 2012 sweraps Qo rates.
2. ACJSI8d 10 eeChice ftoms and Intang!
3. Contirwing op s EBIT ing Seab and Nevatach EBIT end

enceptional tms) dividar by sverngs ned assets exchuding net dobt, penskon
delcit {not of deferrod tax ss1ai) and Seaboard and Novatech ne! Ksssts.

4, 2012 ge v 2011 MERSIng of any kind r
by sMployees divicad by 200,000 hours wor ke,

5. Az reportsd 2011 exchudng Seabosrd

Tha Walir Group PLE Annual Report and Financis! Slatoments 2012




input’ [Em) Operating mamin® (%) Froe cash flow (£m)
£2,397m 19.1% £62m
2% +110bps +116%

Input for the year fell by 9% on 8 lke for Mlmhmmnmmuaﬂdwhim Continuing to Invest to support growth
Ekohnua. reflecting ond markatconditions - Cperating margins in 2012 were arecord  over the long term

- Group input fetl as a result of 8 market for the Group. - Free cash flow grew despite increasing
downtun in pressure-pumping, OL & - Each dwision's pertormance improved warking capiial and capial expendiure.
(Gas's largest end markast; input in in the period, despite the challenging - Capital expenditure was commitied to
Minerats and Power & Industrial grew end market conditions. support the long tarm growth plans
strongly during the year. - This performance was supported by a of each divislon, substantially ahead

- Each division continued to broaden their continuing focus on lean principlas and of depraciation.
porttolio through the development and taking rapid action to align tha cost base to - Working capital increased as a result
launch of new innovative products, reflect the changing end market conditions. of higher inventory, particularly within

- Wa axtandad our geographic presence the Oll & Gas division.
with each division expanding their
service network.

Retum on caplial employad® (%) Inventory turns® Total Incidemt Rate (TIR)*

29.1% 3.1 1.6

-10bps

Generating strong returms on capital Inventory turns foll as stock levels Incldent rate recduced by more than 50%

through the business cycle increased faster than revenues over the courgse of 2012

- Retum cncapital emploved was broadyinfne - Inventory turns fellto 3.1x, - Introduction of new Weir EHS systern
yeer on yeer, wah enhanced profitablty offsst by =  The suddan pmssung-pumping market supponted substantial safety performance
investment in fixed assets and workdng capital downturn resultad in the Qi & Gas division improvemant.

~ Capacity expansions wer@ completed in al hoiding more inventory than expected. ~ Audlis of ab plants were complated
chisiors, providng he platiom or itregrowh. - Initiatives were launched in the second with resulting action plans addressed

- Retumn on capital employed increased strongly half of 2012 to reduce inventory levels during 2012.
at the Minerals division, supported by mobust across 2013. = New behavioural programma geveloped
margin pariormance. Od & Gas returns to further improve tha safety cutture
{eD, reflecting lower activity levels. across the organisation,

The Weir Group PLE Anrutl Report and Financiat Sixtermnents 2012




DingCtors’ Report: Review of the year

Understanding Our Markets

Weir operates in three key markets: minerals,
oil & gas and power. Together, these markets

contribute 90% of Group revenue.

Minerals

Weir operatss primarlly in the global minerals processing
80C1071, with growing exposure to the Canadlan ofl sands,
whaera oil is often recovered through a surtace mining
process. Cur equipment and gervices are applind across
the "mill cirGuit’, tha surface process by which rock ores
ara broken down into end commodities such Bs copper,
goki or ron ore. Qur larpest exposuras are to those
conunodities with positive underlying fundamentals

and which raguire the greatest amount ¢of processing,
such as copper and gald.

Growth drivers for minarats markets are popuiation growth
and urbanisation, driven particutarty by emerging markats,
resulting in growing infrastructure, industrial and consumar
demand. Mining house capitel expenditure in greenfield,
brownfield and replacement projects drives original
equipment revenues and grows our natalled equipment
basa. Minerals procuction trends drive attermarkat
revenuas as the instaliod base of equipment is exposed
to wear and abrasion and global ore grades decfine,
requiring more procassing to produce the same amount
of raw commodity,

Kw iinks to business model and strategy:
~ Highly engineerad products used in criticad processes
- High lovets of attermarkeat support provide resilience
- Strong service prasence bullds customar intimacy
- Leadership in core mill circull technologies
- Broad produc! portfofio across mill circuit process flow
- Globa! industry: diversity of ravenue and technological
and operational laverage

1. Source: Wer 2012 input sstimates.

2. Sourcw CRU Fabruary 2013,

3. Source: US Enory Intormation Administratorn: Arvust Enongy Outiook
2013 Early Roloass Raterence Case.

4, US Energy indormation Administration, intemationss Enangy Outiook.

Mining sector commodity mix'

Forecast copper demand varsus supply*
{Kt contained copper)
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Oil & Gas

Walr operates in the conventional and unconventions!
upstream oil and gas markets, with a niche position
supplying specialist pumps to downstresm markets.

The North American onshore uncomventional market is
our fargest, with temational unconventiona! opportunitios
beginning to emergs. We serve our markats in three malin
ways: pressurs-pumping squipment and services, whera
camenting and hydraulic fractuting s used in onshore and
ofishore od and gas wells; prassiure conirol equipmaent
and services, which ensure drifing, complétion and
production processes can be camied out afiiciently and
sefely; and Welr O & Gas Services, where dedicated
engineering support and spares are provided to Wi

and third party onshore and ofishore oitfield equipment,
as well as for desatnation plards.

The main growth driver in thess markats is growing
global ofl and gas demand. The number of wells drilled
datermings damand for our equipment with rig court a
readily avallable proxy lor market activity, albelt each sig is
axpectad 10 drill mone wells per year due to improvements
in technology and efficiency. The Intensity and growing
cormnplexity of driling and completion applications dictate
sftermarket requirements. Our downstreem business is
influenced by refining activity levels.

Kay links to business mode! and strategy:
- Highly engineered products used in critical processas

- High pressure abrasive applications increase
aftermarket requirements

- Leading sorvice presence in all shale plays: strong
oustomer partnership

- Pump to welhead capability; broad portiolio provides
apportunities in convantional and uncorentional markets

- Global manufacturing and service footprint to captura
International opportunities

Power

Vveir oparates in the converttional, nuclear and rengwables
power genaration, industrial and mid and downstream

oll and gas markets. Wa serve these marksts through the
design and manufacture of vaives, pumps and turbines
and the provision of specialist support services.

The main growth driver I3 growing global energy demand.
Emerging market power naeds, the replacernent of
ageing plant in developed countries and environmental
regulations dictale power plant new buid, maintenance
and refurbishmen! programmes, investment in renewabls
energy projects and cilfiek infrastnicture development.

Key links to businesa model and strategy:

- Highty engineered products used in criticel processes

- High temperatura, high pressure applications

- Gleba! manuiacturing and service foolprint to capture
international opportunities

- Broad vaives portiolio provides cross-sefing opportunttios

US domestic crude oll production by sourcs, 2005-2020
(million barrels per dayl®

US dry natural gas production by source, 2005-2020
{trillion cubic feet)®

Global power demand
{quadrillion btu)*

Tha Welir Group PLC Arnusl Rapon angd Financial Staremants 2012
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Directors’ Report: Review of the year

Chief Executive's Strategic Review
Keith Cochrana

The Group has developed and enhanced its market
presence in 2012, resulting in a good financial
performance despite facing challenging conditions
in upstream pressure-pumping markets.

This highlights the many levers avallable to the Group

to create sustainable, profitable growth, with some

kay themes undarpinning our 2012 performance: the
strategic focus on broadening our product portiolic and
offering this through &n expanding sales and service
network; the pace of new product introduction; the ability
to successtully intagrate acquisitions and quicidy realise
benefils; and, flexing capacity and leveraging the Group's
collective skifls and supply chain. Bahind ell these factors
stands the contribution of Weir's 14,000 emplayees.

| thank them all for ther efforts this year.

Our markets in 2012

An uncertain MBcro-economic environment in 2012
contributed to commodity price volatility, with mixed
conditions in Weir's principal end markats. In mining,
emerging market commodity demand continued to grow,
supporting ore production and historically high levels of
capital spending. Desplite sacond half custormer caution
on commitments to new greenfickd projects due 1o lower
commodity prices, existing committed projects continuad,
with strong ora prodiuction lgvels, particularly in those
cornmoditias to which Welr has greatest exposure,

such as copper and gold. A sciter marke! for on ore
and coal in the final six months of 2012 impacted projocts
in Australia and Brasi. i od and gas, North American
upstream markets were challenging as US natural gas
prices fell haavily in the first quarter and remained at
historically low levels for the full year, prompting a switch
from dry gas to oll and liquids rich shale formations,
resutting in a low doubile digit decline in US onshore

rig court with a rising ofi-focusad rig count partially
offsatting the large reduction in dry gas rigs. Lower
pressure-pumping market demand, combined with
forwand ordering in late 2011 in anticipation of higher
ectivity lovels, resutted in excess trac pump capacity

A DEVELOPED
AND ENHANCED
PRESENCE
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£2,538m

+11%

with aftermarkat dermand aiso affected by over capacity
as well as kower utlisation rates and faling frac intensities.
The pressure control merket, where Seaboard operates.
remained strong in the first half of the yesr, albeit activity
slowed slightly in the sacond half as rig count fell in the
US and Canada. Outsids North America there were early
signs of encouraging growth in intemational prassuna-
pumping markets and Middle East service markets were
buoyarit as Saudi Arabia increased production and the
refurbishment of ran’s oilfields conlinuad. Power markets
rernained mixad, with global nuciear activity subdued as
post-Fukushima safety rgviews concluded. Tho iow price
for US natural gas has provided impetus to new gas fired
power projects in North America while opportunities in the
hydro renewables markst improved In the latar stages ol
the yaar. General industrial activity ramained subdued In
Europe and North America.

2012 performance

Owearall order input in congiant currency was down

2% with original equipment nput down 13% as the fall
in gamand for frac pumps was offsst by procurement
for greenfield and brownfield mining projects and

a first contribaution from the Seaboard and Novatech
acquisitions. Aftermarket input was up 9%, reflecting
strong production levels in mining marksts and market
share gains across a broader aftermarket-focused
product portfolio in minerals and o and gas markets.

Group revenues were up 12% on a constant currency
basis while the proportion of revenues frorn aftervnarket
sales increased to 55% with strong organic Minerals
revanue growth offsetting the revenue impact of North
Amarican prassure-pumping markets. The Group
produced ancther record profits pertormance in kne with
our mid-year guigance, Bustrating the resilience of our
business model and diverse end market focus. Operating
margins improved due to the revenue mix, continued
aperational efficiencias and effective cost control as well
as reacting quickly to changing market conditions by
realigning capacity and reducing headcount In those
businesses most atlected. We delivered on the kay
priorities set out 12 months ago, expanding our reach
and improving capabllites across the Group.

1. Corttiruing operations adjustad to
Hema and intangibies amortisation.

Operating profit!

£486m

+18%

This financia! performance was underpinned by good
projact activity in key mining equipment markets,
particularly South America and Africa, daspite & South
African market affacted by industrial unrest. Sales graw
of the Minarals division's broader product portioko,
enhanced during the year by the developmen of aur
Own sCreens range and new product introductions,
inchuding the innovative Multifio Highwal dewataring
pump. n Qil & Gas, despite the challenges in North
Amagrican prassure-pumping markats, Seaboard
performed well in the pressure control marksts and Middie
East Service operations delivered a sirong performance.
Wea also saw the first benefits from the restructuring of
the downstream business. Despite a relatively subdued
global power sector, strategic momentum in the Power
8 Industrial divislon delivered strong input, output and
profit growth.

We continyed to inves! in our growth plans during 2012,
caralully wargeting those areas with potential for strongast
short and medium term returns. At the same time, we
have implamented cost reduction measures In certain
areas without jeopardising the abllity of the business to
capture longer term growth opportunities whan markats
improve. Capital expanditure of £116m supported plans
to expand foundry capacity in Minerals and aftermarket
component production and servicing in O & Gas.

In Power & industrial, we irvested in a new aftermarket
tacillty tor the hydro business in Montreal,

Working capital levels this yeer have been highet then
those targetad at the baginning of 2012. A number of
factors contributad to a build-up of inventory, the largest
being the rapid changs in North Amarican pressure-
pumping markets. To address this, initiatives were
taunchad in the second he!f of the yaar, with significant
bensfits axpected to be seen in the next year. Despite
this, tree cash flow from cominuing operations was £62m
and gur return on capilal employed was broadly flat on
a lika for iike basis. Our balance sheet remains strong
and wa retain the financial faxibility to pursue organic
and acquisition opportunities in line with our strategy.
>
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Ciractors’ Report: Review of the yaar

Chief Executive’s Stretegic Review continued

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION
WORLDWIDE
Better pump performance

Processing and pumping abrasive
material such as mining slurry needs to
be carried out as effectively as possible.

This reduces the prospect

of unplanned maintenance,
minimises power use and
enhances throughput for
customers. A number of variables
affect this - pressure and velocity
distribution of the fiuig used and
the intemal gecmestry of the
pumps and associated equipment.

For a number of years,
computational fiuid dynamics
(CFD) has proven affective whan
water i3 used in informing the
deasign of pumping equipment.
However, existing CFD softwere
proves to be less accurate

in measuring what happans

to flulds within pumping ptant
when handling slurry,

At the Weir Advanced Research
Centre, our enginears are working
alongside leading University of
Strathclyde academics to develop
and apply the optimum CFD codes
for slurry handling. An Important
part of the process involves
closely monltoring equipment

in the laboratory and in the fiekd

to valldate the differances in
performance. Through this
fundamenta! ressarch, Weir
befiavas this will creaie the most
accurate code to date for software
that helps to design and produce
ever greater sfficiency and
pertormance for our customers.

BETTER PUMP
PERFORMANCE
A QUESTION

OF CRACKING
THE CODE
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Driving growth The Welr Way

The Group has succassiully pursued ks strategic
priorities during the year, strengthening our abliity 10
become a pertner of choice for our global customer
base. We have integrated Seaboard and Novatech

Inta the Qil & (3as division, with both businesses
pertorming well in chellenging markst conditions.
Seaboard supports our strateqgy of diversitying the
Group's uUpsiream exposura to pressurs-pumping

into an adjacent markel which will also benefit from

the ong term growth prospects for uncormentional
production. Growth opportunities for Seaboard have
been validated and the product ranga is alrsady being
taken to Internationa! markets, The management team
has baen strengthened with senior additions to delver
on these opportunities. At the end of the calendar year,
we extended our pressune control presence in the driling
phass of the wall lifecycle through the acquisition of
Mathena, inc. Flow control production capacity was
added gt Walr SPM, with the development of a bundied
product otfering gaining traction in the second hatt

of the year, An Initial phase of plannad foundry expansion
increases our abiity to serve global minerals and ol
sands marksts with capacity additions underway at

our European foundry cantre in the UK. The innovation
framework developed In the tast two years continues

to bring new products to market. The hightight in 2012
has been the five new products launched for oll and gas
customerns, increasing our addressable markat by some
US$500m and leveraging market-leading technclogy
from all our dhvisicns into the North Amarican upstream
oil and gas gector.

Vatue ¢chaln excellence

in this year's report, value chain excellencs is recognised
as the fourth plilar driving Weir's growth. This acknowledges
its critical importance in hetping the Group achieve its
strategic objectives as we increasingly focus on replicating
the strong progress made in the continuous Improvernent
of our operational performance across all areas of the
organisation. This year, good progress has boen mads on
supply chain and procurement Initiatives and the cngolng
developmant of the peopls who work for Weir. Whie more
neads to be JoNe as we Continue 10 strive for zero accident
workplaces, 8 strong improvement was also made in our
safaty performance this year. Gavin Nicol, Diractor of
Operations Support and Deveioprnent. and Pautine
Lafferty, Director of Human Rasources, provide more
details on pages 20to 23.

>3
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Directors Report: Raview of the yosar

Chief Executive’s Strategic Review continued

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION
WORLDWIDE
Collaboration in action

The Gladiator Slurry Pump is the latest proof of
what can happen when our divisions collaborate
to focus pooled technological expertise on the
needs of customers in one specific market.

These are the first pumps of
their type produced by Welr for
frac operations, biending and
transterring a slurry mixture of
water, gel and proppant. While
developed for the il and gas
industry, these pumps owe
thelr technological competitive
edvantage to the decades of
expertise in slurry applications
developed in our Minerals division.

The Gladiztor Shury Pump

Using similar technology to that
which has been used to great
success in our market-leading
pumping products used in mining
applications, they enhance our
presence across the oll and gas
surface squipment market, directly
plugging in to our existing product
footprint across the frac site.

The wear resistant spare parts
of the Gladiator Slurry Pump are
manutactured using the same
elloy materials which are already
proven tc significanily extend

equipment life in the world’s
harshest mining environments.,
Compared to known siurry pumps,
the new hydrodynamic design alse
extends the life of the critical wear
components as wel as making
the pump more robust and easy to
operate. Concelved and delivered
through collaboration batween the
Ofl & Gas and Minerats divisions
of the Weir Group, we believe that
the Gladlater Slurry Pump can offer
customers a longer operational life
than existing alternatives.

COLLABORATION IN ACTION
THE GLADIATOR
SLURRY PUMP
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Innovation

Invastment in rasearch and development increased

by 26% to £23m as the Group continues to invest in

a pipeling of new products and product enhancements
for our markats,

The Group has filed around 40 patent apphcations
this year, matching last year's record number of
now invention flings. In eddition, in 2012 a numbar
ot collaborations have baen formad with axternal
companies to extand the technical capabilities

of the Group.

Our innovation etorts reinforce the critical sources

of our technological advantage, chisfly the inteflectual
property associated with developing wear and pressure
resistant materials, engineered hydraulics end, increasingly,
technology that enables our customsrs 1o more elfectively
plan maintenance requirements. Taken togethar, this
technology tacus addresses key lactors affecting our
custamers” operational performance in Weair's and
markets. Across the Group, wa have a product end
technalogy developmant organisation to meet both short
and long termn strategic business objectives. Shorter
term product development activity, with a time horizon
of ona to two years, is carmied out at our many worldwide
Design Centres of Origin, where a specific product family
is continuously developed. Core technology platforms,
such as materials development, are the locus of cur
giobal tachnology centres. Anally, fundamental resaarch
work is carrled out at the Weir Advenced Research
Centre (WARC) In Glasgow, as well as at varkws
universities worldwide, Our global tachnoiogy centres
have continued to focus on improved materials for our
markets and more efficient and robust pump design.

At WARC, good progress has been made on a major
project that seeks to minimise wear, corrasion and
erosion, increasing cur undarstanding and helping

to identity optimum solutions across manufacturing,
materials salection, surtace treatment and application
processes and yielding patent panding technology
related to fluid end deslgn, 8 key component used in
pressura-pumping.

>
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Directors’ Report: Roviow of the year

Chief Executive's Strategic Review continusd

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION
WORLDWIDE
From country to continent

During 2012, the Power & Industrial business developed
a strategic relationship with Minerals colleagues in
South Africa, taking its products from a single country,
power sector focus to growing sales across the African
continent and to customers in other sectors.

Traditionally, the business had
focused on power industry
customers close to its facilty

in Johannesburg but dialogua
between the two divisions in
South Africa resulted in the
Minerals salas team promating
Power & Industrial’s range of
valves, Weir Minerals boasts wide
geographical coverage across the
African continent, with access to
a greater number of custorners.

Cross-selling has benefited both
divisions. Minerats has successfully
introduced BDK industrial valves
1o the mining industry, while Power
& Industrial has secured orders

for Isogate slurry valves from local
power stations.

Participation in sales conferences,
trafning and joint marketing
Initiatives have all supported this
effart and the Power & Industrial
service centre in South Africa

is now located on the Minerais
division's Middelburg site where
the facilities work hand-in-hand.

Tapping into the Group's broad
capability in Africa has also
extended beyond customer-facing
activities. Power & Industria) Is
now part of a bigger entity with
stock and inventory management
transferred to Weir Minerals,
maaning greater buying power
and resource utilisalion across
the two businesses.

FROM COUNTRY

TO CONTINENT
GLOBAL CAPABILITY
DELIVERS RESULTS

FOR P&l
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Developmant of this broadened
capability has seen input trom
Power & Industrigl Scuth Africa
Increasing by aimost 30% and
output by naarly 709% in 2012.
The business will continue to
hamess the Weir resgurces
that exist ecross the reglon as it
expands into new geographical
territories and industrias.




Collaboration

Providing engineering solutions works bast when
delivered in partnership with customers. Welr seeks to
achieve this by ensuring that the structures &ra in place
to ensure all our end markets benefit trom pooling the
full potential of each of our divisions. During 2012 we
heve focused effort on reducing operational costs end
compleity for customers, recognising the impact of more
challanging aconomic conditions on ther businesses.
This has translatad into a number of responses: providing
greater depth of service and éxpertiso closear 1o where

it is neadad to ensure minimum operational disruplion;
craating new delivery modats to sull customer budgets,
such as equipment rental contracts: and putting
customers and Weir engineers together at an early stage
as we develop new products, with extensive field testing
carmied out during the year, enabling frsi-hand customer
feedback. Weir has also assistad clients in buillding skills
capacity, for example working with Shefi-oparatad POO
Oman to upgrade and manage their workshops, with
Welr mentors training young Omanis to galn professional
certification. Divisional collaboration efiorts have also

undempinned successtul realignment of capacity in the US.

Our Excelience Committees continue to serve the Group
well with functional cross-divisional teams ensuring the
dissemination of best practica in those areas fundamentzal
to strategic defivery: engineering. procurement, talent
development and enviconment, health and safely.

Gilobat capability
The Group has continued to grow lis worichwide
presence, ensuring that our abiity to partner with
customers wheraver cur solutions are nsedsed is not
constrained by capacity, expertisa or technology.
Investment began this year ¢ expand Minerals’ foundry
capacity, providing 8 strongar manutacturing presence
in every key global mining markst and enhancing
customer lead times. Our aftermarket activitias continue
10 be supported by a growing sanvice network, which
now numbers more than 150 facilitins, with additions
on each continent. As welt as adding new locatlons to
this network, investment hag been made in machining,
tooling and technotogy to deepen our aftarmarket
capabilities, offaring customars graater support and
further developing our competitive advantage. Product
localisation has been a strong taature of the year, with
two examples baing Weir Intemational South Karea's
contributlon to the development of a globa! vatves
platform and the production in India of our own
mechanical seals range. Across the Group, etiective
use has been mada by al divisions of the shared gicbal
footprint, with Minarals facilities in South Africa and
Australia being successfully used by Power & industrial
to gain e strong foothold in these markets,

Outlook

Across the medium term, the Group is positioned to

benefit rom the growth prospects of our end markets

despite an uncertain global economic environment:

= Detnand for the finite resources of minerals and oll and
gas is underpinned by the continuing popuiation growth
and industriafisation of major developing aconomias.

- Dovelopment of the world's unconvantional ol and gas
resources will provide greatar energy security for many
countries and support industrial Compeatitiveness.

- Power infrastructura in both the developed and
developing world will require refurbishment and
repiacement due to environmental concems and
ageing plam, with now build power stations required
10 address predicted structural power shortages
in developing markets.

n 2013, we aim to grow ahsad of our end markets by:

- continuing to enhance supply chain parfarmance to
increase customer responsiveness and benefit from
Group leverage;

- capturing North American and international prassure
control growth opportunities;

- extending Minerals’ presence in comminution markets;

- implermnenting and driving growth through an
integrated global valves platform;

- delivering an enhanced [T platform to support
ooliaboration;

- improving working capital performance to
enhance retums.

In 2013, despite more chalanging markets, the Group

will continue to deliver profitable growth through new
product introductions and a range of operational inttlatives.
Assuming a grackual econcmic and end market improvement,
wa expact to deliver low single digit revenue growth and
broadly stable margins in 2013 with lower firgt hell profits
oftset by growth in the second hatt. Alongside substantally
higher cash generation the Group plans the aighth
consecutive year of double digh dividend growth.

Keoith Cochrane
Chief Executive
27 February 2013
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Directors’ Report: Review of the year

Excellence Across the Value Chain
QGavin Nicol
Director of Operations Support and Development

From the ongoing identification of
customer needs through our Weir
Customer Experience Programme, to
how we deliver equipment and services,
our philosophy of delivering excellence
throughout the value chain is a critical
pillar of our strategy.

Tha Weir Qroup PLE Annual Repart and Financiel Statermerds 2012

During 2012, in addition to the momentum in the
innovation agenda outlined in the Chie! Executive's
Strategic Review, we have focused specifically on turther
Improving our supply chain, operational and heaith

and safaty parformance as we further dsvelop our lean
operating platfonm across every area ¢f the Group.

Supply chain

In adopting a Group-wide approach to working

in partnership with suppliers, Weir seaks 1o optimise

#ts supply chain. This partnership will lead to graater
ettectiveness in cost. guafity, delivery and responsivenass,
all critical tactors in iImproving the experience of our
custorners. The Group also stands to benefit from
reductions in working capital.

In 2012 we analysed our supply chain and identified
apportunities to empioy best practice across common
spend categorias, aggregate demand and take our
astablished lean approach into supplers’ own processes,
Enhanced dain managamant has been introduced 1o
provide spand visibility across all business units, enabling
savings to be leveraged across the Group. Expearienced
resource was also atdded during the year, providing
edditicnal capabllity and capacity 10 deliver our supply
chain strategy.

Kay supply chain echievermnants during 2012:
= Imptemantad tha Wair Procurement System ecross
tha Group.

- Analysaed total Group spend and introduced
chgital tools to engage our supplier basa through
a common portal.

- Established Centres of Excellance teams for koy
commaodities and aligned sourcing strategies
to growth targets.

~ Increased ‘best cost country’ sourcing.

— Established and implemented an engagerment
framewark with key suppliers.

Operstions

A lean phlicsophy drives Weir's operational platfarm,
with the principle of continuous Improvement and
minimum waste evident throughout our manutacturing
operations and beyond the faciory fioor.

Our lean mathodaotogy is delivered through the Weir
Production Systam (WPS). We ralse our lean standards
year on yeat, recognising that cur operations ¢an always
be maore efficient. Effectiveness is measured through

a roliing sudit process. During 2012 we have applied
this lhan audit process to supply chain activitiss across
our operations.




Ancther kay grea of focus has Deen working capital
managemant with improvement activities developed
through the Growp's innovation framework. A consistent
Group-wide approach 1o inventory control and sales and
aperational planning has bean embeddad ot every major
site across the Group.

Safsty performance

The Group operates in the balisf that all incidents

are preventable. We ams committad 1o a zero accident
workplace. Satety parformance is reported based

on Total Incident Rate (TIR). This measures medical
ireatment of any kind required by employess divided

by 200,000 hours worked. The resuits tor 2012 show
significant improvement an the previous year. TIR has
oacreased from an average of 3.4 In 2011 to an average
of 1,8 in 2012 with a contimiing improvernent trend.

The Environment, Health and Sataty (EMHS) Excelence
Committee leads on EMS @sues across the Group.
Having developed a Weir EHS system in 2011 to set
global standards, this year the Commitiee sot out a
‘roadmap’ for each business to achieve consistent,
workd class performance with five priority areas to
progress over the next thres years. Assisting in the
detivery of tha roadmap was face-to-tace cormmunication
wilh avery member of the Senior Management Group
and video communications with all @mployees.

A rolling progremme of rigorous intemal sataty audits
was established 10 855855 progress egainst prionities
and to inform dewvelopment plans at each business unit.
The results of ¢ach audit and associated development
plan are reviewed by the Group Exacutive.

Finally, to reinforce a strong culture of safety, the Weir
behavioural safety system was developad throughout
2012 and began to rofl out across the Group earfler
this month. The key message behind the system is that
to Ignore unsafe workplace practice is o endorse it.
Every Wair employee wlill recelve training in the system.

For more information on Wair's EHS activities, please
RO to weir.co.uk.

!
PAR‘INERSDFEN PRODUCTION
Safety parformance ’“==
]|
W

At the heart of Weir's

safety philosophy is

the belief that all incidents
are preventable. Embedding
this philosophy starts with
making safety training job
and task relevant.

Many Weir emplovees perform While managing task-focused

menual assembly or engineering
tasks. Recognising this, an initiative
was developed in Africa to create
specific training to focus on the
prevention of hand and finger
injurigs. The programme, which
has seen & dramatic reduction

in Incidents involving hands and
fingers, has been rofled out across
every Weir business and formed
the basis for other campaigns.

Designed to address the specific
activities that workers in the ptam
would recognise as ‘their job"
imvoived training in the importance
that hands and fingers play in
everyday life — inside and outside
the workptace. This was reinforced
by training on risk assessment and
tha appropriate personal protection
equipmant for each specific task.

risk, the "hands-on" safety
culture Weir seeks to dovelop was
alsg driven home during training.
This makes it clear that any
employee has the power to

stop colleagues, managers or
processes when they observe
risks being taken. The training
emphasised the importance of
two-way communication and also
addreased practical issues by
encouraging the diaposaal of
inappropriate tools for the task.

Finalty, a visible angoing
commitment from all employees,
from Managing Director to shop
floor operators, Is underscored
by the signing of a ‘pledge board’,
prominently displayed on the
shop floor.

DEVELOPING
EXCELLENCE
IN SAFETY
PERFORMANCE
A HANDS-ON
CULTURE
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Directors’ Report Feview of the year

Our People

Pauline Lafferty
Director of Human Resources

The Group recognises that motivated
skilled and effective people are
imperative to our business, with talent
development an important element in
extending our global capability and
sustaining profitable growth. We are
committed to attracting and retaining
the best people and developing them
to achieve their full potential.

The Wair Group PLC Annual Report and Anancipl Siutements 2012

The following principles guide our approech to our

employses. We seak to:

- ansure no form of prejudice stands in the way
of development or promotion cpportunilies;

- encourage, rvest in and support our employees
to achieve their potentiat;

- igentlfy tha training and development needs of
empiloyees and find ways 1o tutlil those requiremants;

= use ths Wair Group Persanal Development Ptan (PDP)
to identity and davelop high potential individuals:

- employ and retain people who shane our vahies and
behaviours and ectively discourage thosa who do not:

- work to maintsin & businass environment where
Individuals {ee! valued and respected;

-  provide developmant opporiunities to intemationally mobie
ompioyeas by encouraging oversaas appoitments;

- support individuals in devetoping and expanding
their roles.

During 2012, a growing number of intemal candidates
made the transition o sanicr and middle management
rolas. This success is the first evidence that the important
steps put in place in 2011 to establish & comprohensive
managemenn and leadership development framework

for the Grocup s providing a tatert pipeline capable of
supporting the presan and future needs of tha business.

The framework identifies and targets three key career
development phases. Programmes aré delivered to
employass at each relevant stage with development

and managemani tools designed to support and
enhance Wair's strotegic objectives end organisetional
cullure. Participants in the programme3 ere identified end
selected by business unit and senior management based
on alignment to The Weir Way values and behaviours.
More Information on these values Is available at weir.
co.uk. In addition to the Group-managed programmes
listed betow, many local learning and devetopment
programmes are rolled out on an ongoing basis.

Weir Leadership Programme

The Weir Leadership Programme (WLP) develops high
performing leaders and strategic swareness, craating
ahignment with Weir's strategic agenda and leveraging
its effective delivery. Programmae participants are drawn
from the Senior Management Group (SMG) with over
150 senior managers taking part so far. The SMG Is

a group of around 300 senior employees with frontiine
rasponsibility for the davelopment and delivery of the
Group's strategy. The programme Is dasigned around
practical business challenges. Peers from across the
Group's operations collaborate and support each other
in faciftated lsarning groups.




Welr Business Management Programme

Daslgned in conjunction with a leading business school,
the Weir Business Management Programena (WBMP}
develcps the 2011 pilot Emerging Leaders Prograrnme,
The WBMP delivers core business managemaent skills
and covers critical areas including laading people in
organisations, financial managament, commercial
awareness, oparations management, innovation and
project management, Complation of the programms
leads to a postgraduate Cerlificate in Managemeont

and the opportunity to obtain a Masters in Business
Administration. More than 50 managers from the Group's
global operations have participated in this programma,

Graduate Development Framework.

Ouring 2012, Weir recruited a total of 75 graduates across
the Group from a varlety of prafessional disciplines. The
Gmuduate Development Framework provides & consisiant
davelopment programme to give graduates within Weir

a broad knowledge and understanding of the business.

In 2012, two groups of more than 20 graduztes attended
a gix day incuction coursa in Scotland.

Welr University

The Weir University was established in 2011 to provide all
employvaas with onling access to continuous protessional
development resources. This virtual resource is continuously
enhanced and during 2012 mochies were added in
businass ethica/Code o Conduct, projoct management,
markating and procuremsnt. These are in addition to the
range of courses and materials supporting Wair's arsas
of technological competitive advantage, including
metallurgy, fadure analysis, corrosion and finite element
analysis. The Wair University enables the consistent
application of identical isaming cpportunities worldwide
with employee user numbers continuing to Increase.

Successicn planning

The leadership development Initiatives rolled out in 2011
served to astablish a robust management and jeadership
develcpment framework. This framework contributed

1o the Group's succession planning process acioss its
businesses. In 2012, 44% of senior management group
appointmants were intemnat.

In 2013, more stalf will benefil from our tajent development
framawork as we bagin the rotation of cur greduate
programme throughout our global network. This process
begins when wa deliver the programme in Bangaiore, India,
alowing our graduates to see our bhdian taclities and engage
with our 200 strong Indian engineering science team.

We wilt also undertake Group-wide initlatives to better
gauge the alignment and commitmant of cur employees
to delivering the Group's objectives. The resutts will
dstermine a range of actions to develop employese
engegement and empower amployeas to continually
improve customer satisfaction.

PEOPLE MATTER
Graduate Development
Framework

ERICA SNIDER
ROTATIONAL

ENGINEER

| joined the Graduate Development
Framework at Weir SPM in January
2012, starting in sustaining engineering
where | learned about our product

line using computer models and doing
hands-on assembly in pump school.

In fleld engineering | helped
sarvice our pumps at a frac

site with the customer's crew

and saw how our products are
used in tracking operations.

| am responsible for documenting
the performance, operating
conditions, and investigation
findings of prototype fluid ends

in field trials. | have completed
investigative disassemblies and
magnaetic particle inspections of
the trial units. | participated In the
examination of selacted fractures
1o determine initiation points and
fafure modes at the University

of Strathclyde. | discovered the
resources available to engineering
teams within the Group through the
Weir Advanced Research Centre,

Whils in Scotland, | attended the
Weir Group Graduate Developmeni
Programme and participated in
team-building and personal
development activities with
colleagues from six countries
drawn from all three divisions

of the Welr Group.

During that week, | saw the
embodiment of Weir values in my
colleagues: valuing people, warking
together, leadarship, and integrity.

| laft with a greater understanding
of how The Weir Way embraces
Innovation end collaboration across
the global community.

As | approach completion of

the first hatf of the programme,

| have digscovered the high level of
support Weir offers tor my personal
davelopment. Gaining exposure to
so many areas of the company this
earty in my career has taught me
two thinga. First, intellect, merit,
and capability are valued by Weir.
Second, the Weir values are upheid
universally across all industries,
locations, companies, and cultures.
Looking ghead to my final year of
the programme, | will be involved

Iov aftermarkat operations at an
SPM service caentre and | will

gain ¢cross-divisional expasure in
research and devsiopment and
new product introduction activities
with the Minerats Division,
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Directors’ Report: Review of the year

Operational Review
Waeir Minerals
Dean Jenkins, Divisional Managing Director

During 2012, the division has continued
to focus on leveraging its sector-leading
market presence to drive sales of a
broader range of solutions to customers,
as technological innovation continued

to develop our product portfolio.

Order input Revanue Opersting profit
£1,322m £1,3349m £256m

*7% +12% +21%
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Key priorities and progress in 2012
£xpand global production capacity

- Double digit capacity increases in Chilean and European
foundry operations to suppont growth, with planning
underway tor further globa! foundry expansion.

- Capacity added in Europe, Mexico and South Africa
to support the broader product range, with invastment
in infrastructure end todling to support comminution
products and rubber lining systems,

- Actions undentaken to align divisional capabiity with
global customer demand.

Continue to drive market share in anciltary
products and services

- Linatex product developments supporting Increased
cross-selling.

— Strong growth in slurty transportation ancillaries.

- Good revenue parformance from organically
daveloped screens range.

Teke product innovation to new areas
within the mill circuit

- Organic development of screen media and
maechanical eeals,

- Significant materials development for minerats
and oil sands markets with new hard chrome
white irons and ol sands hose technologias.

- New Mutiflo Highwall pump launched for
dewatering appications.

Build further on the collaborative successes
of the Oil & Qas Forum to develop now products
and sarvices

- Gladiator Sturry Pump designed and taunched
with Minerals materials taechnology contributing
to enhanced product wear fifo.

- Swellable packers tor oil and gas downhote driling
applcations developad using Minerals elastomer
technology end galning market eccepiance.

- Linatex frac discharge hose designed tor trac shary
transportation with independent testing showing
greater abrasion resistance than compétitor products.




Market review

Global ore production increased by an estimatad 3%

in 2012, ungerpinned by continued demand growth in
Chinese and emerging marksts for key commodities such
as copper. Average ore yields continued to tall, requiring
graater levels of processing to matntain the same volume
of refined commodity and further supporting aftermarkst
damand growth.

Capital expenditura in the mining sector in 2012 remained
ahead of the historically high levels geen in 2011, with over
£85bn committed to a number of greenfiedd devolopments
and brownfield expansions. a 9% increase on 2011
daspite new project activity cooling off tom the peak seen
in the first hatt of the year. Prices ramained above incentive
lavels tor most key commodities during the year. Second
hatt macro-economic concemns over Europe and China
resulted in cormumodity price falls, particularty in iron ore
and coal markets, leading to the deferal of some project
decisions in Australla and Bras]. Industrial unrest

Impacted activity in South Africa in the second hal!f of the
year. Elsewherg. conditions in key minerals regions wera
posithve. Buoyant activity levets continued in South
Amarica and the rest of Atrica, driven by copper and gold
projects. Weir has benefited trom its exposure to these

The completion of existing off sands projacts and resulting
increases in production levels supported activity in North
America, aithough néw project activity levels were low,
reflecting the emerging price discount of Canadian heavy
oll compared 10 the WTI benchmark price as a result of
transportation constreints.

Operstional performance

A recard financial periormance from the division was
underpinned by broadly positve conditions in most mining
markats and continued succass in the dalivery of s
growth strategy. Capital Investment levels supported
{urthar growth in the installed base of slurry pumps, with
new project commissioning benefiting production volumes
and increasing levets of aftarmarket demand. Targated
capacity addition and product localisation has supported
growth in the division's broad range of ancillary products
and services. This growth has been supporied by
expansion of the sales and service footprirt. a key source
of markst differentiation, with 13 new sites opensd
worldwide. Service capabilty has also been enhanced
through investment In kocal machining capability and
technical skitts to support tha growing product portiotio.
The division enhanced its differentiatad technology
posiion during the year with a number of advances In
materials tachnology &t our giobal research centras which
will comribute to prokanged wear resistance in customers’
critical applications. Minerals research and development
afforts were also &t the heart of major product Launches
for ol and gas markets.

Order Input increased by 7% to £1,322m (2011: £1,239m).
Original equipment orders grew 3% with growth weighted
10 the first half of the year, Aftermarket orders grew

10%. with the growth rate recovering in the fourth
Guarter fallowing third quarter destocking in Australia
and Brasil, Attermarket ordars represented 60% of total
input 2011: 58%).

Linked to new projéct activity, the division continued
tc experience good levels of demand for sturry pumps.
Aftermarket input strengthened across a range of
commoditias with the benefits of a large and growing
installed base reflected in 10% order growth in sturry
pump spares and strong input trends across o larger
aftermarket portfolio including several multi-million
pound orders {or cyclones and vaies in South Amaerica
and Canada and a multi-million pound hose contract
tor a Latin American project, The division also grew

its presence In the screen machine and screen

meciia markst, benetting from investment in localised
manufacturing. The first major contract awards for
Linatax wear resistant ined valves and cyclones were
recaived for one of the world's largast mineral sands
projocts in East Africa, a highlight of a strong overall
2012 pertormance in the African markst. Emerging
markets actounted for S3% of input 2011 47%}

with order growth from South American and African
markets rsing by 18% and 30% respoctively.

Revenue increased by 12% to £1,334m (2011: £1,185m),
Original equipment sales increased 8% and accounted
for 40% of revanues (Z011: 41%) with second half sales
broadly matching the prior year record. Production-
driven attermarket revenues increased by 13%.

Operating profit Increasad by 21% to £256m 2011: £211m}
as tha division bensfited from streng revenue growth and
margin expansion.

Operating margin increased to 19.2% (2011: 17.7%)

initiatives, productivity gains and effective cost controt,
In the second hall of the year margins were also supported
by targeted cost and headcount reductions In Brasl and
Australia, the markets haraest hit by falling coal and iron
org prices, with total one-off costs of £4m incurred in the
yaar (2011: £1m).

>

Tha Weir Group PLC Annus! Rapon and Finencis| Statemanta 2012 E:]




Directors® Report: Review of the yoar

Operational Review
Weir Minerals continued

Material matters

Harsh mining environments test processing equipment
to its limits. Poor material selection and hydraulic design
leads to shortened product life and loss of productivity,
often directly affecting the customer’s bottom line.

Improving the wear life of materials At the heart of many Welr Minsrals'

Is a daily focus at Weir Minerals
Technology Centres, These RAD
centres focus on extending
customer productivity by creating
new materials such as wear
resistant atloys and elastomners.
They also strive to develop the
deepest technical understanding
In the market of the factors that
affect material wear.

products are High Ghrome While
trons - twice as hard as stainless
stee! with many times the wear
resistance in abrasive mining
applicstions. At our Materials
Davelopment Technology Centre
in Sydney, Australia, one of the
world's foremost chrome-iron
materials sclentlsta Is leading the
development of a new uftra-wear
rasistant alioy alongside other
leading experts.

Mptaripls scientists developing
QIO Hors at the Materisls

WHEN A DAY’S LOST

PRODUCTION COSTS

Our acientiats have found new
ways to incorporate carbides
significantly harder than chromium
carbide, a breakthrough in creating
alloys with substantially improved
wear resistence. And we're also
addressing the one Achllles heel
of chrome irons - their brittleness —
by developing a process o create
material that has greater ductility
than ever before. This creates

the possibility of using truly wear
reaistant afloys in applcations that
traditionally required a compromise
between wear resistance and
toughness. This research work
directly supports the Group’s goal
o lowering customers’ total cost
of ownership.

Other recent innovations include
the development of A238, which is
a member of the hyparchrome alloy
tamily. Designed specifically for the
Canadian ol sands, this new alloy
has slready been successiully
triglted in an aggressive application
in one of the world's harshest
mining environments.

MILLIONS OF POUNDS,
MATERIAL MATTERS

8 The Weir Group PLC Annual Report and Finenclal Statameonts 2012




"E‘i“,334m

+12%

2041 en0 2010 restatad 51 2012 average esChengs rites.

nvestment

The division has invested throughout 2012 invalue chain
development with the focus on enhancing production
capacity and aligning globa) capabliity to customer needs
and divisions! growth plans. Capita) expenditure was
£50m 2011; £49m) as investment was made in foundry
and wear resistant lining production, as well as expansion
of the leading globa! sales and service footprint. Research
and development spend increased by 22% to £13m as
the division continued to develop its materials technology
positions and supportad collaborative innovation eftorts
across the Group.

In Chile, ipundry expansion addad 25% exira capacity
to capture growth opportunities in South American
markats in core products and wear resistam knings.
In Europea, an extension of the UK foundry operation
is newly compate, with tha installation of a fast-loop
smploying hi-tech manutacturing procassses adding
around 15-20% additional production capacity to
support the broader product portioko and giobal
demand. in Malaysia, agreemant was reached 1o
acquire a low cost foundry to support demand in
Asia-Pacific while planning advanced tor further
irvastment in North Amarican toundry cepacity.

Investmant in the organic growth of a screens range
and screen media has continued, with axpansion

of 8 sereens design centrs in South Africa. In India,
the kecal design and production of mechanical seals
commenced, providing a valuable low cost product
source for the division.

Thera wera ngw service centres added 1o the Minerals
service footprint during 2012 in the US, South Africa,
Russia, Scandinavia, Spain, Turkey, the Netherlands.,
Colombia and Australia, extending opportuniies to
better suppart customers end provide ancillary products
angd services.

Welr Minerals has atso added around 250 employeas
during tha year to support growth plans.

Opereating profit |
£256m
+21% n
m
————
1"
Outiook

Weir Minerels rernains well positioned to benefit from
the strong long term marke! tundamentats in mining and
minerais processing, undaminned by urbanisation in
emerging markets and their demand for raw materials.
This ongoing demand, coupled with daclining ore
grades, supports continuad substantial investment
above historic levels by miners over the coming years,
although the medium term nature of capital investment
may increasingly focus on browndeld and production
optimisation projects with abschute industry capital
expenditure levels expected to remain above 2010 levals.
Global ors production is expected to grow by over 3%
per annum through to 2015, supporting attermarkel
products and services growth.

In 2013 we expact mining capeax to decline retative to
2012 but remaln at levels supportive of the continued
expansion of the instalied base. While tewer greenfield
projects are expected to reach arder point comparnad 10
tho Tun rate in the first hal! of 2012, we expect B number
of brownfield expansions as miners focus On Maximising
returns from existing production assets. With the order
mix continuing to shift towards aftermarkat products
and services. market forecasts ot pasitive ore produciion
votume growth and a continuing focus on increasing

our market share of ancilary products and services
mean that we anticipate good growth in shorter cycle
attermarket orders. Togethar with delivery of a strong
opeaning order book, this is axpected to result in higher
2013 roevenues and operaling profits. After a stronger
than expacted second half 2012 margin pertormance,
operating margins are expacted to be ot 8 broadly similar
level to 2012 as the business balances the benefits from
the growing aftermarket mix alongside sensible cost
control and continued Irvestment in its growth plans.

Key priorities in 2013:

Develop global foundry capacity to meet
aftormarket domand

Invest in comminution process knowledge and
materials wear tachnology

Reduce laad timss and working capital through
global supply chain inltiatives

Continue development of Minerals and Oil &
QGas product portfolios through collaboration
and innovation
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Directors’ Raport: Review of the yoar

Operational Review
Welr Oll & Gas
Stave Noon, Divisional Managing Director

The division continued to successfully
pursue its strategic objectives in 2012
despite challenging pressure-pumping
market conditions.

Order Input Revernue Operating profit
£67/m £844m £211m
~22% +13% +14%

Tive Walr Qroup PLE Aonual Reoorn and Finenclat Statomenis 2012

The completed integration of Seaboard diversifies

tha division's exposure within the upstream sactor and
Novatech enhances the aftermarkat offering delivered

by Welr Ol & Gas through a growing, markat-lsading
service natwork. Mathena, Inc, acguired at the end of

the calendar year, axtands the prassure control capebiity
to tha driling phase of the well fecycle, enatling the
civision to provige driling, completion and production
solutions and to benefit from the technology requirements
of increasing environmental and safety regulation.

Key priorities and progress in 2012
Delivering on capacity supansion

- Expanded fow production capacity in the US and

Canada, with alignad Investment in broadening and
deepening the North American service offering.

- Complgted rapid response manutacturing centre in

Dubal and built a dedicated facility in Abu Dhabi to meat
axpectad demand growth in tubular repairs and valves.

- Opened AP| and ISO accredited service facllity in

Basra to cater for lhe growing oitfield equipment
markat needs of intarnational ol companias in Iraq.

Acquisition integration and effectively capturtng
synergy cpportunities

- Intagration activities completed on schedule for

Seaboerd and Novatech, with Seaboard’s North
American and intemational growth opportunities
validated and datedled action plans in placa.

Now product development

- Launched fivo new products for upstraam markets,

developed by the Oil & Gas Forum, focused on maeting
customaer demand lor longer lite products in shale
applications, including the Stampeda swellable packar
and SPM Duratast fluid end.

- Broadened pressure control portfolio with the

davelopmert by Weir Oil & Gas Dubal of a DNV
ceriified manifold for major oifield service customers,

- Successiul launch of bundlad aftermarket offering,

reducing operationat complexity tor customers.

Completion of downstream restructuring

- Production ot all overhung and single stage vertical

pumps underway at fulty cperational Polish vatue
engineering cermntra.

- Low cost supply chain established,




Markot review

In North American pressune-pumping markats, ths dual
attects of US natural gas pricas faling below economic
incentive levels and retalively high, stabie oil prices
rasulted In e shitt of drilling and complotion activity trom
dry gas to oil and iquids rich shala formations. Over the
yeaar, US horizontal gas-directed rig court declned by
43% whie horizontat oit and iquids rig count increased
by around 28% with total US land rig count taling by 13%.
A docling was seen in customer activity over the final
quarter of the year as 2012 driling and complation
budgets were exhausted.

Advances in technology continue o reduce the tme
required to drifl and complete a well, with the number

of wetts drilied outstripping tha movement in average rig
cound, supporting demand for pressuna control equipment
proviciers. In pressure-pumping, analysts estimate that
frac equipment utiisation rates had fallen to around

75% by the end of 2012' with tota) North American frac
demand of around 13 million horsepower at the end of
2012 ot similar levels to H1 2011,

Aftarmarket activity was Biso impacted, with overstocking
of fuid ends in anticipation of higher activity end lower
equipment utlisation and service intensity, leading to
pricing pressure in specific product categories. Demand
in intemationa! pressure-pumping markats grow strongly
during the yoar with 38% growth in the frat fleet outside
North America to 4.4m' horsepower.

Middle East services merkals grew strongly, with
increased Saudi production and the ongoing rebullding
of lragy oiffield infrastruciure. In downstream markets.
pricing pressure in onginal equipment marksts began
to ease with good market opportunities in the FPSO
{Fioating Production, Storago and Offioading) sector.

Operational pertormance

Ths givision has delivered a resilient financial
performance, maintaining overall margins despite fast
changing markst conditions. In & challenging North
American upstream environmant, operational capablity
and capacity was rapidly eligned to market needs.

Tha divisicn grew its market share in certain product
sagments despite lower overall activity levels, and the
integrations of the Seaboard and Novatech acquisitions
were complated, with plans developed to Internationalise
both businesses and to enter the frac flowback market.
Weir's pressure-pumping-focused operaticns {SPM,
Masa and Novatech) rasponded quickly to changing
market conditions by reducing headcount, in-souncing
machining end Enplementing ean Initiaiives and cost
reduction programmes. Total annualised cost savings
trom thase initiatives were ¢.US$25m. The expanded
aftermarket pressure-pumping portioio has enablec
the successful bundiing of SPM, Mesa and Novatech

1. Source: Pac Vst Fobruary 2013.

products for customers, with annual commitments
secured from a number of large service companies.
Quislde North Amarica, intemnational opportunities
continue to progress, with Eke for (ke upstream
international input growing by over a third during the
year. Good progress was made by the Middia East
Service operations with tha award of a number of
significant contracts including 8 multi-milion pound
rotating equipment mairtanance contract for the
rafurbishment of the Rumaila ofifietd in kraq. Downstream
operations delivered a much improved pertenmance
on last year due to the first benefits of the completed
restructuring of the eperations.

Order input at £677m (2011: £870m) was 22% lowar and
419 iower Ike for Tke due to weakness in pressure-pumping
markets. Original equipmant input fell 44% and 66% like
for ke as pressure-pumping demand fell sharply as a resutt
of frac pump overcapacity. Aflgrmarket input was up 5%
but down 12% ke for like with strong growth in Services
otigel by lower aftsrmarkel pressure-pumping orders.

Like for iike upstream business input (SPM and Mesa)

ol 51% to £359m (US$569m), with quarterty order lovels
broadly fiat since the second quarnter against the baclground
of a declining rig count. A tota) of LIS$139m of 2011 orders
were cancelled in the year and reflacted as an opening
ordarbook adustment. input fram Seaboard was up on
the equivalent pre-acquisition period although growth
moderated in the second half as market activity levels fell.

Strong input growth was achieved at downstream and
Senvice operations, with Middle East Services benefiting
frorm an enhancad operations!l presence and increasad
activity levels in Saudi Arabla and traq. Improving
conditions in downstrearn markats contributed to higher
original equipment orders inclhuding a strategic contract
In the FPSO markst,

Revenue increased 13% to £844m (2011: £747m). but
was down 10% like for like with equivalent upstream
revenuas of £511m (USS810m) (2011: USE982m) In kne
with expectations. Seaboard revenues increased 10%
on the pre-acquishion period whilo Novatach revenugs
declined, reflecting pressure-pumping market conditions.
Service end downstream revenyss grew by 25%,

Operating profit nctuding joint ventures increased by
14% to £211m (2011: £185m} but fell 12% on a liks tor ke
basis. Seaboard end Novatech comiributed £45m before
integration costs of £3m (2019 acquisition and integration
costs: £5m). 10% higher than the equivatent pre-acquisition
period. Total one-off costs of £4m were incurmed in the
year {(2011: £11m}. Good profil progression at Service
operstions and a positive downstream peofit performance
also contributed,
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Directors” Report: Raview of the year

Operational Raview
Weir Oil & Gas continued

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION
WORLDWIDE

Cradle to grave asset
management

When equipment used in the upstream

oil and gas markets needs to be replaced,
it has to happen quickly or it affects

the customer’s bottom line.

Through its focus on equipment used for
eritical applications, Weir undarstands
this better than most. We don't simply
manufacture the equipment, we ensure
by working [n partnership with customers
that & can enhance the application and we
provide service and engineering expertise
to optimise performance throughout the
life of the installed bass of aquipment.
The aim ls 1o lower operational cost and
comptexity for our customers.

Weir Oil 8 Gas has built the leading
sarvice presence in North American

shale plays, recognising that customer
proximity is critical in an industry where
downtime can cost milkons. During 2012,
the devetopment of a focusad aftermarket
pressure-pumping team has taken the full
otfering of SPM, Novatech and Mesa to

market through one dedicated regional
contact. This provides customers with
the best local response and range of
afiermarket products and services
delivered through the largest service

and sates network in the North American
market. By leveraging the large installed
basa of $SPM pumps and incorporating
Novatech and Mesa Into the pressure-
pumping service natwork, the team has
enjoyed success by ‘bundling’ pump
expendables from the full aftermarket
product portiotio and growing sales

at the point of use. The ongeing
development of the Weir business model
in upstream markets has enabled us to
pgain markst share in tough conditions,
grow aftermarket revenues and, most
kmportantly, improve our egllity in
responding to customer demands.

CRADLE TO GRAVE
ASSET MANAGEMENT
DEVELOPING A LEADING
BUSINESS MODEL IN
THE ‘NEED IT NOW’
UPSTREAM MARKETS

The Welr Group PLC Annual Report andd Finenclal Bustemonts 2012




Revenue

£844m

+13%

2011 and 2010 restatad a1 2012 average exchanga rates.

Operating margin of 25.0% (2011: 24.8%) increased
year on year, with upstream margins rasliient despite
challanging pressura-pumping markats, an improved
performance in downstream and Service businassas,
and lower one-off costs. On a like for Eke basis, margins
of 25.1% were down 40bps and in ling with expectations.
The divislon reacted quickly to the changing pressure-
pumplng marke! conditions by introducing a range

ol efficiency and cost reduction measures (o preserve
profitability. Underlying margins at Seaboard and
Novatech were in ine with the divisional average,
repressnting a 180bps improvement on the aquivalent
pro-acquiisition partod.

Investment

Weir Qil & Gas supported its growth plans during 2012
with capital expanditure of E52rm {2011 £32rm). Weir
SPM invested in flow capacity expansion and the division
also invested in integration projects a1 Seaboard and
Novatech. In response o the lower damand emwtronment
In North America, the previously announced US$75m
axpansion of Welr SPM was reduced to lass than US$60m,

The division continued to invest in extending its
manutacturing and service footprint. completing rapid
response manufacturing centres in Canada and Dubal
and opaning new service centres in Williston, North
Dakota; Pisasanton, Texas: Singapore. and Basra, Iraq.

Overall spending on research and daveloprment increasedt
by 45% to £8m as the division seeks to mamntain the strong
new product development momeanum establshed in 2012

Employees have been added across the division at those
businesses with strongest opportunities for growth,
atthough headcount at the prassure-pumping focused
operations was recuced in responsa to the lower
damand environment. The division comtinues to attract
quality people from the ol and gas industry as well as
devaloping and promoting intemal talent. Leadarship
development, business managamant and rotatianal
graduate programmes have affectively supported the
talent pipeline, matching skils needs to growth plans,

Outlook

The mediurn tanm cutioek tor global pressure-pumping and
pressure control markats remains positive, with cortinued
irvagtment in North American shale plays by national and
international ol companies. A relatively high end stable o3
price should support contiruing North American production
increases as the US pursues energy independence. Low
US gas prices ere expected to support increased US

gas fired power and industrial demand as US businesses
benek: fram the compelitiveness of lower energy input
costs, Intfemational shale developmen Is expected to
contintse to grow, with Russla, China, Argentina, North
Africa, Saudi Arabla and Australia becoming larger markets
over the next two to threa yaars.

Operating profit )

£211m

+14% ]

Pressure-pumping markets are sxpected to ramain
compatitive In 2013 and our pressure-pumping business
unit {SPM. Masa and Novatech) entered the year with a
considerably lower orderbook than the prior year perod.
Minimal lavels of original equipmant capex are expected
throughout 2013 with material overcapacity continuing
to atfect frac pump demand. With low singla digh rig
count growth forecast, aftermarket input is expected

to progressively incraase as customars work through
inventory levels,

In pressure control, Seaboard is expectad 1o make

good progress, as the business seeks 1o benafit from the
organic growth opportunities available In frac rental, frac
fowback and Intemational markets. Additicnal geographic
growth opportunhles also exist for Mathena's product
range through the division's leading service network.

At the Middle East Services businesses ragi and Saudi
Arablan markets are expected to be particularty strong.
A continuation of the improved downsiream parformance
Is forecast.

In totay, divisional revenues including Mathana are
axpectad to ba slightly lower year on year with undartying
operating marging broadly in line with 2012 as exposure
to prassura-pumping falls to around 50% of divisional
ravanues [c.15% of Group revenues),

Key priorities in 2013

Davelop aftermarket business model and
bundling strategy in preasure-pumping uni

Continua momentum in new product development

Capture Ssaboard domestic and intemational
growth opportunities

Capitalise on growth opportunities in
Saudl Arabla and Irag

integrate and reslise the benefits expected
from the Mathena acquisition

Enhance pressure control offering
in North American upstrosm merkets

Increaso supply chain flexibllity and reduce
working capital
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Directins’ Report: Raview of the yoar

Operational Review
Weir Power & industrial
Kevin Spencer, Divisional Managing Director

Despite depressed markets in 2012,
Weir Power & Industrial demonstrated
good progress during the year, as
momentum built behind the division’s

recent strategic initiatives.

Ovdier Input Operating profit
£361m £323m £31m
+18% +T% +20%

The Weir Qroup PLC Anfegl Repon and Finsncisl Slaternents 2012

Key priorities and progress in 2012

Improving cost oss through increased
product localisation In india, South Korea and China

~ Salacted vaiva product transiars to india and China
well underway.

- South Korean input more than doubled,

- Owar 30% of valve cutput sourced from kow
COSt countrias.

Capltallsing on a broader product range and
incraased routes to market through a fully
integrated aates structure

- QOverall input up 18%.

— Emerging markat sales hub Input up 73%.

~ Consistent customar ratationship management
system established. enhancing communication,
collaboration and sates and operational planning.

Expanding presance In oll and gas end markets

- Ol and gas markst revenuos up 28%.
- Joim marketing initiatives with Wealr Oll & Gas
established.

Deoveloping competilive advantage through
product innovation

=~ Input from new product initiatives more than doublad.

-~ Order secured for design, manufacture and
qualification of pressure relief valves for the world's
first fourth generation nuclear reactor in China,

- Ditfarentiated design developed in nuclear severe
sarvice and control and choka valve rangas.

= A new range of staam safety vaives, STARSTEAM,
developed for overpressure protection of power boilers.

Markel roview

Nuclear new build activity in the US and Europe
mmainad on hold as post-Fukushima safety raviews
concluded, with activity throughout the year centred on
Agia-Pacific, Eastern Europe and the Middle East, where
Korean EPCs won a number of major projects. Nuciear
malntenance and repair markets were posilive in the

US and the UK, which, togsther with increased CCGT
{Combinad Cycle Gas Turbine) new build activity in North
America, provided some mitigation against tower nuciear
new build activity. In North America. low aconomic
growth and power prices led to project cancellations and
ditficudt trading conditions in general industrial, power
and hydro markats although a number of hydro project
opportunities emerged towards the end of the year,
While European renewables markets continued to be
subdued, the division gaired traction towards the end

of the year in international projects.




Operstional performance

The strateglc focus of the division during 2012 has bean
driving Input end orderbook growth, with restructuring

of the valves businesses undartaksn in order to develop
a strong and unified giobal plattorm for the valves portfolio.
At the same time, Initiatives to enhance operational

with further leverage of the low cos1 Supply chain and
additional supply chain actions underwary acrass the
manutacturing cperations.

Order input increased by 18% to £361m (2011: E306m)
with strong growth from valves and service operations.
Nuclear input of £72m 2011; £71m) included a mutti-
milion pound project award from a Korean EPC for
nuckagar service control vaives in new build reactors in
the Middle East. Overall, control valve ordars mora than
doubled, benefiting from momentum in strategic growth
initiatives and a strong first iull year performance by

Woetr International. Low levels of activity in North America
atfectad the LS commaercial vaive business In the sacond
half of the year while Weir American Hydro secured a
numbser of muki-miion dollar onders from major North
American power companies for rehabilitation, turbine
runner raptacement end related field service work,
including tha Nine Mie Dam hydro project towards the
end of the pariod. Europaan input was up ysar on year
despite difficult economic conditions in the eurozone.
Aftermarket input of £168m {2011: £146m) benefited from
vaive end service opportunities. The proportion of orders
from power markets was 60% (2011: 57%), with input
from the oll and gas markat growing by 12% year on
year. Input trom the Middle East, Alrica and Asia
incraased by over 30%.

Revenus increased by 79% 10 £323m (2011; £301m)

with a strong full year contribution from Weir Intemnational
in South Korea. Like for ke revenuss were up 5% with
ravenues from emerging markets increasing by 11% as
the divislon banefits from ltg increasoed routes to markat.

Operating profit increased by 20% to £31m (2011:
£26rmy, 1% ke for ke, benafiting from strong revenua
growth in the valva operations and a first full year
contribution from Walr International.

Opsrating mearghn increased to 9.7% (2011: 8.7%)
benefiting from measures to improve cost
competitiveness alongside a reduction in one-off
costs, which totalled £1m (2011: £5m),

Investment

Capital expenditure of £19m (2011: £13m) included

a new Montrea! service centre for North American
hydro operations and the consolidation in July of the US
valva production faclitles in a single faciiity at ipswich,
Massachusetts supporting the creation of a unified

giobal valves platform. The opening of a sales office

in Secul, South Koraa provides additional traction within
the Asia-Pecific region for our control valve, service ang
speciality pump businesses. Investment in research and
development was £2m.

Outiook

Global macro-economic concarns continue to slow

the recovery of general industrial markets with an
expected improvement in plobal power markets leading
to Increased service and aftermarkat demand. Several
major Koraan nuclesr and conventional domestic power
plant projects are proceading in 2013 and Koman EPCs
continue to successiully capture global opportunities.
Wedr is well positioned to benefit through its global
presence and its broadenad vaive range, inchxdling good
control valve opportunities. As tha businass continues
10 expand imemationally we $08 an incraasing range of
opportunitias tor the renewablas operations. The division
also expects 10 benelit trom targating the aftermarket
opportunities of the large vaive installad base outside
North Amarica. Strategic initiatives are expected

to support increased organic growth, particularty

in Asia-Pacific and the o and gas sector,

The financial performance in 2013 is expected to benefit
from a strong opening orderbook, steadily improving
power markets, continuing momentum in strategic
inftlatives and ongoing operational axcellance actions
resulting in revenue and profit growth with margins
broadly in ine with 2012,

Key priorities in 2013

Embed global valve struciure end drive global
sales hub performance

Further leverage valve aftermarket opportunitios

Develop opeorational capabliitias to support
highor activity lovels

Internationalise hydro, wind and power
service offerings

Continue expansion in oll and gas markets

Continue new product development and
product extenslon

L
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Directors’ Report: Review OT the yesr

Opaerational Review
Waeir Power & industrial continued

PARTNERS IN PRODUCTION
WORLDWIDE
Global capability

DESIGNED IN THE UK.
BUILT AND DELIVERED
BY WEIR’S GLOBAL
CAPABILITY
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+7%

Operating profit

£31m

+20%

2011 and 2C10 costatad at 2012 averade exchangs rates.

As drilling for oil ventures into
deeper waters and power station
technology becomes more efficient,
operating pressures rise.

Weir's severe service control valves
cope with the demands placed

on equipment by the high pressure
drops required to reach the correct
processing conditions in power
stations and cil and gas drifling.

The X-Stream trim for severe service
vatves was launched in late 2011,
Designed to provide greater control
of pressure drops whilst reducing
noise end erosion, the process of
taking this innovation to markel
demonstrates the value of Weir's
globa! capability.

Product development was undertaken

at the division's UK valve faciiity in
Eftand, with sourcing of material and
manutacturing mathods drawn from
around our giobhal operations. Flow
testing took place on & Custom-
designed rig in the engineering
labaratory of the University of
Huddersfisld with the outcome
validating the product’s poaltion

in the high value, high end tachnica}
performance control valve segment.

The product has been launched
through the division's recently
estabilshed global sales hubs, with
mere than 100 arders received for
instaltations worldwids, Including n
North and South America, Eurcpe,
the Middie East and Asia-Pacific.

A customer-focused innovation
delivered through global experlise.
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Directors’ Report: Review of the year

Financial Review
Jon Stanton

The Group performed strongly over 2012, despite
the uncertain macro-economic environment,
generating an operating profit (before exceptional
items and intangibles amortisation) of £486m,

an increase of 18% on the previous year.

This result demonstrates the strength of our operating
model and the dhverss markets and geographies in which
wa aparate with tha impact of chalenges in North American
Qll & Gas cperations oftset by strength in Minerals and the

QOrder input at £2.397m on a constant currency basis
decreasad 2% and was 9% lowar on a lika for ke basis
{exciuding the impact of acquisitions and transaction and
Integration costs). Original equipmant orders were down
13% {down 23% lika for like) with the impact of North
American pressure-pumping markst waakness partly
offsat by growth in most key Minerals markets and very
good input growth at Power & Industrial. Aftermarkest
ordsrs wera up 89 (up 49% like for ike) with double digit
increases in Minerats and Power & Industrial. Aftermarket
orders represented 57% of overall input (2011: 529}
Minerals order iInput for 2012 was £1,322m, an Increase
of 7% on 2011, bath in constant cumency and like for tika.
Input in Ol & Gas of £677m was 22% down on 2011
{down 41% (ke for Eke) with the performance of our recent
acquisitions, Seaboard and Novatech, broadly In line
with our expeciations, Finally, input in Power & industrial
showed strong growth from valves and sarvice operations,
reporting an overall 18% increase to £361m (up 13% like
for like, excluding the Impact of Weir international),

BUILDING ON OUR
RECORD FINANCIAL

PERFORMANCE
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Operating margins' (%)

19.1%

+110bps

1. Contimdng cperations exchading rsms 4 il

Profit before tax' (Em)

+12%

Rovenue grow by 12% to £2,533m on a constant
currency baats, up 4% like tor tke. Original equipment
represented 45% with aitermarkst revenues accounting
1or 55%. a 200 basis point incresse over the prior year.
Emerging marksts revenuss increased by 23% with the
proportion of totel revenues coming trom these markets
increasing to 37% (2011: 34%). Minerals revenues

wers 12% higher at £1.334m {2011: £4,185m} on both

a constant currency and like for like basia. Oil & Gas
revenues, including the contribution trom Seaboard and
Nowvatech, increased by 13% to £844m but were down
10% §ko for Eka with equivalent upstream revanues

of £511m (USS$810m) (2011: USE382m) in Ene with
expeciations. Power & intlustrial revenues grew from
£301m in 2011 to £323m in 2012, an increase of 7% (up
5% like for like). Togather, the acquisitions made in 2011
and 2012 {Weir International, Seaboard and Novatech)
contributed £182m of revenue against a 2011 equivalant
protorma figure of £172m, Revenues from other Group
companias (LGE Procoss) were £37.7m in the year
{2011; £26.3m).

Operating profit from continuing operations before
excaptional items and intangibles amortisation increased
by 18% to £485.8m (2011: £412.7m} after a net negative
currency translation impact of circe C1m. The increase

In undertying performance was driven by strong revenue
growth and margin expansion (n Minersls, a positive
contribution from acquisitions and reduced one-off costs,
oitsst partly by second half weakness in upstream Qil &
Gas opergtions, Cne-off costs of £9.3m were incwred in
the period [2011: £16.6m} of which £4.0m (2011: £8.8m)
related to acquisition transaction and integration costs.
The 2011 and 2012 acquisitions contributed £47.5m

to opergting profit against a 2011 equivalent proforma
contribution ¢f £41.2m, excluding transaction and
integration costs. The profit contribution from cther
Group companias was £2.5m 2011 £3.0m) while cortral
costs were £14.9m {2011: £14.1m), & mOdast increass
reflecting the loss of rental income of circa £2m following
disposal of the Catheart property in 2011 offset by cost
management itiatives.

Operating margin (also from continuing opemations
betore exceptional hams and intangibles amortisation)
was 10.1%, an incraass of 110 basis points on the prior
year (2011: 18.0% and 18.1% on a constant currency
basis), reflecting a strong second half irmprovement in
Minerals and continued margin resilence in Gil & Gas.
On a like for like basis, the operating margin was 18.8%
{2011: 18.5%). On a constant currency basis, the Minerals

divisional operating margin was 18.2% {2011: 17.7%).
ahaad of expectations reflecting the strengthening
aftermarket revenue mix alongside benefits from
procurement initlatives, productivity gains and effective
cost control. The O & Gas operating margin was 25.0%
(2011: 24.8% constani curmency) with upstream margins
resilient despite challenging markets, an improved
performance in downstreamn and service businesses and
lower one-otf costs. Excluding the impact of acqulsitions,
the Qi & Gas divisional margin was 25.1% [2011: 25.5%).
The operating margin in Power & industrial was 9.7%
{2011: 8.7% constant cumency) and, exciuding the Impact
of apquisitions, was 8.3% {2011: 8.7%).

Eamings befare intarest, Tax, Depreciation ond
Amortisation FEBITDA’)

Depreciation and impatrment of property, plam and
equipment and investmert property (n the year was
£49.4m [2011: £37.7m) resulling in operating profit from
continuing operations befors depreciation and intangibles
amortisation of £535.0m (2011: £450.4m).

Exceptional itams and Intangibles amortisation

Total Group operating profit for the year of £469.1m

{2011 restated for fakr value seguisition accounting:
£407.9m} Includes an exceptionsl credit of £20.2m

(20¥1: £19.0m) and intangibles amortisation of £36.7m
{2011 restated: £23.8m). The excaptiona! credit in the
current year comprises the net of threa tems, tha largest
of which is the gain on sale of LGE Process of £30.5m
which was completad on 28 December 2012. Otfsetting
this are () a charge of £4.5m repressenting the uplitt

of irventory 10 nat realisable value on acquisition being
charged against profits as the inventory is sold (as recorded
at the half yeary, and (i} an uplitt of £5.8m to the net present
value of contingent consideration payabls in respect of the
acpisition of Welr international! in ight of updatod financiaf
projections for the businass. The exceplional credit of
£19.0m in the prior year represented a past service gain
recognised undar IAS19 on ths change to providing
CPiinked instead of RPi-linked benefits on the Group's
UK pension pians. Intangibles amortisation has increased
year on year as a direct result of tha recent ecquisitions.

Net finance coats

Net finance costs were £45.1m in total {2011; £17.3m)
due to the incraase in net dabt following the Seaboard
and Novatech acquisitions and the related US private
placemont issue.
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Directors’ Repart: Review of the year

Financial Review continued
Jon Stanton

The tatal net finance chamge comprises four components,
the mos1 significant of which is the interest cost of
£46.5m (2011: £19.4m) on the Group’s nat borrowings
(inctuding amounts in relatlen 10 derivative Enancial
Instruments). The balance comprisas finance income

of £5,2m (2011: £4.3m)}, & £1.2m charge (2011; £1.3m
charge) in relation to the Group's dofined benefit pension
plans and an excaptional cost of £2.6m (2011 £0.7m)
being the unwinding of the discount on the contingent
consideration Eability for the Waelr Intermational acquisition
in 2011. This cost has increased on the prior year for two
reasons; fustly, the prior year comparative ralated to the
six month period post eoquisition compared to the full
year In 2012: and secondly, the contingant conglideration
payabla has been raassessed in the current year s
noted above, this increasing the level of discount unwind
recorded. The total contingant consideration recorded
on the balance sheet in respect of a acquisitions

is £24.8m (2011: £24.6m), the marginal increase year

on ysar being the net of the increasa relating to Waeir
International and tha payment of £8.4m.

Net finance costs {excluding retirement benefit

relatad amounts and exceptions] tems) were covered
11.8 timas by operating profit from continuing operations
{betore exceptional items and intangibles amortisation)
(2011: 27.3 imes).

Profit before tax from continuing operations but betore
excoplonal ltams and intangibles amortisation incraased
by 12% to £443.1m {2011: £396.3m}) and 4% on a bke

for like basis. Reported profit belore tax from continuing
operations incraasad by 8% to £424.0m {2011 restated:
£390.8m) atter intangibles amortisation of £36.7m

(2011 restated: £23.6m) and the net exceptional credil

of £20.2m (2011: £18.0m).

The tax ¢charga for the year of £124.2m (2011: £114.2m)
on profil batare tax om continuing operations before
exceptional itemns and intangibles amortisation of
£443.1m {2011: £306.3m) reprasents an underlying
affective tax rale of 28.0% (2011: 28.8%), reflecting a8
reduction in US state taxas as a result of the changing
profile of our business within the US and the reduction
of the rate of UK corporation tax. The Group's policy
with regard to tax mattars is discussed in a later
section of this report,

Discontinued operations

The income statarment for 2012 includes income

from discontinued operations of £3.3m (2011: £19.9m)
represaming the release of unutilised provisions in relation
to previous disposals on expiration of the tax warranty
periods, This amount was reported in the first haft of

the yaar. The incoma from discontinued operations ot
£19.9m in the prior year retated to the net gain on disposal
of the former Werr Pumps taciity at Cathcart, Glasgow 1o Ciyde
Union, subsequently acquired by SPX Civde UK Limited.

Eamings per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations before
exceptional tems and intangibles amortisation increased
by 12% to 150.1p {2011: 133.6p). Reported eamings

per share Including exceptional items, intangibles
amortisation and profit from discontinued operations
was 148.6p (2011 restated: 141.2p). The weighted
average number of shares in issue increased to 212.2m
(2011: 211.2m}.

Cash flows

Cash generatad by operations befors working capita!
movements increased by 13% to £515.5m 2011; £457.8m).
Working capital outliows of £116.9m (2011: E155.3m)
were driven by higher than expected inventory levels
and a subsequant reduction in payables due to lower
matarials purchases in upstream Ofl & Gas, partty citset
by an overall improvement in receivablas. Tha initial
benafiis of a number of supply chein initiatives resulted
in gecand half working capital infliows of around £10m.
Net cash generated from operations ncreasad by 32%
from £302.6m to £388.6m representing an EBITDA

to cash conversion ratio of 75% {2011: 67%).

Nat capital expenditure incmased from £81.4m in 2011
to £116.3m In 2012 principally to add capagity in the
Minerals division and investment in expanded fiow
capacily in SPM. The settlement ot financing derivatives
resulted In & net cash outflow of £11.0m {2011: £10.9m).
Additional pension contributions of £7.5m {2011: £6.6m)
wera paid in the period in respect of agreed speclal
contributions to the UK schemes. The year on year
incraase Is a result of increasad special contributions

to the exacutive scheme being agresad during the year.
Special contributions In 2013 will be £12.1m, taling to
£9.6m In 2014 and thereafter {ollowing completion of the
triannial funding valuation of the main UK staft scheme
In Decembar 2012.

Freo cash flow fram continuing operations was £62,.3m
{2011: £28.8m). Cuiflows in respect of acquisitions were
£125.2m with cash ganeration from disposals of £22.9m
giving a year end net debt of £888.9m (2011 £673.2m,
C679m constant currency). On a reportad basis, tha ratio
of net debt to EBITDA was 1.3 times and on a proforma
basis inchuding the Mathena acquisition was 1.5 times.

Retum on capital employed ['ROCE")

The Group's ROCE of 29.1% for 2012 on a like tor ke
basis {exciuding Seaboard and Novatech) was broadly
in line with the prior year {2011: 28.2%).
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Free Cash Flow

+116%

2. Continuing oporations EBIT (sxcluting

Reatum on Capital Employed?®

29.1%

-10bps

excupbonal lems arxd Sestoand and Novatech EBIT) divided by everage net sssets exciuding net dabt,

pension doicit (net of delerrad 1kx &sset) and S4sboerd entt Novalech net asaata

Dividends

The Board is recommending & 15% increase in the full
yoar dividend, the 28th consecutive year of dividend
growth, with a final dividend of 30.0p {2011: 25.8p} making
a total of 38.0p for the year (2011: 33.0p). Dividend cover
(baing the ratio of eamings per share from contiwing
operaticns befora exceptional kems and intangibles
amartisation to dividend per share) of 4,0 times s in line
with 2011, H approved, the finz| divicend will be paid on
31 May 2013 1o shareholdens on the registes on 3 May
2013. The Board ai$0 plans a further double digit increase
in the tull yaar dividend in 2013.

Acquisitions and disposals

On 22 Febnuary 2012, the Group completed the acquisition
of Novatech LLC for an equivalent enterprise vatua of
£111m (US$178m). This business has been successiully
integrated into the O & Gas division end ts performing

in ling with expaciations given cumam upstream market
conditions. The post-scquisiion trading of Novatech is
included in these results with 2012 atso repressnting the
first financial year to include a contribution from Seaboard,
the acquisition of that business having completed at the
end of 2011,

On 28 December 2012, the Group completed the disposal
of LGE Process to Babcock international Group plc for an
enerprise value of £23m,

Finally, on 20 Decamber 2012, the Group announced its
agreemeant to acquire Mathena, inc a ieading provider of
pressure control mntal equipment and services for onshore
ot and gas drifing applcations, tor an initial considatation
of US$240m with a maximum further payment of US$145m
based on achisvement of profit targets. This acquisition
waas completed on 31 December 2012 and accordingty
there is no impact on these financial statements.

Tax policy

The Group's strategic tax objectives are to:

- comply with all applicable tax aws and regulations.
including the timely submission o all tax raturng and
tax payments: and

— davelop and maintain strong working relationships with
local tax authorities and undertake ell deatings with 1ax
authorities in 8 professional and timely manner,

The Group has strong controls and clear policies and
procedures covaring tax, which rmust ba followed by al
finance personnel. We take a conservalive approach to

all tax planning with the overarching aim of paying the right
amount of 1ax at the right time in each tax jurisdiction.

As a large muiti nationg!, we conduct our business affairs
in @ way which is efficient from a tax perspactive however,
wa do not undertake tax planning for its own sake.
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It tarms of cash tax, the Group pald incoma tax of
£104.8m in 2012 across all of its jurisdictions compared
to £97.3m in 2011. In line with the proportion of the Group
operating in North Amarica, the amount of tax paid in that
gecgraphy is the highest across the Group. Net cash tax
paid in the UK in 2012 across corpoeation tax, VAT and
payroll taxes was approximately C43m (2011; £38m).

Treasury management

The Group is financed through a combination of bank
debt, fixed rate private placement notes and equity. The
capital structure is managed centrally with the cbjectives
of aptimising capital efficiency, diversifying the investar
base, achigving an orderty maturity of funding yet
malntaining & good degree of financial headroom,

The principal financial risks (aced by the Group are those
retating to tiquidity, foreign currency and cradh risk. The
Group's treasury policies and procedures, which are
revigwed end updated on a regular basis, seek to reduce
these financial risks. Within this framework, the Group
uses financial assets and liabilities including derivatives
to hedge certain foreign axchange and interest rate risks.

Funding and liquidity

The Group's cbiective ia to maintain a balance batween
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
ovordrafis, bank lbans and long term fixed rate notes.

On 16 February 2012, the Group mads a placing of
attractively priced long term debt with the private
placement markets in the US, to the value of USS1bn.
The weighted average all-in rate is 4.16% with the
weighted average termn 9.6 years, The proceeds were
used to tund the Novatech acquisition and repay certain
borrowing facilities, including Seaboard acquisition
faciities. With regard 1o the revolving credi tacilities in
place, £148m was drawn down under these at the end of
the year leaving an undrewn facility of £347m. In addition,
the Group has an amortising term loan of US$300m
{£153m @t the end of the year} which matures in 2014.

Al covenants were mot gt 28 December 2012 with
significant headroom under each financial ratio.

The Group hsid net cash batances of £384.2m at the end
of 2012 {2011: £108.6m) represanting oparating batances
heid by the Group’'s subsidiaries. Of this total, £313.5m was
held in the UK (2011: £48.5m), As at 28 Dacembar 2012,
the avaliable funding headroom was partty in ptace for
the acquisiiion of Mathena Inc, due to teke place post
year end. The acquisition completed as planned on

31 Dacember 2012 at which time required cash and dabt
resources were utiisad from the avallable headroom.




Directors' Report: Review of the year

Financial Review continued
Jon Stanton

The Group has edditional commitied and uncommitted
bonding faciities under which guaranteas are issuad
in orcer to support commearcial activities.

Credlt managemani

The Group's credit dsk ks primarily sttributable to its

trade recelvables with risk spread over a langa number

of countrias end customers. Them & no significant
concentration of credit risk. Credt worthinass chacks

are undertaken before entering into contracts with new
cusiomers and credit imits are set as appropriate. We also
use trade finance instrumenis such as letters of eredit and
insurance to mitigate any idantified risk. The Group's
exposure 10 the credil sk of financial institutions s limited
by tha adherence to counterparty irmits and by only traging
with countarparties that have a strong cradil standing
basad on ratings provided by the major agencles.

Interest rate risk management

The Group's dabt is denominated in a combination of fixed
and variable ratss of interest. h ts our policy to maintain

o proportion of debt at fixed rates of interest subject io the
future outiook tor the level of interest rates. A &t the and
of 2012, the proportion of the Group's debt at fixaed rates
was 71% compared to 20% as at the end of 2011 due to
the turther private placement issuance noted praviously.

Forelgn exchange

The Group is exposed to movameants in exchange rates
for transactions undartakan in non-fupctional curmencies
of the operating companies concemed and the transiation
of foreign currency denominated net assels and pmofit and
056 itarns,

Al material transactional currency axposunes are hadged,
usuzaly by means of torward contracts theraly ensuring
certainty over revenue and costs. Subject to local exchange
controts, foreign exchange transactons are exscuted by the
central treasury tunction. No speculative transactions are
undartaken. Although hedging is carried out for al material
econamic exposures, only two subsidiaries applied cash
Now hedge accountng under LAS39, one of which was LGE
Process which was disposed of at the end of the year.

The Group manages a proportion of the potantial curmency
transiation exposures from US doliar denominated nst
investments through a combination of US doliar borrowing,
forward foreign curmency contracts and cross currency
swaps, The strengthening of steding relative to 2011 against
maost main currencies, offset by a woakening against the
Chisan Peso, resufted in a nst loss on translation of net
assets of £46.3m, inchuding the elfact of the balance

sheet hedging programme. The fair value of derivetives
dasignated as net Investmertt hedges at 28 December
2012 was a liability of £0.8m (2011: £27.6m) reflecting
primarily the settiernent of floating rate cross cumency
swaps during the year.

The Group does nat hedge torelgn currency transtation
exposures related to profit and loss items.

Further information on financial risk management
objectives and policies can be found in note 30
1o the Group financial statements,

Retiremant bonefits

The Group has five defined bansfit pension plans. the
largast of these being the two UK plans. The Group has
sought to pro-aciively manage its exposure to its pension
ptansg and more than half of the liabilities of the main UK
scheme are hedged via insurence policles, providing
signiicant protection against changes in markest conditions.
Over the last year, the discount rate appéed to the pension
liabiltias has decreased from 4.8% to 4.3% with RP1
inflation reducing from 3,1% Lo 2.9%. This has resulted

in a stight increase in the nst deflcit in the Group's
relirament benafil obfigations from £84.7m at the end

of 2011 to £90.4m gt the end of 2012, atthough this
represents a decrease of £13.9m on the poshtion at the
end of June.

Not asseto

Naot assats al the end of 2012 wera £1,310.3m, an incraase
of £192.8m on the 2011 lgvel of £1,117.5m (restated for
acquisition talr value accounting as explained in note 2).
This increasa is driven by the total net comprehensive
incoma for the year of £260.5m less dividends paikd

of £71.7m.

Litigation

Tha Company and certain subsidiaries are, from tima

to time. parties to legal proceadings and claims which
arise in the normal course of business. To the extant not
already provided for, the Directors do not anticipate that
the outcome of these proceedings and claims, either
individuatty or In aggregate. will have a material advarse
etfect on the Group's financial position.

Thera are 917 asbesios related claims outstanding

in the US {2011: 585) against Group companies. Thera
are 25 such claims in the UK (2011: 24). All actions are
robustly datended.

©On 6 Fegruary 2013, an Opinion & Ordar was filed with
the United States District Court, Southern District of
New York dismissing the ¢laim against the Company
(oeing one of many companies targeted) retating to a
civil action for damages arising from the UN Oil for Food
programma which was raised in the US, Subsaguantly
the Ireqi Government filed notice of appes! end at the
time of writing there has been no ruling by the Court

on this appeal. We will continue to defend this action
vigorously,
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Critical accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in
eccordance with IFRS and the material accournting
policies ara sat out on pages B8 to 85 of this report.
Thera have baen no significant changes o the
accourting policies adopied in 2012

In the process of applying the Group's accounting

policies, management has applied certain judgements.

assumptions and estimates. These estimates and
assumptions are basad on historical exparience,
information avaitabia at the time and other factors
considered relevant, Those with tha most significan
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are sot out bedow. Furthar judgements,
assumptions and estimates are set out on page B9.

intangible assets

On the acquisition of & businegss it is necessary t1o
attribute tair values to any intangible assats acquired,
provided they meet the recognition criteria. The far
values of these intangitie assets are dependant on
astimatas of attributable future revenues, margins
and cash flows, as well as appropriate discount rates.
In addition, the alocation of usshyl Gves to acquired
intangible assets raquires the application of judgement
based on availabla information ang management
expectations &t the time of necognition.

Impalrment

IFRS requires companies to carry oul imparment tasting

on ary assets that show indications of impairment as

well as annually for goodwill and other intangible assets

with Indefinite livas and &0 not subject to amortisation.

This testing includes exercising management judgement

about future cash flows and other events which ere,
by thelr nature, uncertain.

Retirement benefits

The assumptions underlying the vatuation of retirement

benefits assets and liabilities are important and based
on actuarial advice. Changes in these assumptions
could have a materlal iImpact on the measurement

of the Group's ratirement benefit obligations.

Taxation

Uncertalnties exist with respect to the intarpretation

of complex tax regulaticns and the amount and timing
of tuture taxabie income. Given the wide renge of
Intemational business relationships and tha long

term nature and complexity of existing contractual
arrangemants, difterances arising batween the actual
results and the assumptions made or future changes

to such assumptions could resuit in tuture adjustments
1o tax incoma and axpense already recorded. Provisions
are establishad based on reasonable estimates for
possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities
ol the respeactive countrias in which the Group opsrates.
Management judgement is used to detarmine the
amount of such provisions taking int¢ account that
difisrences of interpretation may arise on a wide variaty
of issues depending on the conditions prevaiing in the
respective Group company’s domiclle.

Jon Stanton
Fingnco Director
27 February 2013
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Dirpctors’ Report: Review of the year

How We Manage Risk

The Weir Group faces a wide spectrum of risks across our
global footprint. Effective management of those risks is at

the heart of how we conduct our day-to-day business.

Risk managamant framework

We can Ieke decisions with confidence, because we
know that, as a Group, we are identifying risks at an
early stege and taking proportionate steps to mitigate
those risks. Wa have a Risk Management Policy and
Framework which provides a conglstent approach to

risk management acoss the Group on a continual cycle.

Risks identifisd at operaling compeny tevel, which
potentially may have a widsr Impact on the divisions and
the Group, are escalated through defined and regular
reporting mechanisms. Where required, feedback is
providad to the operating companias on their fisk
assessment and approach to risk mitigation. In addition,
division and Group-wice risks are shared with the
operating companies. This allows the operating
comperias to consider the local implications of

such risks. Our inagrated boltom-up and 10p-8own
approach to risk management providas vislbility

and accoumatility for riska throughout the Group.

Our integrated bottom-up and top-down
approach to risk management provides
visibility and accountability for risks
throughout the Group.

Risk manogement framework
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Risk management cycle

Risks are assaessad in tarms of Impact and tkalihood

of occurrence before, and after, control mitigation, i.e.
gross and net risk, This eiows the business 1o review
the retative cost/benefit of control actions to ensure the
risk mitigation ia proportionate, We recognise that not afl
risks are within the control of the Group, a key example
being political and social unrest within the territories

in which we operate. However, our approach to risk
management ensures we have controls in piace to
reciuca the impact of such risks, should they occur.

Risk roles and responsibliiities

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group's

risk and internal control frameworks. It has 58t out

tha decisions, and hence the level of risk, which can

b delegated to the Group Executive, divisional and
operational company management without requiring
ascalation to the Board. This Is achieved through a series
of Group policies and delegated authority matrices
including reference to, for example, capital expanditure,
sales and quotations, gifts and hospitality, employee
appointments, expansion o new tarnitores, appoimmernt
of external sales apents, and operational purchases,

Risk management cycle

Risk rojes end responsiblilities
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Diractors* Report: Review of the year

How We Manage Risk

continued

Principal risks and uncertainties
As in any businass, there may be unforaseen lssues which could impact the Group's abllity to achieve its objectives in the future.
However, wa belisve the (roup’s risk management framework makas this less likaty. The key risks set out below arg thosa which
weo befisve have the greatest potential to impact cur ahility to achieve the Group's strategic objectives.

Risk

Why we think this s Important

How we are mitigating the risk

Changas in key
markets and/

or pofitical
conditions have
an advarsa impact
on customers’
expenditura plans.

Global and economic conditions

We noed to remain sufficiently flexible to allow us to
mest growth in demand when our customers’ markets
are buocyant and themsfore capial investment is high,
and egually toresee downturns and/or instabiity

in temritories, 10 allow U3 1O adjust oUr operations
accordingly, Otherwise, we are at risk of nct maximising
our potential for growth in buoyant marksts, and
incurring unnecessary costs during dowrturns.

We maintain reguiar engagemant with our customers
to understand thelr needs and chalenges.

Our strategic plarming utiises axtensive markat
intelbgence 1o assist in forecasting cpportuntties

and dips in markets. 83 well as potential pofitical

and social instabifty In regions.

We maintain contingancy plans for downtumns and
axits from unstable regions.

W fall to drive
innovation 1o ensura
that the business
continues to defver
sustainable and
attractive solutions
for our customars.

Technology and innovation

The strength of our business is bullt upon a history
of delivering iInnovative and sustainable solutions
tor our customars. It we fail to keep abreast of
market needs or to innovate solutions we are at
sk of losing market share to our competitors

and reducing margins as demand dacraases.

Cortinual nvestrment in research and devalopment,
including the Wer Advanced Rasearch Centre in
conjunction with the University of Strathclyds.

Global design centres of onigin, cedicated technology
centres for pump and materials developmsent and a
commitmant to creating patent protected technalogies.
We have dedicated governance taams (Engineering and
Manufacturing Excallence Committees) tocused on the
delivery of our strategic objectives for technalogical
edvances and innovation in manufacturing practices
to moet the needs of our customers.

We fail 1o adequately

Environment, health and safety (EHS)

Wae have a fundamental duty to protect our

The Wair behavioural sataty system is in place

to reduce the risk of safety Incidents. In addition,
there are initiatives to prevent the most common
accident types. The Welr glcbal EHS standards
are continually reviewed.

The EHS Excellence Committes is responsibia for
monitoring parformance and compliance with Group
objactives, policias and standards relating to EHS.
Thero is a formal EMS assurance programme with
issues escalated as reguired through the reporting
structures.

prolacl our peopla and other stakeholiders from harm whilst
peopls and other conducting our business. As well as the personal
stakeholders from impact on our pecple resulting from a fallura o
harm essociated magt this obligation. we would atso be ail risk of:
with a breach In - mputational damage teading to a loss of customers;
EHS standards. - legal action from regutators including fines and
penaltles; and

- exclusion from markets important for our future growth.
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B

Risk Why we think thia Is importam How we are mitigating the risk

Ethics and governance

Interactions with our  Wa ara unwilling to accept dishonest or corrupt The Code of Conduct, suppiemented with Group

people, customers, behaviour from our paople, or external parties acting policies on related topics, provides a clear benchmark

suppliers and other on our bahatf, whilst conducting our business. for how we expact our business will be conducted.

stakeholders are not It we tall to act with integrity we are at risk of: Regular trainlng is providad using a range of

condcted with the - raputational damage leading 1o 8 loss of customers: mechanisms including ‘Town Hall' style sessions,

highast standards - increased scrutiny from regulators; on-Ine and induction training.

of integrity, which - fegal action trom regulators including (nes, penalties Tha financied contrgd framework is contmually

devalues our and imprisonment; and monttored for effectivenass.

reputation. - exclusion from markets importarg tor our future growth. Internal Audit's remit includes regular review of the
anti-bribery and corruption and nancial controls
across the Group. Tha Group Legal team is
responsibda for monitoring compliance with the
Code of Conduct.

Supply chain

Woe fall to adequately  Qur supply chain is dependent upon a number of factors Established engagement framework In ptace with

manage the supply inchuding sufficient manutacturing capacity, access o key suppliers.

chain theraby raw materials and key components, integrated sales Regutar KPI monitoring of the supply chain throughout

reducing our and production planning, and skitad people. It we fall the organigation,

ability to meet to maet the dalivery targets agreed with customers The Purchasing Excellence Commitiea monitors

customer demand a9 a rasult of a failure in the supply chein we risk: performance and compliance with Group objectivas,

in an economic and - damaging our reputation and as 8 consequence policies and standards relating to procurement.

efficient manner.

losing customars and market share;

- incuring penaltias as a result of late delivery
contractual clauses; and

- reducing margins by incurring unnecassary additional
cosls associated with late remedial actions taken
to evoid! missing delivery targets.

Cantrea of Excallence are astablished for key
componeants to drive efficiencies and enhance delivery
stendards whilst maintalning quality.

Consistant Group-wide approach to inventory control
and sales and operational planning,

Acquisitions and expansion into new territories

Inadequate planning
and managemsent

of the integration
and expansion
processas impacts
the abiiity to
generate growth
opportunities,
synergles and cost
savings within

expected timescales.

Acquisitions and expansions into new territories

are only undertaken after igorous reviaw and
identification of expected synergies, co8! savings

and growth opportunities. However, there is a risk

that these bengfits may not ba achieved. or may

not be achieved within the anticipated timescales,
thereby tying up the Group's funds in investments with
insutficient return. There is also a risk that we could

be laft Eabla for past acts or gmissions of the acquired
businesses without sdequate right of redress.

Tha stretepic planning process inctudes market
and compaetitive position assessments to drive
the acquisition agenda.

Comprehensive due diligence is performed on
all potential acguisitions.

We have a formal 100 day integration plan with
dedicated integration directors and managers
appointed to averses and manage the full
Integraticn programme.
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Directors’ Report: Review of the year

Sustainability Review

The Group considers sustainability to be a key part of
its strategy and recognises its importance in delivering
shareholder value. Our sustainability approach is
embedded in our business through six key areas.

Sustainability matters to Welr bacause our employess,
customers, suppliers and investors want to work for, do
business with, supply and own a business that operates
safely, athically, fairty and in a way that minimises
emvironmental impact.

Sustainability is an importani part of how the Group
operatas and we seek to dslivar our strategy and businsss
made! In a way that can contribute to reducing negative
environmental impacts and assists the communities

in which we do businass.

Envirohment

IS0 14001

All our continuing operations are 1ISO 14001

accreditad, or will be by the end of 2013, apart from
new acquisitions where a plan Is put in place to achieve
accreditation during the integration process, ISO 14001
Is an intemeationally recognised specificetion for an
anvironmental managament system which heips
organisations to mest anvironmental and economic
goals as well as assisting in ths implamentation of
environmental policy. It provides assurance that our
emvironmental parformance mests and will continua

to meet legal and environmental policy requirements.

Carbon

The Welr Group is an energy intensive business,
dus to 23 requirement for electriclty and gas for
indusirial manulacturing and service opsarations
across a global tootprint.

Since 2011, the Group’s operating companies have been
identifying and implementing three carbon emission
raguction projects on & rolling basis, adding new projects
a5 each is completad.

Our carbon emissions are reported in accordance
with the principles of the Greenhouss Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
{'GHG Protocol’) deveioped by the World Business
Councii for Susteinable Development and the World
Resources Institute. The GHG Protocol categorisas
emissions as follows:

- Scope 1- Dlrect emissions
Thess are eamissions for which businesses are
directly responsible.

- Scope 2 - Electricity indirect emiasions
Thess are emissions from the slectriclty that a
company buys 1o usa in its equipmant or opergtions.

- Scope 3 = Other indirect emissions
These are emissions from activities that are relevant 1o a
company, bl not within its direct controi, for example,
transport in vehiclas not ownad by the company.

The Group has six sustainability pricrities:

ENVIRONMENT EMPLOYEES

To raduce our energy use To attract and metain the bast
and carbon tootpring amployees

HEALTH & SAFETY COMMUNITIES

To malntain a safe and To invest in the communities
healthy workplace wheré we operata
PRODUCTS AND ETHICS
TECHNOLOGY To concuct our business

To optimise the energy efficiency responsibly and athically

of our products and supply of

products to tow carbon industries

To find out more about these six areas, including detailed case studies,
visit wair.co,uk/sustainability

The Wair Group reports on its Scope 1 and 2 amissions,
as defined in the GHG Protocol. Scope 3 is an optional
reporting category. Emissions are reported as tonnes

of carbon diaxide equivalent {t1CO,8").

A proportion of our data is derived, or partly derived,
from estimates and we are aways working 1o improve
the accuracy and completeness of our data. In 2013,
the Group Intends to undonake a review of its
greenhouse gas poticy and reporting practices.
taking into consideration the mandatory reporting
requiremants due to be introduced under the
Gresnhouse Gas Ernissions (Directors” Reports}
Regulations 2013.

The Group's total carbon footprint from 2010 to 2012

is shown on the opposiie page. The Group's absolute
emissions have increased year on year. However, since
2010 the Group has made some significant acquisitions,
including Weir Linatex, Seaboand and Novatech, The
Impact of acquisitions on the emissions of the Group as
a whole can ba seen in the chart, with acquisitions since
2010 representing 16% of the 2012 total. The increase

in ernissions is also attributable to tha growth of the
Group during the period and its increased output. The
Group’s emissions by turnover remain constant with 2011,
This is, in part, due to the activity mix of our business
with high demand in the primary manuiacturing araas

of foundry production and machining during 2012.
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Total emissions
CO, tonnes [000)

The majcrity of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
come from electricity andt gas use at our facilities, with
electricity accounting for 67% of the total emissions

in 2012 (2011 67%). Cur foundrigs, the mos! energy
intensive areas of our aperations, produced 64,000
1CO:2 In 2012, which equates to 35% of the Group's
total emissions.

Foundry recycting

The Group’s five foundries recycied nearly 18,000 tonnes
of meta! in our foundry operations in 2012. This means
that around 51% of the metal poured at our foundries

is recycled.

Foundry recycling (000 tormes)

Huealth and safety

The Environmant, Haalth and Safety Excellence
Committes drives good Group-wide health and satety
practice. The Group is committed 1o a rero accident
workplace. For more information on health and sefety,
566 page 21 or go to welr.co.uk/sustainabikty.

Employees

Recruiting, retaining and developing the best people

is at the heart of Weir's sustainability as a business.
This Is encouraged through accass to opportunities to
progress, competitive and fair working conditions, and
an open cutlure where issues can be raised, discussad
and addressed. For more information, 2ae Our Pecple
on page 22.

Communities

We beliave we have an enduring obligation to invest

in local communities ahd minimise ary snvironmental
impact on the araas whane we operate. As a global
business, our operating businesses have the discretion
to invest in their local commanities in the areas of
greatest need. Broadly, the Group ssoks to support
health and education projects, givan their potential 1o
pravide lasting benefits. For recent examples of these
projects, go to weir.co.uk/sustainabiity.
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Charitable donations

The total charitable donations of Group companies
during tha Enancial year was £503,011 (2011: £422,300},
a5 Shown below.

The Weir Code of Conduct prohibits political
contributions and no political conations were
made during the period.

Products and technology

Our products and services aim to meet customer
demands and their corporate sustainability goats,
through reducing energy and water usage and the
production of waste materiaks. Many of the Group's
products and services are used in low carbon
appfications such as nuclear and renawablas power
generation. The Enginearing Excetlance Committea
continually seeks to anhance energy efficisncy through
the design, research and manufacturing procass and
product usage In customer operations.

Ethics

The Weir Code of Conduct establishes clear guidelines
and standards of business behaviour for amployees.
Supporting the Code is the ethics hotline and enti-
bribery and corruption training. Tha Code also explains
tha high human rights standards to which the Group
works. More information on the Group's activity 1o
promote ethical behaviour is on pages 63 to 65 of the
Corporate Governance report.
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Directors’ Report: Review of the yasr

Board of Directors
Nams and title Lord Smith Keith Alan Ferguson Melanie Geo
of Kelvin Cochrane Non-Exscutive Non-Exscutive
Chairman (68) Chist Executive (48) Director (55) Director {81)
Nationality British British Briish British
Date of appointment Non-Exscutiva Director Joined the Group as Finance  December 2011. May 2011,
sinca February 2002 and Director In July 2006 and
Cheimnan since July 2002. eppointad Chiat Executive
In November 2008,
Committee Chalran of the Meamber of tho Nomination Chairmen of the Audit Chairman of the
membership Nomination Commiites. Commitive. Committeo. Remunerstion Committoe:
membar of the Audit
Committoe.
Expeortise Lord Smith was formandy Following & number of Alan was Chiel Financial Metanie Is 8 Senice Adviser for
Chairman end Chisf yoars with Arthur Andersen, Officar and a Diractor of Lazero 8 Co. Umiad, having
Exacutive of Morgan Kaith joinexd Singecoach Lonmin pic, one of the workad for them since 2003.
Graniall Privato Equity Group pic in 1893, He was world's langast producors Formerty, she spont 8 number
=ng was Chief Exacuthve appointed Fnance Diractor of plativumn group Metsts. of yanara with 5.6, Warburg
of Morpan Granfall Asset in 1896 anc Group Chief from 2007 undil 2010, Prior {now part ol UBS) and was
Management from 1998 untit  Executive in 2000. He to his role with Lonmin, he appointad a
2000 befora becoming Vice joined ScottishPower plc held the position of Group Director of UBS In 1959
Chaimman of Deutache Assst  in 2003 where he Dbecame Rnance Director with the Betwoen 2006 ond 2008 she
Management botwoen 2000  Director of Group Finance BOC Qroup pic. Batore this was a Senior Retationship
and 2002. He has also held ha spent 22 yaars working Director of UBS. Sha has
2 number of othor positions Heo is a chartered for Inchcape pic in & variaty been an ellemate membor
in the fnancial services sccountant and & member ©1 rolas, Including six years of Tha Takaover Pandl —
industry, and was amembear  of the instinyte of Chartered as Group Finance Director, LIBA (CFC) since 2006,
of tha Judicial Appaintiments Accouritants of Scotlang.
Bioard for Scotland and Ha s a chartered
former Chairman of the accountant and 8 member
trustees of tha National of the Institute of Cherlerod
Mhusewrns of Scotland. Agcountonts of Scottand.
He is Chancellor of
the University of the
Wast of Scottand and
Patron of the Scottish
Comsnunity Fourdstion.
He is a chartered accountant
and a pasi prasident of
the Instityla of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland.
Koy axternal Cheimman of SSE plc Non-Executive Diractor Non-Exscutive Diractor and Non-Executive Director
eppointments {formerty Scottish & of Royel Scottish National Audit Committee Chatrman of Drax Group pic.
Southemn Energy ple). Qrchestra Sociaty Ltd, ot Johnson Matthey plc.
Chetrman of UK Gresn Non-Executive Diracior end
tnvastment Bank pic. Audit Committea Gharman
of Croda imernational plc.
Chairman of Glasgow 2014
Limited, the organising
committoe for tho
Commonwealth Games.
Non-Executive Director
ol Standard Bank Group
tid In South Africs.
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Richard Menell John Mogford Lord Robertson Jon Stanton
Non-Exscutiva Non-Exscutive of Port Ellen Finence Directoy {45}
Director (58) Director (59) Non-Executive Director
and Senlor independsnt
Dirsctor {88)

South African British British Briteh
Aprd 2009, Juna 2008. Fabruary 2004. Aprd 2010,
Meamber of the Nomination Member of the Membor of tha Nomination Norne.
orvd Remunaration Awdit Cormmittae. and Remuneraton
Committees, Comumittges.
Richerd worked as an John is currently a Maneging  Lond Robertaon is Sendor Jon was formery a partnar
invastmern banker betore Diroctor for First Reserve, tmternationsl Adviscr with Emst & Young having
kining Angiovaal Group in » large giobal energy to Cable and Wireless joined s a graduate trainee
1992. Ho wes eppolnted focused priveta acuity frm. Communications pkc and in their Birmingham otfice
Chiaf Exncautive of Anglovaal Aa part of this role he sita & Senlor Counsellor with n 1988. Ho was appointed
Mining in 1956 then Exacutive  on sévoral boards, The Cohen Group (USA) a3 a partnar in thelr Longdon
Chalrman in 2002, n 2005, He waa the UK Secretary of office in 2007 with iead
ha lafi to become President He was lormaorly gn State for Dgtance from 1997 responsibiity for the aud
and Chigl Exacutive of TEAL Exacutive Vice President of untd 1999 betore bacoming ol & number of FTSE 100
Exploration 8 Mining tnc., He BF pic having bean with BP Secrylary Genergl of NATO muhinational clients.
was torrnary Chairman of for over 30 years, inttially from 1899 untll 2003, He was
Avgoid Lid (1996-2004) and In their exploration division formerly a Dractor of Smiths  He Is a chanarad accountam
Bateman Engineering BY &nd progreasively rising to Group plc 2004-2006) and and a member of the institute
(2005-2008) and Director of Executive Vice Prasident Daputy Chainman of Cablo of Chartored Accountants
Mutual & Feders! lreawance {Chiot Operating Otficer 8 Wirgless pic (2004-2006}. in England and Wnles.
Caornpeny Lid (1996-20n40) US Downstranm & Head of
and Standsrd Bank Graup Rafining). Ho held numarous A mambeor of Her Majesty’s
Ltd (1897-2011). Rcharc is positons in every aros o Privy Counci, he is Chalrman
a Senlor Advisor to Credit operations from gas and of the Diichiey Foundation
Suises and sarves 8s & rengwshbles to upstream and of the Cormmnission on
Direcior on & number of end downstream oil. Global Roed Sataty. He
unilstad companias and la honorary Prolossor of
non-prcfil organisations. Ha is & lellow of the Pofitics at Stirling University,

Instifution of Machanica! an honorery Fellow of the
Hs Ia g tallow of the Engineers. Royal Society of Edinburgh,
Geologica) Socisty (London) en Exdor Brother of tho
and ot both the Australasian Corporaon of Trinky House
ang South African ingtune and Chancetlor of the Order
of Mining and Metallurgy. of St Michaal and St George.
Non-Executive Diractor of Chalrman ol CHC Deputy Chaimman end Nong.
Gold Folds Ltd end Sibarye ~ Hallcopters SA In Audlt Cornmittes Chairman
Gold Limitad. both South Luxembourg, Amromoo of TNK-BP Lid.
African companias ksted Energy LLC in Romanla

on tha Johannasburg Stock
Exchange and tha New
York Stock Exchangs.

Non-Exacutive Diractor of
Rockwell Dismonds Inc.,
a South Alrican company
Lstad on both the
Johannesburg Stock
Exchange and the Toronto
Stock Exchangs.

and White Rosa Energy
Vantures LLP In the UK.

Non-Executive Director

company listed on the Naw
York Stock Exchangs.

Non-Exacutive Director of
Wesiam Ferrlas ({Chyde) Lid.
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Dirsctors” Raport: Review of the yaar

Group Executive

Namo and tithe Dean Jenkins Steve Noon Kevin Spencer
Minsrsis Divisional Ol & Gas Divisionsl Powsr & Industrial
Managing Director (41) Mzanaging Director {48) Divisional Managing

Oirector (57)

Blography Dean ia the Minorats Divisional  Stove |3 the Oll & Gas Kgvin I the Powsr &
Marnaging Director based Divt: | Managing Di industrial Divisiona
n Mglboune, Australa, Ho based in Fort Worth, USA. Managmg Diracter based
joined tha Group in November  He joined the Group in 2007, In East Kilbride, Scotiand.
2010, bacoming Power & Ha has workad with sovern He joined the Group In
Inclustrial Divisional muttinationals Inchuging 2005. Prior to his currant
Diractor In 2011, He was Schetonacker Vision appointment in August 2012,
appointad 0 his curers Systerns, James Hardle ha was European Ragional
rola in Auguat 2012, Dean Industries end The Toro Managing Director of the
praviously worked for Oantas  Company. Bafore joining Group's Minersts Division,
Asines and the Australian e Group 2007, he hold Kevin s a2 mechanicel
lIstad i‘rastruchure services the position of presidant angineer who workad in
compesry UGL Lid, most of Schelanacker Vision the mirdng industry tor 17
recently as Chisd Executive Systems, North America. years, betora moving into
of the lattor's Atall Division. the mining supply incustry.

Name and title Keith Ruddock Pauline Lafferty Gavin Nicol
Genersl Counsel and Director of Human Director of Operations
Company Secratary [52) Resources {47) Support and

Dowslopmant (51}

Blograpghy Katth |s Goneral Courselend  Pauting is the Director of Gavin is the Dérector of
Company based Human Resources basad Operations Support &
2t the Group’s Haad Otfice 8t the Group's Head Otfice Devealopment basad st
in Giasgow. Ho joined the In Glasgow. She joined the Group’s Head Offce in

Group tn April 2012 from
Royal Duich Shal pie, where
he was Ganeral Counsal

for Upstream international,
Shell's largeasi businass unit,
basad in The Hague. Ha

has extensive internationat
commarcial and legal
expariance, having workad
In the Middie East, North
Amarica, Africa, Australasia
and Europe, and was e
member of Shel’s Upstraam
tntornationg! leadership team.,

me Group in 2011, Pauting
was previously in executive
search with Mies Partnership
end Russell Raynolkds
Associates in the UK and
Austrefta, Prior to thia, she
held business planning end
operationa! roles tor 11 yaars
with Motorota and Digital
Equipment Corporation
(DEC) In Scotland, Australia
end Hong Kong, ultimataly

Glasgow. Ho was previously
President of Weir SPM for twe
yeurs, based in Fort Werth,
Texas. Gavin joinod Welr In
2005 end was marniaging
director of the Welr Pumps
busingss prior to kg sak in
200y7. Betore joining Wi,
he woried tor a number

of multinationals inchuding
tha Terax Corporation,
PWC and Coats Viyela,

Keith Cochrane and Jon Stanton are alse members of the Group Exacutiva. Their biographical information can be

found on pages 48 and 49.
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Corporate Govemance Report
Chairman's introduction

The Board's approach to govemance begins with the
recognition that it is a framework supporting the values
and behaviours which define how our company operates.

‘We do not regard govemance as a prescriptive set of nules but a sst of principies which should guice behaviour,
processas and actions which inspire trust and support the way wa do business. Wa believe that effective corporate
governance consists of a set of actions which ripple from the boardroom to the shopfioor, The Welr Way means we
achieve growth by not onty doing the right thing strategically but &80 dolng it the right way. In achieving this. good
governance throughout the organisation Is dearly very important. | speak on beha of all my collaagues on ths Board
when | describe Welr as having an ‘open’ cutture, it s 8 business where, in my experience, al empioyees feel able to
contribute and challenge and a businass where the Exaecutive Directors and ssenior managemant recognise that this
is tundamentally Important.

The UK Corporate Governance Cods, the principlas of which we fully support and under which we report, tasks the
Board with providing the leadership nacessary to promote the long term succass of the Company. This leadership
must be provided within the context of an effective framework of controts and, as Chaiman, it is my principal role to
provide Board ieadership that ensures Board effectveness. To do this, | strive to replcate the wider corporate cutture
8t Welr by creating & boandroom culture whare all relevant intormation for decision-making i shared openly. Each
voice around the tabla Is accorded equa! welght and contribution and challengs is encouraged. | hope and believe
that we have a Board where nobody is fearful of asking what | calt the 'daft laddie or lassie’ questions, which can
often be those which provide the greatest insights into the problems or opportunities in any business. Careful
thought is pu ingo the batance of the Boarg, with relavant expertise and diversity being kay factors which guide our
succession ptanning. | believe that we have a Boand with considerabile skill and experiance and that our sharehoidaers
are well served by the quality of thought and ciscussion around the boardroom table. Our committea chalmen hotd
thamseivas to the same high standards. The key skills and experience ol the Board members are outiined later in
this section.

In Saptembar 2012, tha Financia) Reporting Council published a new edition of the UK Corporate Governance
Coda, effective frormn the Company's next financial year (the ‘New Cods'). The changes largely relate to
Accountability, Part C of the Code, which covers areas such as financial and business reporting, audit committees
and auditors. The intention of the Board s that the Company will fully comply with the changes Introduced in the
Now Codea in 2013.

Ouring the year there have been a number of othsr developmants impacting on the Company's present and future
disciosure requirements, namety:

- govemmeani changes on namative reporting:

- mandatory greenhouse gas reporting:

- governmen proposals on execulive remuneration;

~ Lord Sharman's proposals on going concern and liquidity risk; and

- consultation on interna! Controt: Guidance to Directors {formarty the
Turnbull Guidance).

These changes will atfect the Group's disclosures and we have sttempted to go some way towards reflocting
these changes in this year's Annual Repon,

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code {formerty the Combined Code) sets out stardards of good practice in retation to issues such as board
camposition and etfactivenass, the role of board committeas, risk management, remuneration and relations with ehargholders. The UK Corporats
Govemance Code is published by the Financial Reporting Council from whom paper and downloadabile versions can be obtained via its websita
at www.frc.org.uk. For the 52 weeks anded 28 December 2012, the Board considers that the Company has complied fully with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2010 (the Code’). This report, in adkiition to the Remuneration Report, detais how the Company has applied the main principlas
of the Code.

Leadership

The role and responsiblilties of the Board

The names of the current Directors of the Company can be found in the table below, Their relevant experience and significant appointments
are detailed in their blographical iformation on pages 48 and 48 and in the Board composition saction below. At the Company's Annual
General Meeting (AGM") on 9 May 2012, Staphen King, Michael Dearden and Alan Mitchelson resigned as Diractors of the Company.

Table of the Board of Directors

Neme Designation Oute of appointment Dt of taott rpcert re-slection
Lord Smith Chalrman 6 February 2002 9 May 2012
Kalth Cochrane Chief Executive 3 July 2008 9 May 2012
Alan Ferguson Non-Exacutive Director 13 December 2011 9 May 2012
Malanis Gee Non-Exscutive Director 4 May 2011 9 May 2012
Richard Menell Non-Executive Director 1 April 2009 9 May 2012
John Mogford Non-Executive Director 1 June 2008 . 9Mayam2
Lord Robertsen Non-Executive Director 1 Fehvuary 2004 9 May 2012
Jon Stantor Finance Cirector 19 Aprit 2000 9 May 2012

Kelth Ruddock was appolnted as Company Secratary on § May 2012, replacing Alan Mitchelson in this role.
Charlas Berry is due to Join the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 1 March 2013,

Tha Beard of Directors has a collective duty to promate tha long term success of tha Company for its shareholders. The Board sets the Group's
strategy and ensures that the necessary resourcas am in place to achieve the agread strategic priorities. in determining the long term strategy and
obijactives of the Group, the Boarnd is mindhyl of its duties and responsibilties not just to shareholoers but also to customens, empioyeas and other
stekeholders. It reviews managsment and financial performance, monitoring the defivery of strategy and achisvement of business objectives, and
works within a robust framework of Internaf controls and risk management. The Board both develops and promotas the collective vision of the
Group's purpesa, culture, values end behaviours.
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Board composition

Chalrman and Chief Execulive

The Board & chaired by Lord Smith of Keivin, The Chalrman is responsibe for creating the conditions for overall Board and individual Director
eftectiveness. He provides leadership, demonstrating the values and behaviours encompassed by the Weir Way. He also, in consuitation with
the Chief Executive and the Company Secretary, sets the agenda for the Board’s meetings.

Kalth Cochrane is the Chief Executive and is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company. He provides leadership to the
Group to succassiully plan and execute the objectives and strategy agreed by the Board. The Chief Exacutive Is supported in his role by the
Group Executive and various management committeas, known as ‘Excellence Committees’,

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Exacutive are separate with each having clearty defined duties and responsibilities.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors halp the Executive Directors by contributing independent challenge and rigour 1o the Board's deltberations

and assisting in the development of the Company’s strategy. In addition, they are responsible for monitoring the performance of the

Executive Directors against agreed goats and objectives. Their views are assential in oversesing the performance of the Company and
ensuring the integrity of tha financial information, controls and risk management processes. In order to carry out these functions appropriately
the Non-Exacutive Directors maet regularly with senior management and make periodic site visits, Senior managers are also regularty invited
to Board mestings to maks business presantations to the Board.

Senior iIndependsnt Director

Lord Robertson is the Senior Independent Director of the Company, having teken on the role after Mike Dearden’s retirement on 9 May 2012,
and as such works alongside the Chalrman and Is avallable to sarve as an intermediary tor the other Directors if necessary. He is also avallable to
sharahoiders it dirgct contact with the Chairrnan, Chisf Exacutive or athar Executive Directors has faiad to resolve the concems of sharahokders
or for which such contact Is inappropriate. As Senior Indepencent Director he atso teads the annual review of the performance of the Chairman.

Board meetings

During the year the Board scheduled elght meetings, heid two additonal meetings and also met at the Group conferance in Perthshire, Scotiang,
curing Aprl. in October 2012, the board meeting was held in Fort Worth, Texas, on a board knowledge-gathering visit to our US upstream operations.
Mora information on this can ba found on page 59. In addition to the formal boand meetings, the Board maintaing an open dialogue throughout the
year and contact by telephons occurs whensver necessary.

The table below dotails the attendance et board mestings of each of the Directors during their term of office for the 52 weeks to 28 Dacember 2012,

Namae Mhneuﬂ__
Kaith Cochrana 100110
Michae! Dearden’ Sofs
Alan Ferguson 9ol 10
Melanle Gee 100t 10
Staphen King' 3ofs
Richard Menell 100110
Alan Mitchetson' 5015
John Mogford 100f 10
Lord Robertson 10110
Lord Smith of Kelvin 10 of 10
Jon Stanton 10 of 10
Note

1. Michael Dearden, Stephen King and Alan Micheisan retired trom the Board on 0 May 2012,

During the year the Chalrman, supported by the Company Secratary, continued the practice of maintaining a rolling 12 month agenda for
board and committee mestings. Agenda tems included standing tems such as progress reports from the Executive Directors and the
Company Secratary, as well as perlodic fems such as updates from committee Chairmen, a review of the risk register and imernal controls,
strategy and succession planning. In this manner, the Chairman and the Board can have confidence that the meetings cover all the matters
required to be discussed by them and elso allows sufiicient time for discussion by the Board of each matter, at the maost appropriate mesting
in the year, enabling them to discharge effectively their duties as Diractors, Additional meetings can be hatd throughout the yesr as business
needs arise: with there being two such meetings in 2012,

Directors’ indemnities

The Comparty has granted indemnities to each of its Directors in respect of all kosses arising out of or in connection with the exacution of thelr
powers, duties and responsibiities as Directers to the extent permitted by the Companies Act 2006 and the Company's Articles of Association,
{n addition, Directors and cHicers of the Comparty and #s subsidiaries and trustess of its penslon schemes ars covered by Directors and Officers
liabiity insurance.

The Weir Group PLC Annual Report and Financial Siatements 2012 53




Directors’ Report: Corporate Governance

Corporate Qovemance Report
Continued

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board recognises that to ensure the fong tarm success of the Company, certain specific matters should be reserved for the consideration
and dacision of the Board alone. Other matters may be delegated by the Board to its commitiees or executive managament, Decisions specifically
reserved for approval by the Boand are formally recordad in a document Matters Reserved to the Board, and include:

— annual and interim accounts and financial statements;

- dnvidend policy:

- board appointments:

- group strategy and the annual eperatng budget;

- changes nlating to the Group's capital structure;

- changes to the Group's management and control structure;

- major capial expenditure, acquisitions and disposats;

— treasury policies;

- risk managemernt stretagy,

- group corporate governance policy,

— emvironmental, health and safety and sustainability policies.

Board committesa

The Board has establishad a number of committeas to assist in the iischarge of its responsibiities. The principal committess are the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committes and the Remunaration Committea. The responsibiities of these board committoes am set out in the indvidual
Terms of Reference of each committee, which are evallable on the Company’s website, The role and responsibifties of the committees are
discussed further below. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committoes.

Only the membears of each committee are entitied to attend its meatings, although other Directors, professional edvisors and mambers of the
sanior management team attend when invitad to do so.

When the nead arises, separale ad hoc committees may be set up by tha Board to consider spacific issues,

The Nomination Committee

Lord Smith, Chairman

Currem bers Haow

Lord Smith (Chairman) Keith Cochrane 3013

Keith Cochrane Michael Dearden’ 2012

Richard Menell Righarg MenelP 1011

Lord Robertson Lord Robertson 3013
Lord Smith . 3013

Naoes

1. Michesl Desrden retired trom the Committee on @ May 2012
2. Righerd Mongl was appointed 1o the Committes on 14 June 2012.

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman, the Chisf Executhve and two of the Non-Executive Diractors and Is ¢haired by Lond
Smith, axcept when the matters under consideration relate to him or his position. Similarty, should a matter under discussion relate to any of
the other Committee members thay would excuse themsetvas from the meeting. Michae! Dearden resigned as a mamber of the Committos
on 9 May 2012 and has been replaced by Richard Menell. The Company considers that the composition of the Committes is in accordance
with the Code, Sanior members of management and advisors are invited to attend meetings as eppropriate.

The Committee has responsibitity for considering the size, structure and composition of the Board of the Company, for reviswing senior
managsment succassion plans, retiremants and appointments of additional and replacement Directors and making appropriate
recommendations so as to maintaln an appropriate balance of skills and exparience on the Boarg,

The Commities has established a process for Board appointments that it considers to be formal, rigorous and transparent and involves the use

of external executive recruitment agencies. This process includes drawing up a description of the role and capabilities required for the particutar

appointment together with a raview of the skills, knowledge and expetience of the existing Directors. The existing batance of the Board and the time
commitment required ar also taken Into consideration when assessing candidites.
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The Audit Committee
Alan Farguson, Chalrman
Cuamramt members &m Aterdance
Alan Ferguson {Chairman} Alan Ferguson 3oid
Malania Gee Matanie Ges 303
John Mogford Stephen King' 202
John Mogford 302
Audit Committes
Lord Smith Group Chalrman Attends by invitation
Kaith Cochrane Chief Executive Altands by invitation
Jon Stanton Group Finance Director Aftends by invitation
Kelth Ruddock Grmoup Counsel & Company Sacratary Attends as secrelary to the Committee
Lindsay Dixon Group Financial Controlier Attends by invitation
Sarah Caldwell Head of iIntfemal Audit Attends by invitation
Emst & Young Attonds as auditor 1o the Group

1. Stephen King retired trom the Committes on § Moy 2012,

The Audit Committes i chaired by Alan Ferguson and consists of three members, Stephen King retired as a member of the Committea on

9 May 2012. All the membears of the Audit Commities are indapendent Non-Exacutive Directors. Alan Ferguson was previously Chiet Financial
Officer of Lonmin plc and Group Finance Direcior with BOC Group pke and Inchcape pic and as such is considerad by the Board to have
recent and relevant financial experience. Each of the other Non-Exscutive Direc1ors on the Commiltee has, through heir other business
aclivities, significant experience in financial matters. As detaied above, the Group Chairman. senior members of management and echisors
ara invited to attand meetings as appropriata.

The Committee meets actarding 1o the requiraments of the Company's financial calindar. There have been three mestings in the pariod ended
78 December 2012. At lsast one meettng a yeaar, or for part of one maating sach year, the Audit Committee meats with the internal and extemal
auditors without any executive management presen. This provides the oppartunity for eny issues of concem to be ralsed with the auditors.

The Committse has the abliity to call oh Group employees to assist inite work and to obtain any information requirad from Executive Diractors
in order to carry out its rolas and cuties. The Committes is also able to obtain outside lege! or Indepandant professional advice if required.

The Committee Is responsible for reviewing the eccourting principles. policies and practices adopied in the preparation of the interim Repont
and Annual Report and Financial Statements and lor seviewing the scope and findings of the eudiL. tn particutar. il reviews the jucgemants and
estimales with the most significant eftect on the amounis recognised in the fnancial siaterments which include, but are not Emited 10, accounting
for acquisitions, the impairment testing of intangible assets. retirement benefit obligations, the effective tax rale and tax provisioning, other
provisions and exceptional Hams. Furthar detalis of the judgemants and estimates are set out in the Financial Review on page 36. The Committae
reviews and approves the lntemal audit function’s remit and ensures there are the nacessary resources and access to inlormation available
in order tor it to fuffil its mandata.

The Committes assists the Board in achieving its obligations under the Cota in araas of risk management and intemal control, focusing
particularly on compliance with laga! requirements, accounting standards and the Listing Rutes, and ensures that en effective system of
internat finandial and non-financial controls is maintained. The Committes's role with regard to risk is to lock at the process in formulating the
tisk matrix and the assurance provided around mitigating tactors. The uitimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual Report
and Financial Statements remains with the Board.

The Commitiee maintains a policy on the appointment and role of the auditor, as well as reviewing their independence, effectiveness and
remuneration, details of which can be found in the Accountabllity section on page 60.
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The Terms of Relerence of the Audit Committes, outiining the main role and responsibifities of the Audit Committae are availabla to view and
downioad on the Company's website. These are reviswed annually.

In the course of 2012, the Committee discussed the following matiers:

- ihe Annua! Report and Financial Statements, the Interim Report and interim management statements, ary significant audit issues,
accounting policies and financial reporting Issues and judgements identifled by the Finance Director and the auditors:

- the Annual Report disclosuras relevan to the Committes, including the going concem statement and the reports on risk management
and intesnal controt

- the 2011 internal audit report and the intemal audit scope and approach for 2012;

- the Group accounting policies;

- the Group's risk process and the results of the compllance scorecard;

- the audit planning, independence, performance and fees for Ernst & Young LLP for 2012;

- tha anti-bribery and comupstion assurance framework;

- non-sudit fee potcy and fees for Emst & Young LLP;

— the Audit Committee Terms of Raference.

The Remuneration Committee

Mesianie Gee, Chalrman

Curretd members Mane Attandancs

Matanie Gee (Chairman) Michael Daarden’ 20l2

Lord Robertson Melanis Gee! 3013

Richard Menell Lord Robertson 50t5
Richard Menael! S5cts

Ranay € s

Lord Smith Gmoup Chairman Attands by Invitation

Keith Cochrane Chief Executive Attends by invitation

Keith Ruddock Group Counse! & Company Secretary Artands as secretary to the Committee

Pauting Latlerty HR Diractor Attends by invitation

Nows

1. Michaal Cearden retired irHm the Comumittss on © May 2012

2. Goowas % the C. on 9 May 2012,

Melanie Goee joined the Committoe as Chairman on 9 May 2012, replacing Michae! Dearden who retired as a Director at the 2012 AGM. There
were five meetings held during the 52 weeks 1o 28 December 2012, and tha attendance of the individual members of the Comnittes s detailed
in the table above. Al members of the Remunaration Committeae are considered to be independent Non-Executive Directors. Exacutive Directors
and senicr management attend committee meetings et the invitation of the Commitiee Chairman. No member of the Committes has any
personal financial intgrest, other than as a sharehoider, in the matters decided by the Committee.

The Committee determines, within agreed terms of relerence, specific remuneration packages for each of the Chairman, the Executive
Directors and Company Secratary of the Company and the other members of the Group Executive. This includes implemantation of Group
share incantive plans. In accordanca with the Committee's terms of refarence, no Birector may participate in discussions relating to thefr own
terms and contlitions of service or remuneration. Tha Terms of Refarenca of the Committee are available on the Company’s wabslia.

Further information on the activities of the Committes is set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 80. A resolution to epprove the
Remunaration Repart will be preposed at the torthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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QGeneral Administration Committee

The General Administration Committee is a sub-committes of the Boand which comprises any two Directors ot the Company, at least one
of whom must be an Executive Director. The principal duties of the Committee include attending to administrative and procedural matters
in retation to existing bank and finance faciities and the lssue and aflotment of shares under Group share plans, it also attends to other
matters of a routine manner relating to the Comparny's share capita!, including the edministration of unclaimed dividends and the Company's
Dividand Reinvestment Plan. The Committee is responsiblie to the Board as a whole and meets as required.

Group Executive

The Group Exacutive comprisss the Chiet Exacutive, tha Finance Director, the General Counss! and Company Secretary, the three Divisional
Managing Directors, the Director of Operations Support and Development and the HR Director. Biographical details of the members of the
Group Executive can be found on page 50. The Group Exacutive is chaired by the Chief Executive, Keith Cochrane,

In tha 52 woeks ended 28 December 2012, the Group Executive met 12 times. The Group Executive is responsible for ensuring that each of
the Group's businesses |s managed aeffectively and that the key performance indicators of the Group, as approved by the Board, are achieved.
The Group Executive'’s role includes the preparation of the Group budget tor approval by the Board, managemerd of business performance

to achieve the Group budget, establishing and maintaining reperting systems which provide clesr and consistent information on aft aspects of
business performance, managing and minimising oompaeata risk, and ensuring that the necessary mechanisms are In place to achiove ettective
imer-divisional coondination in ansas such as purchasing, tvanding and career development planning. It also approves major ems of capital
expenditune within limits authorised by the Board.

Manapement committees

n addition to the above commitiess, several management committees have been creaiod to deal with specific areas and to which the
Executive Drectors can hurther detegate their responsibilities. These Excelience Committees have clearly defined remits and work across
tha Group promoting bast practice. They report to the Group Exacutive end 1o the Board 83 raquired.

The diagram below l0ustrates the managemant structure within the business.

The matters reserved for the Board, terms of reference and delegated authority matrices combine to create a ciear authority matrix across
the Group for timely and effactive decision-making.
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Effectiveness

Board composition

Betwoen the start of the period and 9 May 2012, the Board comprised three Exacutive Directors, the Chairman and seven independant
Non-Exaecutive Directors. Since this date. the number of Executive Directors on the Board reduced to two end the number of independent
Non-Executive Directors reduced to five with an additional Non-Executive Directar due to be appointed on 1 March 2013. The key skills,
axparience, independence and knowledge on the Board is as follows:

Skills end sxperience
Genking &

et [3 h Finance  Governance  In ] Lsaderanip Nening 00 & Qas Power
Lord Smith X X X X X
Keith Cochrane X X x X
Alan Ferguson X X X X
Melanis Gee X X X X
Richard Menell X X X X
John Mogiord X X X X X X
Lora Robertson X X X X
Jon Stanton X X X

The Board considers that it has tha right combination of skils, experience, independence and knowledge to be uselu! and etfective in masting
the neads of the business. More than hatt of the Board am independent Non-Exacutive Directors. All the Non-Executive Directors are considered
by the Board 1o be independant in character and judgament.

This combination of individuals and skills ensures that the Board is sufficiently balanced such that no individutal or group of Individuals can
dominate dectsion-making and allows for an eftective division of responsibilties within the Board and its committees. The positions of Chairman
and Chiaf Exacutive are held asparately. Each Director davotes sufficient time and attenticn as is necessary in order to perform their duties.

The Boerd is supplied In a timely mannsr with the appropriate information to enable 4 to discharge #ts duties and eny further back-up papers
and information are readily available to all Directors on request to the Company Secratary. The Chairman ansuras that Non-Executive Directors
ara properly briefad on any lssues arising at board mestings and Non-Executive Diractors have access 1o the Chairman at any tima.

Diversity

The Board considers itse!f diverse in termas of the background and experience each individual member trings to the Board. To maintein this, the
consigerations to be takan into account in each appointment to the Board are stipulated in tha tarms of referenca of tha Nomination Committes
which are evnilable on the Company's website. Specifically, the Nomination Committee must ‘consider candidates on merit and against
cbijective criteria, and with due regard for the benefits of civersity on the Board, including gender’ in identitying and recommending candideies.

Currently one member of the Board is female. This appointment was made on the basis that Melanie Geo was the best-qualified candidate
to provide the Board with the necessary supporl and expertise in corporete finance, international financlal markets and banking.

Inthe ebsence of binding reguiation, the Nomination Committee will continue to recommend appointments to the Board based on the axisting

balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board, on the merits and capabiities of the nomines and on the time they ara abio to devote
to tha role in order to promots the success of the Comparry.,
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induction and ongoing training

When a new Director joins the company ha or she is provided with information on the Group's structure, operations. policles and other

relevart documentation. New Directors are able to attand the Group's incuction programme which provides an insight into the Group's key
processes and controls. in eddition, the Board meels once a year &t one of tha Group's mamutacturing sites, which inchudes presantations
from key senior employess and the opporiunity t0 meet omployees scross the global operations. Directors are informed of relevant matsria)
changes to laws and regulations affecting the Group’s business and thelr duties as Directors. The Company Sacretary advises the Bosard

on govarnance matters and ia avallable to all Directors for advice as reguired.

Additional induction and tralning is also avallable to new committee members as required.

As part of the continued development of the Board of Directors,
one board mesting each yaar is held in tandem with e she visit
to one of the Group's operations, usually outside of the UK. In
Octobar 2012, tha Board meeting was held m Fort Worth, Texas.
The Board visited the Walr SPM faciltios, receiving o tour of
both the plant and the new head ofiice building which was under
construction at the time. They had the opportunity to meet with
Wailr SPM statf during their visit. The Board also visited p frac
site to see how Weir equipment is usad in customer operations.

During its two day visit. the Board recsived pressatations
from senior US based managers on the Oil & Gas business
in the US, as well as upoates on the recent acquisitions of
Novatech and Seaboard.,

Thve Group Executive members joinad the Board on the site
visits and wero also able to attend the various updates and
presantations ovar the course of the two days.

“As a relatively new Board
member, seeing the business
operations first-hand was
invaluable in developing a greater
understanding of the Company.”

Alan Ferguson
Non-Executive Director
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Directors and their other Interests

Under the Companias Act 2008, a Director of a oompany must avoid a shtuation in which he or she has, or can have, a direct or indirect
interast that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the intevests of the company. The Company has a formal precedure in place to manage
the disclosure, consideration and, if appropriate, the authorisation of any such possihle conflict, Each Direclor is eware of the requirement
1o notify the Board, via the Company Secretary, as soon as they bacome eware 0f any possible future confilel or a material change to an
axisting autherisation. Upon recelpt of any such nottiication, the Board, in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, will
consider the situation before deciding whether to approve the perceived conflict. Only Directors who have no interest in the matter being
considered are able to take the relevant decision and Directors are able to impose limits or conditions when giving authorisation if they
think this is eppropriate. The Director in question will then be notified of the outcome.

The Executive Directors have contracts of sarvice with one year's notice, whilst Non-Exacutive Directors’ appointments can be terminatad
at any time with six months' notice. The letters of appointment of the Chairman and the Nen-Executiva Directors, which are avallable for
inspection at the Company's registered office, set oul the required commitment to the Compary.

None of the Non-Executive Directors have any materiat business or other relationship with the Cempany or ts management.

Detnils of the Directors’ service contracts, emotuments. the imerasts of the Directors in the share capital of the Company and options
1o subscribe for shares in the Company are shown in the Remuneration Raport.

Board evatuation
in 2011, the Board sngaged FricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC’) to faclitate the extarnal gvaluation of the Board via a series of ona-to-ene
interviews with each individual Director. Their findings were reported to the Board in January 2012.

The collated intformation was reviewed by the Board and the appropriate committes, and overall It was concluded that the performance of the
Bozard as a whole, its principal commitiees and individuad Directors was such that each Director performs at the oplimum level for the benefit
of the Company. Recommendations provided in the review were followed up by the Chairmrnan throughout the course of 20n2.

Following extemnal reviews in both 2010 and 2011, k was considered appropriata that the Board evaluation would be conductad in-house in
2012. This was facilitated through the completion ot questionnaires which focused on areas such as the role and composition of the Board,
the content end process of mestings and the roles of the committees. In addition, the Chairman ¢conducted individual discussions with each
Non-Exacutiva Director. The Chairman conducted the process, assisted by the Company Secretary. As is custemary, Lond Robertson as
Senior Independent Director oversaw the review of the Chairman.

The overall responses generally reflected a very high level of satisfaction with the current working of the Board and its committees. The Board
considered the evatuation at its Jarwary 2013 mesting and has decided to consider allotting additional time to ¢ertain areas to improve its
sffectiveness further. In particutar, the Boand may apply additional focus to reviewing talent development and related trands across the Company,
and in considaring risk and strategy matiers in aven more depth,

In line with the Code, the Board interxis to undertake another externally fackitated evaluation within the next two years.

Re-slection
Al Diractors on the Board at 28 December 2012 will seek re-alaction at the Company's AGM on 1 May 2013 in compiance with the Code.
Following his eppointment to the Board on 1 March 2013, Charles Berry will retire and seek election as a Director of the Company st the AGM,

Accountability
As previously detailed, the Board has an astablished Audit Committes. Further information en the Committee and its roles and responsibilities
can be found on page 55.

Auditors

The Augdit Commitiee maintains a policy on the appointrent and role of tha auditors. This includes keeping under review the auditors’
independenca by providing guidelines an any non-audit services that are 1o be provided by the auditors. The auditors confirm thelr
Independence at least annually. A tormal policy exists which ensures that the nature of the advice to be provided could not impair the
objectivity of the auditors” opinion on the Group's financial statements. This policy was made more robust during the period and only alows
the auditors to be engaged for non-audit services subject to Committee approval being obtained prior to any such appointment where the
axpected cost of non-audit services provided by the appointed external sauditors is in excess of £75,000.

Non-audit tee work conducted by Emst & Young LLP over the past year for assurance services amountaed to 15% of the tolal tees including
audlt fees. Tha Committes considers that the level and nature of non-audit work does not compromise the independence of the external
auditors,

Fees payabla to Emst & Young LLP in respect of audit and assurance sendces ol £1.7m (2011: £1.8m) in respect of 2012 were approved
by the Audit Committee.
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During 2011, the Committes conducted an in depth review of the performance of the external auditers which congidered, inter alia, the team,
the scope of the audit and ovarall value for money provided. One output from this review was the Introduction of a second Group audit m
partner who was in post tor the 2011 yaar end reporting cycle and provided continuity at a senior level following rotation of the tead audit
partner et the end of their five year period in post.

In eccomance with applicable ethical and profassional stendards, the external auditers are required to periodically rotate partnars at a Group, v
divisional or country leve! In order to maintain their independence and objectivity with the lead pariner required 1o rotate every five years.
Following a review of the selection of the new lead partner in 2011, a new lead pariner was appointed in 2012 for a term of five years,

Having considered the relationship with the independent auditor, thelr quatification, expertise, resources and effectiveness, in particular
nating the rotation of audit partner during the pericd., the Committee conctuded that the external auditors remain independent and etfactive
and recommended o the Board that Emst & Young LUP be re-appointed as the Company's extemal auditors for 2013. There are no
contractual obligations restricting the Group's cholce of external auditors and the Committes also keeps under review the value tor money
of the audit.

A rasolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as tha Company’s auditors will be put 1o the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

So far as sach of the Direclors is aware, thare is no ralevant sudit information {as defined by section 481 of the Companies Act 2006) of which
the Company's auditors ara unaware.

Each of the Directors has taken all of the steps that he or ghe cught to have taken as a Director 1o make himself or herself eware Ot any relevant
audht information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Internal control and risk management
The Group's high level approach to maneging risk and the key risks to delvery of ita sirategy are 561 out on pages 42 10 45.

The key rofes and responsiblities for risk management are ast out below.

Rtk Marnpy ponaibilities

Board

Overall responsibliity tot the Group's risk management and intemal = Annual review of the effectiveness of the risk managemeant and
contral frameworks, and strategic decisions within tha Group. intemal control frameworks.

= Review of risks which have the potential to impact the delivery
of the Group's strategic objectives,

- Taking decisions in accondance with the celegated authority matrices.

Audit Committes
Dalegated rasponsibifity from the Board 1o review the effectivaness - Annual assessment of the effectivenass of the risk managament
ot the Group's risk and intemal control frameworks., and internal contro! frameworica.,

- Review of reports from the internal and extemnal aud!it teams,

- Reviaw of the rasults from the six-monthly sell-assessmarnt
compliance scorecards.

Risk Committes
Executive committee responsible for govemence of the Greup's - Revigw of the design and operation of the Group Risk Management
Risk Management Policy and Framework. Policy and Framework,

- identification and assassment of the key risks facing the Group,
identification of the key controls mitigating those risks, and
identification of further actions whare necessary.

- Review of the Divisional Risk Dashboards considering the
appropriatensss of management’s responses o identifiad risks,
and assassing whether there are any gaps.

- Reponrting key Group and divisional risks to the Board.

Group Executive
Executive committes with ovarall responsibliity for managing - Managing risks which have the potentlal to impact the dalivery
the Group o ensure we achiave our strategic objectives. of the Group's strategic objectives.

- Monitoring businass performance, in particular key performance
incicators ralating to strategic objectives.

- Taking strateglc decisions in eccordance with the delegated
autherity matricas.

- Escalating Issues to the Board as required.
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Diractors' Report: Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report
Continued
Risk ponaldlittes
Excallance Committees
Engineering — Menitoring the management of key risks across the Group
Environment, Health & Safety associated with the respective remits of the Excelience Committees.
Finance — Monftoring performance and compiiance with Group objectives,
MR pclicies end standards related to the respective remits of the
IT Excellence Committees.
Manutfacturing - Taking decisions in accordancs with the delegated authority matrices.
Purchasing — Escalating issues to the Group Executive a3 required.
Exacutive committees with represantatives from acress the Group - Reviewing the results from relevant assurance activities.
in the respective areas of locus. The committees govem activities
and performance in the respective areas of focus.
Divislonal menagement
Responsible for managing the businesses within the divisions - Managing risks which have tha potential 1o impact the delivery
to ensura divisional strategic objectives are achleved and there of the divisions’ strategic objectives,
Is compliance with Group policles end standards throughout — Monitoring performance and compliance with Group objectives,
their division. polictes and standards within the divisions with ragard to the outputs

from the Excellenca Committees.
- Taking decislons in accordance with the defegated authority matrices.
- Escalating issues to the Group Executive as required.
- Reviewing the results trom relevan! assurancs activitias.

Operating company management

Respansihie for ansuring company objectives are achieved — Managing risks which have the potential 1o impact the delivery
and business activities are conducted In accordanca with of their company's strategic objectives.
Group policles and standards. — Monltoring performance and compliance with Group objectives,

policies and standards within thair company,
— Teking decisions in accordance with the delegated authorty matrces,
— Escalating issues ta divisional management and Excellence
Committees as required.
— Reviewing the results from relevant assurance activities.

Internsal control

tn accordance with internal Control: Guidance to Diractors (formally known as the Turmnbuidl Guidance) the Group has an ongoing progass for
identifying, evatuating and managing the significant risks through an internal control framework. This process has been in place throughout
2012. More imtormation can be found on risk manegemeant on page 42.

Our internal control framework has tour kay layers:

- Frontline and functional controls
This includes a wida spectrum of controls as seen in most organisations, including, for example, standard operating procedures and
policies: a comprehensive Enancial planning and reporting system, including quarterly forecasting; reguler performance appreisal and
training for employess; restricted access to finencial systems and data; delegated authorily matrices for review and approval of key
transactions: protective clothing and equipment to protect our peopls from harm; 1T and data security controls: business continuity
planning; and assessment procedures for potentlal new recruits.

- Monltering and oversight controls
There is a clearly defined organisational structure within which roles and resporsibilities are articutated. There are monitoring controls
at operating company, regional. divisional and Group level, including standard key performance indicators, with action plans to address
undarperforming areas.

A compliance scorecard self-assessment is completed and reported by all operating companies twice par annum. The scorecard
assesses compbance with Group policies and proceduras.

Financial monitoring incluges comparing actual results with the forecast and prior year position on a monthly and year-to-date basls.
Significant variances are highlighted to Directors on a timely basis allowing appropriaie action to be taken,
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- Ethics and cuttural environment
Wa are commitied to doing business at al tmes In an ethical and transparent manner — ‘doing it right’, This s supportad by the Weir values m
which are the core behaviours we expect our people 1o live by in thefr working bves. Tha Weir Code of Conduct also contributes to our
culture, providing a high benchrmark by which we expect our businass 1o be conducted. Any examplas of unathical behaviour are dealt
with robustly and promptly. Tha Ethics section below provides mora detalls on the Group's activities to promote ethica! bahaviour,

- Assurance activities
We obtain a wide range of assurance 1o provide comiort to management and the Board that our controls are providing adaquate protection
from rigk and are cperating as we would expect. Sources of assurance Include: Extarnal Audit, Intemal Audit, EHS audits, (ntellactual Property
audits, IT audits, Procurement audits, and Production Systerm Lean audhs.

The verious sudit teams plan their activities on & risk basis, ensuring resources are directed at the areas of greatest nead. Issues and
racommendations to enhance controls are reported to management to ensure timaly action can be taken, with oversight provided from
the refevant governance committees, including the Audit Committee and the Excellonce Committees.

The Group's internal control procedures described in this section do not cover joint venture interests. We have board representation
on each of our joint ventura companias where separate, albeit similar, Internal contro! frameworks have been adopted.

Directore’ statement of responsibliitios
Tha Direciors are responsible for prepasing the Armual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and reguiations.

Company law requires the Dikrectors to prepare financial slatements for each financial year. Under thal law, the Disectors have prepaned the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financia Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by the European Union and
the Comparny financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and apphicable law.

In preparing those financial staternents, the Directors are required 1o

- salect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentty;

- maks judgaments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

- state that the Group financial statements have compliad with IFRS a5 adopted by the European Union, subject to any material departures
being disciosad and explained;

- stata for the Company financial siatements whelher the applcable UK Accounting Standards have been tollowed, subject to any material
departuras being disclosed and explained.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial statements.
Each of the Direclors, as at the date ol this Report, confirms 10 the best of his or her knowledge that:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabdlities, financial position and profit of the Group:;
— the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the dovelopment and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.,

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and enable them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Articla 4 of the IAS
Reguiation. Thay ate also responsible for sateguanding the assets of the Group and hance tor taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraudt and other imeguilarities.

Going concemn

Tha Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continus to opearata for the foreseeabia future. For this
reason, they cantinue to adapt the going concern basts in preparing the financial statements. In farming this view, the Directors have reviewed the
Group's budgets, plans and cash fiow forecasts, including markst downturn sensitivities. In addition, the Directors have considered the poteniiat
impact of creddt risk and liquidity risk detalied tn note 30 to the Group financial statements on pages 127 te 135. Each of thesa items has been
considered in relation to the Group’s banking facilities described on pages 113 and 114.

Ethics

The Weir Code of Conduct provides a clear framework for decision-making, highlighting the values and beheviours we expect our people to
demonstrate whilst making those decisions. It provides details on how we expect our psople to conduct themsetves on a day-to-day basis
and guidance on where to go for help.

The Welr Group PLC Anrugl Ropon end Financis) Staternents 2012 L]




Directors’ Report: Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report
Continued

The Code of Conduct covers & wide range of topics including anti-bribery and corruption, developing our people, heahh and sataty,
use of company property and resources, and conflicts of interest. It is available in numerous languages and has practical eamples to
assist interpretation,

Reguiar training I8 provicded on the Code of Conduct to ali our pecpls. A mandatory e-leaming programme s aimed at those employsess who are
deemed to have e higher risk of exposure to bribery and coruption. The higher risk is a8 a consaqguence of their decision-making responsibiites
in regard to third parties including customers, suppliers, and seles agents. Such ‘at risk’ employees include:

-~ the Senior Management Group;
- Sales and Marksting employess;
— Purchasing employess; and

- Finance employees.

The 'at risk’ group of employees is also required 10 complets & quarterly online certification process to confirm that they are in compliance
with tha Code of Conduct.

Ovar 2,500 employees completed the e-eaming modules rolled out in 2012, The complgtion of the e-learning end quarterty onfine
certification s monitored by the Company Secrelary.

Topics from the Code of Conduct are built into “Town Hali' meetings conducted within operating companies across the Group. These present
s opportunity for employess to ask Guastions, as well as providing real lite examplas of how the Code of Concuct should be Implementad.
in addition, the Cade of Conduct is a key topic in the induction training provided to &l employeas.

The Code of Conduct is also reinforced through communications, 101 exampte within:

- the Group, regional and functional conterences;
- Senior Management Group fraining courses such as Leadership Development; and
- 100 day imegration plans for new acquisitions.

Ethical relationships with our suppiiers
We Bource raw materials, componenis and senvices across the globe. Our suppliers play a critical role in our business and our relationships
with them are based on achieving best parformance, product, delivery. service and total cost in an ethical and sustainable manner.

‘The Group recognises that s responsibifities do nat end at our factory doors and that they extend to our supply chein. We have a Supply
Chain Pollcy which sets out the minimum standards we expect our suppliers to abide Dy in connaction with:

- how they treat their workforce;

- legal and reguiatory compliance;
- health and safety:

- business athics; and

— environmental standards.

In addition, the Code of Conduct is issued to our key suppliors. Assessments are undertaken with regard to compliance with Group
standards as part of the vetting process for new suppliers. We also audit our key suppliers annually to assess ongoing compliance with
the Supply Chain Policy and other relevant Group standards. Whaeraver possible, we work with our suppéers to support them to address
weaknesses identifed. Tho Woir Group is committed to working only with third parties, including customers, sub-contractors, suppliers
and joint venture and strategic aliance pertners, whose business ethics and behaviours are consistent with our own Code of Conduct.

Each operating company is responsible for agresing the business terms and condltions with suppllers, including the terms of payment.
It is Group policy thet payments to suppliers are mads in accordance with the agreed terms. At 28 December 2012, the Group had an
average of 68 days’ purchases outstanding In trade creditors.

External sales agents

Tha Group engapes e number of extemal sales agants across the giobe to act on its behalt in locations where it does not have a permanent
sales presence, or in regard 10 specific projects. There is a sales agents’ manual which sets out the Group requirements with regard to
appointing and reappointing agents, as well as the ongoing monitoring requirements. Due diigence is performed prior to all appointmants
and reappointmants by the legal department. The standard Weir contract must ba used, the terms of which include stipulation that agents
mus1 comply with the Code of Conduct. The agents are required to confinm in writing their compliance with the Code of Conduct.
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Qifts and hospitality

We recognise that gifts and hospitality have the potential to create a conflict of intarest, or the perception of a conflict of interest. As a result,
there are Group policias with regard to recaiving and giving gifts and hasphiality from. and to, third parties. In no circumstances should gifts
or hospitality be soticited, and they should not place the rectpient under any obligation.

Al gitts and hospltality above the minimum thrashold must be pre-approved using an onling gitts and hospitality register. imtermal Audit
assesses compiances with the Group's gifts end hospitality poficies during audit visits and undertakes monthly revigws of the register.

Reporting lasues

The Group encourages our peopla to discuss any ethical concemns they may have with local management or the legal departmant.

In addition, an independent and confidential telephone helpline and an online reporting tool {the Weir Ethics Hotling) are aveilable for
our employess, partners and third parties to call or email with any concerns that they have concerning unethical behaviour. Calls to the
hetpine are free and lines are open 24 hours a cay, seven days e week. Reports can be made in a wide range of languages reflacting
our global tootprint,

Nineteen reports ware submitted and investigated in 2012. Following suitabla investigation, no action was required in ten cases, and the
remaining cases were eppropriately addressed through further training, poticy or communication improvements or disciplinary process.
Subject to confidentiality considerations, the outcome of each investigation is provided in 5o far as iz possible, via the Ethics Hotline,

to the complainant.

Remuneration
Detalils of the Walr Group's Remunaration Committae can be found on page 56. Further Information on the Committes, along with irformation
on the Group's overall remuneration structure, is contained in the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to BO.

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of estabishing and maintaining good relationships with aft of the Company’s shargholdars. During the
period under review, the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Chalrman and Remuneration Committee Chairman have met with
analysls and instilutional sharehoiders io keep them informed ot significant developments and report to the Board accordingly on the views
of thesa staksholders,

Each of the other Non-Executive Directors is also offerad the opportunity to attend meetings with major shareholders and would do so

it requested by any major shareho!gter. The Compary's investor relations progreamme includes formal presentations of full year and intenim
results and mestings with indvidual investors as appropriate. Through this programme, the Company has directly engaged with 599 investors
in 2012 either face-to-tace of via telephons or video-conferancing. indepandeant teedback from these meetings is provided to the Board.

The Company Secretary is also charged with bringing to the attention of the Board any material matters of concem raisad by tha Company's
sharehotders, ncluding private investors.

The Interim Raport and the Annual Report and Fingncial Statements are the primary means used by the Board for communicating during the
year with all of the Company's shareholders. Tha Board also recognises the importance of the intermnet as a means of communicating wiclely,
quickly and cost-eflectivaly and a Group websita s maintained to facilitate communications with shargholders. Infortnation avaliable online
includes copies of the full and half year financial siatements. press releases end Company news, corporate govemancae information, key
dates in the financial calendar and the terms of raference for the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Commitiees,

The Board is committed to the constructive use of ths Annusl General Meseting as a forum to meet with sharehodders and to hear their

vigws and answer their questions about the Group and its business. The 2013 AGM is t¢ be held on Wednasday 1 May 2013 at the Radisson
Blu Hotel, Gtasgow. The Chairmen of the Remunaration, Nomination and Audit Commitiess will be available 10 answer qusstions relevam

to tha work of those Commiittees. i is the Company's practice to proposs separate resolutions on each substantive 13500 at the AGM,

The Chairman will advise shareholders on the proxy voting details at the mesting.

Notice of the AGM s sani to sharegholders at laast 20 working days befora tha meeting and is also evallable to download from the Company's
wabsite. The Company conducts the vote at the AGM by elactronic poll and the rasult of the votes (including praxies) is published on the
Company's websita atter the mesting. Elactronic proxy voting is available and details of this are included in the Notice of the AGM.

Keith Ruddock

Company Secretary
Signed and approved for and on behalf of the Board
27 February 2013
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Remuneration Report
Remuneration Committee Chairman’s introduction

This is my first report to shareholders following my appointment as Chairman of the
Remunaration Committae at the 2012 AGM. | would like to thank Mike Oearden. my
predecessor, who retired from the Board at that time, for his support to me in my new
rofe. This report covers the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012 and sets out the
changes that we have implemented in respect of 2013. Since my appointment | have
spent ime with management understanding the purpose and detall of each element
of our remunearation strategy. | have also mat with a number of our major sharaholders
and their represantative bodles to get ther views on remunaration structuras in the
changing environment. | would like to thank them tor sharing thalr views at these
introductory meatirgs.

At the beginning of 2012, the Department of Business, innovation and Skis (BIS")
announced a seres of executive remuneration reformas tor consultation. The principal
drivers are ‘pay for parformance. not tallure’, improved transparency (in particutar the Enk
batween remuneration and Group strategy) and an increasad abéiity for shareholders to
hotd comperies to account in respsact of exacutive pay. Weir supports, In principle, what
the proposed feforms are trying to achieva and has contributed to the consuttation
process during the course of 2012

As debate cortinued around the reforms, the Association of British insurers (ABL)

and Research, Recommendations and Electronic Voting ({RREV", togathar with a small
number of major institutions, updatad or Issued their own principtas of remuneration,
with a common theme of simplification, Welr again supports this objective, provided this
ts not inconsistent with the promotion of value creation and rewarding success fairly.

We look forward to continuing to engage with our shareholders, their rapreseniative
bodies and BIS during the courss of 2013, as we review our existing arangements and
prapare to implament the new rules in 2014,

In defivering & record financial pesformance in 2012, the Group has dealt wel with difficutt
conditions in its prncipal markets. As set out in the Chist Exacutive's Strategic Raview,
the beginning of the yaar saw a major and unaxpacted downtum in the upstream
pressure-pumping markets and, in the second half, a slowdown in demand for iron ore
and coal, with some associatad project deferrals. These were in addition to the continuing
challanging giobal economic environment, all of which continued o 2013,

The managament team identified the slowdown in upstreamn pressure-pumping markets
sarly and reacted by rapidly introducing efficiency measures and realigning capacity 10
the strongest growth opportunities. In mining markets, the strategy to embrace diverse
commadity exposura, high product qualty and superior attarmarket capabiity of the
Minerals Division, undempinned & good performance.
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At the same time as taking early action to deal with market chatlenges, tha manapemant
taam has continued to focus on driving the Group’s long tarm vahse. Irvestment in
technological innovation, supply chain capebillity and talent deveiopment acroas the
Group have been features of 2012, as Weir continues to enhance its sources of
competliive advantage.

It was against this background that the Remuneration Committes reviewed the overall
structure of our emculive remuneration, inchuding the balance betwoen fixed and variable
pay, tha pay polbicy of the Group as a whale and cost to sharsholders. Specific tems
considerad incluted the salaries of the Chie! Executive end the Finance Director, soma
minor mendments 1o the annual bonus scheme in 2013 and the 2013 Long Term Incartive
Plan (LTP’) awards.

The Committee believes that our overall remuneration policies and practices support
our business strategy. including promating the long term success of the business and
our talent strategy.

Further details of, and commentary on, the salary increasss for the Chial Executive
and the Finance Director, amandments to the bonus schame and the LTIP, and fees
for Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman are sat out |ater in this Raport. The key
elements are briefly summarised below:

- basas salary increasa for the Chief Executive from £700,000 to £725.000, an increase
o! 3.6 per cent and in kne with the commitment made in 2010;

- base selary increase for the Financa Director from £420,000 to £440,000, an increase
of 4.8 per cent;

- raview of the bonus scheme with the introduction for Executive Directors of 20 per
cent of total bonus potential to be contingent on meeting personal objectives, BO per
cent (previously 100 per cent) to remain contingent on the achisvemnant of nomatised
Profit Before Tax and Armnortisation (PBTAY);

- changes o the earnings per share ('EPS’) range for the LTIP to reflect the current
environment that represent challenging and motivational targets for executives;

- base fees incragse for the Non-Executive Directors from £50,000 to £65,000; and

- fees increase for the Chairman from £250,000 to £276.000.

The Committee bellsves that the salary increages, which for the Chief Exacutive la in
ine with previous guidance, are justified by superior personal performance and that the
amendments to the bonus scheme will further increase the alignment of remuneration
with strategy. The Committee is confident that the targats for both the 2013 bonus
scheme and LTIP are appropriately challenging.

During the course of this year, the Remuneration Committee will continue to review
the Group's overall remuneration structure and engage with shareholders and their
representative bodies as we formutate our remuneration policies for considaration
at the AGM in 2014,

Melanie Gee
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Report
Continued

Mombership and activities of ihe Remuneration Committee

Malanie Gee became Chairman of the Committee on § May 2012 taking over from Michaal Dearden. Tha other membars of the Committee
are Lord Robertson and Richard Menell. During 2012, Keith Ruddock took on the role of Secretary tor the Committee trom Alan Mitchelson
{ollowing his retiremant during the year.

Allmembars of the Committee are considerad independant Non-Executive Directors and no individual plays a part in the detarmination of their
ownh remuneration,

Rsmunesatisn Committes membership Appointed 10 the ¢ End of tanure on Commities
Michael Daarden (outgoing Chairman) 11 May 2005 9 May 2012
Maeianie Gee {incoming Chalrman) 9 May 2012 -
Lord Robertson 8 December 2008 -
Richard Mensil 29 July 2011 -

The Commitiee determines, within agreed terms of refarence, specific remuneration packages for each of tha Chairman, the Executive
Directors and Company Secratary of the Company and the othar members of the Group Executive. The Committea also has regard

to pay end conditicns amongst the wider employee population. The Committes’s Terms of Referance can be found on the Group’s weabsite.
The Executive Directors are not invelved in any discussions or dabate regarding thelr own remuneration,

Advisore to the Remuneration Committee

The Committes undertook a salection procass to appolnt new advisors during 2011 and appoirted PwC with effect from Decernber 2011,

PwC demonstrated a good track recond in working with FTSE 100 companias. In shareholder engagement and ativising on the wider regutatory
environment. In the course of 2012, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the quality of the pdvice and was comfortabla that PwC should
continue to provide independent extarna! advice to the Committee in relation to the Group's executive remunaration policy and its implementation.

The Committes recognises tha need to obtain Indapendent advice and given that PwC provides additional eervices to the Group, the
Remuneration Chairman has discussed this with PwC ang management. The Committee is confident that any potantial conflicts are
managsd appropriately by the Comparwy and PwC. For information, the additional services provided by PwC include advice on pension
schemes, taxation, company secrelariat services and global mobility servicas. PwC atso provided Internal audit services, dus dillgencs
and corporate finance advice In retation to ecquisitions and advice in relation to the Group's carbon emissions and sustainability strategy.

Remuneration Committee 2ganda 2012

The Cammitiee met five timas in 2012, The annua! egenda usually covers the undernoted topics. However, any other non-cyclical agenda
items thal occur within the Committee’s Tarms of Reference may also beinctuded. For axample, In 2012 the agenda included the BIS
consultation on remuneration reform as an additional item.

Commities meating 2012 apends kema

Janyary 2012 Approva 2011 bonus payments for the Group Executiva,
Note the ramuneration of the Group Exacutive for 2012,
Update on responses to the 2012 remuneration changes letter sent to investors.

February 2012 Note datails of the 2011 bonus payments 10 be paid to senior axacutives.
Approve the vesting of the 2009 LTIP based on performance testing.
Approve the participants end performance conditions of the 2012 LTIP award.
Approve Defarred Bonus Plan share awards from 2011 bonus to senior axecutives.
Consider the Remuneration Report to shareholders.

July 2012 Review of intarim LTIP awards for new joiners.
Update on BIS consultation on remuneration retorm.

September 2012 Review of remunaration climata and the new proposed requiremanis under the BIS legislation.
Pertormance updates under the LTIP tor existing awards.

December 2012 Proposed amendments and targets for 2013 annual bonus plan.
Proposed performance measures and award levels lor the 2013 LTIP.
Review salary proposals for witder Group.
Review salarias for Executives Directors for 2013.
Feedback from 2012 AGM and racent sharoholder meetings.
Review proposad changes in light of overall business and remuneration strategy.
Revigw of Terms of Reference.
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Remuneration policy for Group executives

The Group's overarching remunaration policy is designed to ensura that remuneration supports the Group’s strategy and business objectives.
The pobcy has been developed to support the creation of value for shareholders, drive appropriate behaviours and incentivise

while being clearly Enked t0 indivichel and corporate performange. The Remuneration Committee is mincful of a broad rangs of stakeholders
In setting this policy and considers best practice guidelines from sharehoiders and their representative bodiies. The Committee has adopted
a set of principlas which are used as the basis upon which the remunerstion arrangements am reviewed each year.

The Group's remunesation principles are that reward should enabile the Group to:

- afiract, motivate and retaln senior exacutives with the necessary abilities to manage and develop the Group's activitias successfully
for the benefit of shareholders;

- clearty sign remuneration outcomes with the long term interests of the Group and lts ehareholders;

- drive appropriate behaviours that are in line with the culture of the Group and focus exaecutives on the critical business objectivas
by rewanding tham egainst chalenging performance criteria; and

- provide a significant part of potential reward through performanca based incentive plans for all senior exacutives,

During the course of 2013, the Remuneration Committee will review proposals for the Group's overall remuneration structure and its application
in 2014 and beyond. The Committee will engage with shareholders and their reprasentative badies as the Comparry develops an enduring
remuneration policy that will operate effectively through the business cycla.

To ensure the imerests of management remain aligned with those of shareholders, Exacutive Directors are expected to bulld up a shareholding
in the Company of 100% of base salary over a five year period. This may be achieved by purchasing shares or retaining a proportion of share
awards that vest. An element of the annual bonus must be deferred Inta ehares.

Further detafts of each efement of the reward framework for Executive and Non-Executive Directors are est out on the following pages.
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Remuneration Report

Continued

Elements of remuneration for Executive Directors tn 2012
The following table sets out how each element of the Executiva Directors’ reward package operated in 2012 end changes for 2013,

Maxkinem Performancs melrics,
Purpose O potenital value i and panod Key changes in 2013
Basa salary
To attract and ratain Raviewad annually by - - Chigl Exgcutive's satary
talanted leaders., raferance to personal wil Increase from £700,000
performance, the wicer to £725.000 (3.6%).
employee context, Finance Director's salary
economic and labour wil Increasa from £420,000
merkat conditions. and 10 £440,000 (4.8%).
gimilar sized companies.
Pension and benefits
To provicte a market Banagfits include: - - No change.
abgned benaflts packags.  car atowance; Group
heglthcare; trave!
allowance: and death
in tervice insurance.
The Group makes no
provision for Executive
Dirgctors’ pansions.
Annual bomus
To reward the Based on in-yesr 150% of salary for 100% of the annual 20% of overadl bonus
achigverment at pecfarmance Cnief Exacutive. bonus is basad on the basad on personal
stretching Group against targats. 100% of salary for other achigvement of normaSsed  performance tangats.
pertormance for Targets are approved by the  Executive Directors. PETA 1srgets meesured over ang remains based
the Cureant yoar. Ramyneration Committae the financiz] yoar, Subject 10 o, normased PETA.
prior to the beginning ovarall Group performance
of the performance year. during that period
30% of bonus ia
compudsority deferred into
shares under the LTIP,
Addtional 25% of bonus
rmay ba veluntarity defarred
it ahanes for the Chiel
Exacutive end 20% for
qther Executive Directors,
Long Term incentive Plan - performence shares
To Incentivisa exacutives Policy is 10 make awards 200% of salary can ba Pertormance conditions Raglignment of EPS
to achieve sustained of 1009% of salary for ewarded in exceptional measured over three target range based on
growth through superior Executive Directors. circumstances. financial years. interna! and external
long term performance Pertormance shases Performance maasures forecasts. The range
m 3:;‘9 alignment are entitled to dividend end relalive weightings are: ':;'“Md o 5% to
enoiders. equiveionts batween - Growth In EPS of 7% per annum.
award and vesling 10 15% per grnum Addition of ona compary 1o
in the tonm of ehares. (50% weighting); the TSR comparator group.
— Total Shareholder Rawirn
(TSR redative to comparator
group of global engineering
companias (50% weighting).
Long Term incentive Plan - matching sheres
To supplemant the The compulsory and 200% of the deferrod Partormance conditions Realignment of EPS
long term elements voluntary deferred ennual bonus subject to measured over three target range based on
of pay and further elements of the bonus parformance conditions. financlal years. internal and extamat
afign executives aftraci concitional Performance measuras torecasts. The ange
to tha Inferests of matching shares and and retalive waightings are: D83 moved o 5% to
sharehokiers through are subjact 10 clawback. 11% per anntm.
the cievelopment of 8 ~ Growih in EPS of 7%
ificant sherehald Compuisory investmant fo 15% per annum Addition of one comparny to
sign reholding and matching shares (50% welghting); the TSR comparalor group.
in the Giroup. are entitled 1o dividend ;
equivalants batween - TSR relative to comparator
award and vesting group of global engineering
in the form of shares. comparies (50% weighting.

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
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1]
Elemeonts of remuneration for Non~Executive Directors in 2002
Maximum Partormance matrics, L
Purposs Opu_l_uon potentisl value Weightings and peried Key changes in 2013
To altrect and rotain Reviewad annually by - - Chalrman and Non-
experienced and skilied refarence to companies of Exscutive Director fees wil
Non-Executive Directors. simitar size, economic and change from 1 April 2013, v
labour market conditions as Details can be found on
wel as time commitmaon page 73.
and responsiblities. —

Romunerstion scenarios

A kay elemant of the Group’s remuneration poticy is to provide a significant part of potential reward through periormance based incentive
pians. Sat out below is the reward mix for both Exacutive Directors at target parformance and maximum performance. The package

is broacly structured so that for maximum performance at least 75% of the overall packagae is delivered through variable pay. As such

the aggregate level ©f remuneration received by each of the Executive Directors demonstrates a clear ralationship between delivery of
parformance and total remuneration.

Tha scenarios prasented above demonstrate the proportion of maximum remuneration that is achieved by each remunaraticn element

Chief Executive (%) Financ¢o Director (%)

&t maximum and target performance. Target performanca is based on an assessment of the proportion of maximum award that would be
paid should budgeted performance levels be met.

Masterial factors taken into account when aetting the remuneration policy
The Committes is mindtul of a broad range of stakeholders in the business and is kaen to engags wher@ appropriate on key areas of policy
setting and implemantation. The Committes has considerad the following in developing the changes for 2013:

Annual Qenoral Meeting foedback
The Committee has considered the feedback provided by sharehotders, the ABI and RAEV from the 2012 AGM, Any review of the Group's
remuneration strategy would take into regard such commenis.

Department for Businoas, Innovation and Skills
The Commitiae has taken into consideration the proposed changes cutiined in the BIS revised remuneration reporting regulations.

The widar amployee context

In determining the adjustmants to the Exascutive Directors’ and Group Executive salaries, the Committee has considered the increases
to pay kevels across the broader employee population, which in the UK are up to 4.5%, afthough they can be above this figure for
axceptional candidatas.

Shareholder engagement

The Committes has written to our major shareholders and their reprasentative bodies intorming them of the changes to tha Exacutive
Directors’ base satarias as well as other changas to be implamented in 2013.
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Remuneration Report
Continued

Borvice controcts

Chairman and Nen-Executive Directors

The Chairman and sach of the Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment The letters of appointment do not contain any contractual
entitlement to a termination payment and the Non-Executive Directors can be remaved in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.
Directors ara requined 10 réetire at each Annual Genaral Meeting and seek re-election by shareholders.

The details of the service contracts, including notice periods, conained in the istters of appointment In relation to the Non-Executive
Directors who served during the 2012 financial year are sel out in the table below.

Nou-E: ive Directsr [ dats Expiry of current farm___ dotics period by the individusl __ Nollos partod by the C
Michael Dearden* 17 February 2003 - - -
Alan Ferguson 13 December 2011 May 2013 - 6 months
Metanie Ges 4 May 2011 May 2013 - 6 months
Stephen King* 3 February 2006 - - -
Richard Menell 1 April 2009 May 2013 6 months 6 months
John Mogford 1 Jung 2008 May 2013 6 months € months
Lord Rebertson {1 February 2004 May 2013 6 months 6 months
Lord Smith 18 August 2003 May 2013 8 months 68 months
" D +and St KIng res!ed from the Board at the AGM In My 2012,

Executive Directors’ service contracts
All tha Exacutive Directors who served during the year have sarvice contracts with the Company, The respective notice periods contalned
within thesa are detalled below.

In the even that the Company terminates an Executive Director's servica contract other than In accordance with its terms, the Committee,
whaen detarmining what compensation, if any, should property be paid by the Group to the departing Exacutive Director, will give full consideration
to the ohligation of that Executive Director to mitigate any oss which they may sulfer as a result of the termination of thelr contract.

The detais of the service contracts in relation to the Exacutive Directars who served during the year are sat out in the tabla below.

Executive Director dute Unexpired tarm__Notice pariod by the individual  Notics period by the C.

Kalth Cochrane 2 November 2009 12 months 12 months 12 months
Alan Mitchelson’ 12 December 2001 - - -
Jon Stanton 18 April 2010 12 months 6 months 12 months

*Alen Micheltzon resigned from the Board st Cue AGM In May 2012,

To recruit the best exacuiives, the Commities may in the future agree contractual notice periods which initially exceed 12 months, particutarly
if It Is necessary to attract executives who will be required to relocate thelr families.

Execitive Directors’ axtemnal appointmenis

The Executive Directors are permitied, with Board agreement, to take up one non-execiutive appointment provided there ks no conflict of interest
and that the tima spant would not impinge on their work for the Group. It is the Group's policy that remunaration earmed from such appointments
may be kept by the individual Executive Director. No Executive Director received remuneration for external appeointmaents during 2012,

Exscutive Directors’ salaries for 2013

in the 2010 Remuneration Report, the Committee cutined its intention to incraase the Chiaf Exacutive's satary to a targset levet of £726,000
over a three year period, which received sharehokier support. This was subject to individual and company performance, inchuding the Group's
financial success and the maintenance of its ranking in the FTSE 100. The Committee is satisfied that the required conditions have been
achieved in 2012 and has approved the final increase 1o take his salary to £725,000 from Apri2 2013,

The Committee has also declded that an adjustment be made to the Finance Director’s salary from £420,000 to £440,000, an increase

of 4.8%. The Committes took account of the Finance Director's individua! performance as weall es that of the Group, and guidelines for pay
increases for UK employees which are up 10 4.5% for 2013, although can be above this figurs for exceplional candidales.
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Non-Executive Directors' remunoration tor 2013

The Chalrman's fee Is agreed by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. Fees for the Non-Executive Directors are determined
by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors’ fees and Chairman's fees are roviewed annuatly and
changes were tast made in 2011. In determining fee levels tor 2013, the following was taken Into account: time commitment, the scale of role,
general market practice and comparison with companies of an equivalent size based on information provided by PwC. As a resuft of this
review in 2012, it has bean determined that the kollowing will apply from April 2013:

Chairman’s fos is £275,000 par annum {2012: £250,000).

Non-Execirtive Directors’ bass tee is £55.000 per ennum (2012: £50,000) .

Additiona! fees of £10,000 per anaum 2012: £10,000) are pald to the Audit Commities Chairman and the Remuneration
Committee Chalrman.

Additional tees of £10,000 per annum {2012 £5,000) are paid to the Senior Independent Director,

Additional allowances are made avaiable to Non-Executive Directors, where appropriate, to reflect the additional time commitment
in attending intarcontinental Board meetings and operational visits.

Non-Executiva Directors do not participate in any of the Group's incentive plans or receive a pension or other banefits. The same is true
for the Chairman axcept for an entitiernent to participate in the Group healthcare scheme.

The Chairman ang the Non-Executive Directors are not invotvad in amy discussions or decisions about thek own remuneration.

Remuneration outcomes for Executive Directors
The Welr Group has outperftormed both the FTSE 100 and its comparator group used for the LTIP on a total shareholdar raturn basis over
a five year period.

The graph betow illustratas the performance of the Group against the FTSE 100 Index and the comparator group used for awards made
under the LTI in 2012.

Totat Shareholder Roturn performance chart (Indexed)

The chart hove thows the valus, as ar 28 December 2012, of £100 invested In The Wair Groun PLC tharss over the kst five Inancial yasrs comparned with the valus of £100 Fwvestas
In the FTSE 100 Inctex snd the o8 of Ing 2012 Cor Group under the LTIP, dstads of which can be tounct on peage 77. Eagh point plotteo I at the end of sach fnencial year,

The Welt Qroup PLE Annual Report and Fintneint Siatemants 2012 "




Directors' Report: Corporate Govermnance
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Directors' remuneration
The foliowing table sets out the remuneration received by the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors during the year. The table and
aocompanying notes are subject to audh.

Salery & Bonus Banefits Toral Total
foes trvate 7) ote ) =2 201
Notes |4 |4 t r t
Chairmen and Non-Executive Directors:
Michael Dearden 1 23,250 - - 23,250 62,500
Alan Fergugon 2 60,000 - - 60,000 6,288
Metanie Geo 3 56,452 - - 56,452 32,830
Stephen King 4 21,462 - - 21,482 58,125
Richard Menall 50,000 - - 50,000 48,750
John Mogford 50,000 - - 50,000 48,750
Lord Robertson 5 53,238 - - 53,238 48,750
Lord Smith 250,000 - 498 250488 233614
564,402 - 498 584,900 539,707
Executive Directors:
Kaith Cochrane 687,500 568,584 23,001 1,279,085 1.621.645
Alan Mitchetson 141,154 B4, 764 5238 241,156 708.684
Jon Stanton 415,000 227433 14,466 658,899 BUB.S57
1,808,056 890,781 43,203 2,742,040 3,676,893
Pravious year comparatives 1.900,845 1,725,000 51,048

Notas
1 mmhuuﬂo—mmmwwmewmlzmmﬂr for sarvicas a3 Chalrman of the Romuneration Committes (2011: £10,000) snd £1,785 tor his rote &3

Sanior indopendent Director C2011: €5,0008.

2. The tees tor Alan Ferguaon include £10,000 for senica as Chairman of the Audiht Committas.

N soaE

TS

The loos tor Metario Gos nclude 08,452 for services a3 Chaimen ol the Remunerition Commirtss from fer appoimmmsnt on 9 May 2012
The tess tor Staphen King, who resigned on § May 2012, Inctude £3.577 1or stervicea as Cherman of ha Audh Committas {2011: £10.000%.
Thae foas fov Lorc Rabertson include £3,236 for services sa Sertor independent Director from 8 May 2012

Salary, car slowance and banefts for Alan Michstson cover the period ud t 9 May 2012 for when he was an Executive Director of the Grovup, Saisry includss pay for outstanding

holday enditament.

This borus Agures 1or Keith Cochrone and Jon Stanton includo £170,675 @011: £292,500) and £88,230 (2011: £120,000% reapectivaly, which will e compuisorily dacuctad from thelr
bonus 1 uchanga 1or which they wil be awarded rvestment sheres which, amlowdmgunpby-:lvdhqunmhmmnmmﬁmmoﬂma?ﬁﬂm
atendance

Benetts include, &3 appropriatn, car alowants, privicd Med:.ca' and death in gervice inSUrance premiums, and travel sxpansas inourred in cor Y with

ol business fuhcTiona and other COMORS avents.
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Variable pay awarded in ths year

Annual bonus outcoma

The Group operates an annual bonus plan for Executive Directors as set oul in the section of this Report on remuneration policy for
Group executives. Annual bonus awards for 2012 werp based entirely on normalised PBTA targets. in 2012, the Group deliverad above
threshold performance resulting in bonus payouts of 54% of the maximum benus avallable for the Executive Directors.

The chart below Blustrates the percentage of salary that is attainabie for sach of the Exacutive Directors at maximum performance.
In addition. the 2012 outcoms of the annual bonus plan is also illustrated for each Exeacutive Director demonstrating the proportion
of compuisary defermed bonus.

Annual bonus outcome 2012

In line with the Group's remuneration policy, Executive Directors were reguired to dafar 30% of thair bonus under the LTI, in exchange for
which they are awarded invastment sharas. in addition to the compulsory deferral, the Chie! Exacutive and Finance Director may voluntarily
dofor an additional 25% and 20% respoctively of the remaining not bonus recelived to be converted into shares. The deterral will result in

a matching award of shares of up to 200% the pre-tax valus of tha original deferral, subject to the performance conditions dascribed on
page 77.

Computgory investment and matching shares are entitied to dividend equivalents between award and vesting, paid in additiona! shares
at the end of the performance period.

Annual bonus changes for 2013

The Committee has raviewed the overall structure and operation of the annual bonus plan during the year with consideration of markst
practice and alignment with the Group's business and remuneration strategies. it belleves that the primary focus should remain on
profitability. However, the Committee has approved the introduction of a personal element of bomus which will provide focus on critical
businass goals. Major sharéhoiders, the ABI and RREV were informed about the propesad changas which will come into atiect from 2013,
These are outlined below.

- Infroduction of a set of individual perfiermance measures designed to creata stronger Ene of sight baetween individual efiorts and annual
bonus outeomas. This wil represant 20% of the maximum annual bonus potential. For 2013, half of this 20% will be basad on working
capital targets,

= A corresponding reduction in the weighting of the nomalised PBTA element to 80% ot the maximum annual bonus potantial.

- The Committae has reviewad the targets and payout structure under both elements of the boniss and is satisfied that the bonus
for 2013 is sufficiently challenging. with streiching perforrnance required for maximum payous.

Tha deferral alaments and matching elemants of the bonus under the LTIP are unchanged.
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LTIP outcorme

In 2012, performanca conditions for the 2009 LTI awards were tasted to datarmine the level of vesting achieved. The 2009 awards vested
in full, along wilh the deferred elesments of the 2008 annual bonus. This was based on the Group ranking first in the TSR comparator group
and EPS outperforming the UK Retall Prices Index ovar the performance pariod.

Ralstive TSR outcome for 2009 Long Term Share incentive Plan

For the 2010 LTIP award, which is dus to vast In 2013, based on the performance perod of three years ending 31 December 2012, Wair rankad
second in tha TSR comparator group which will result in maximum payout under this element of the LTIP. For the EPS measure, growth was
32.76%, which is greater than the target of 11% per annum for full vesting, and therefore 100% of this part of the award will also vest.

Relative TSR outcome for 2010 Long Term Share Incentive Plan

TSR is based on performance over thres consecutive financial years, beginning with the year in which the award is made, Between upper
quintile and median performance, awards vest on a strajght-line basis. The TSR calculation is performed by PwC for the Committee.

The EPS growth measure Is adjusted to exclude intangibles, amortisation and exceptional items.

During the course of the performance period, the Committee may, in its absolute discretion, vary, add, remove or alter the companies making
up the comparator group wherg avents happen which cause the Committee to consider that such change is appropriate to ensure a fair
measune Of performance,

Detnil of LTIP awards made in tho year

It is the Group's remunsration policy to ensure that a significant part of potential reward is delivered through periormance based incentive
ptans. Proper alignment between the interests of management and the interests of sharsholders also forms an important part of this policy.
Therefora, in line with tha LTIP normal grant policy, awards of 100% of salary were granted to the Exacutive Directors in 2012,

in adicition, they received investment shares in exchange for the compulsory deferred element of their bonus, which, along with any voluntary
investment shares, are subject to matching shares on the third anniversary of the award if the performance conditions are met.
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It is the intention of the Committee to continue to make awards of 100% of salary for Executive Directors in 2013,

Parformance conditions associated with the 2012 LTIP award are cutiinad below &long with the conditions that will be used for awards made

in 2013. The Commitiae baliaves that a balance between EPS and relative TSR is appropriate and afigned to the Group's long tenn strategic
goals of driving sustainsd eamings performance and shareholder value creation.

The Convnittes balieves that tarpets for incentives shoulkd be stretching but also motivetional to exetutives. i is mindful of the challanging
environment the Group s currently operating in and as such has reviewed the EPS targets for the 2013 LTIP award, The targets have been

lowerad to reflect internal and extarnal gnowth forecasts 10 give a range of 5% 10 11% per annum. The Committee is confident that this range
is sufficiently challanging and is consistent with our remunsration strategy.

The Committae has atso reviewed the TSR comparator group to ensure that the companies included remain relevant and has added Fenner pic

to the comparator group for the 2013 award, 1o bring the total number of peers to 25,

The tablp below sets out the parformance conditions applicable to the outstanding LTIP awards and tha LTIP award due to be made In 2013,

Performance oonditions for the LTIP

2010 2011 2012 13

TER Yes N Yes Yes Yeos

Weighting 500 50% 50% 50%

Target Retative Parcentage  Relative Percentage  Relative Percentage  Relative Percentage

structura TSRgrowth  of the TSR TSR growth  of tha TSR TSR growth of the TSR TSRgrowth  of the TSR
against portion of against portion of against portion of the  against portion of
comparator  the award comparator  the award comparator  award that comparator  the award
group that vests qroup that vests group vests group that vasts
Upper quintils  100% Upper quintlie  100% Upper quintile  100% Upper quintile  100%
Median 25% Median 25% Median 25% Median 25%

Below median 0%

Below rmedian 0%

Below median 0%

Betow madian 0%

Comparator  AGA Rangemaster Group, AMECS®, Cameron, Crane, AMEC?, Cameron, Crane, AMEC?, Cameron, Crane,
group' Bodycots, Halma, IMI, Dover, Dresser Rand, FL Dover, Dresser Rand, FL Dover, Dresser Rand, Fenner,
Meggitt, Mitie Group, Srnidth, Flowserve, FMC, Smidth, Rowserve, FMC, FL Smidth, Flowserve, FMC,
Morgan Crucible Company,  Gardner Denver, Halma, IMI, Gardner Denver, Hatma, IMI.  Gardnar Dervar, Halma, M,
Ralls-Royes, Rotork, Sertior,  Joy Global, Lufkin, Maggitt,  Joy Global, Lufkin, Meggitt,.  Joy Global, Lufkin, Meggitt,
Smitha Group, Spirax-Sarco  Melrose, Metso, Outotec, Melrose, Metso, Cutctec, Melrose, Metso, Outotec,
Engineering, Tomkins®, Rotork. Smiths Group, Rotork, Smiths Group, Rotork, Smiths Group,
Vasuvius!, Wood Group, Spirax-Sarco Engineering, Spimx-Sarco Enginasring, Spirax-Sarco Engineering,
WS Atking SPX, Sulzer, Vesuvius?, SPX, Sulzer, Vesuvius*, SPX, Sulzer, Vesuvius*,
Wood Group Wood Group Wood Group
Growth Yes Yes Yas Yes
in EPS?
Weighting 50% 50% 50% 50%
Target EPS growth  percantage EPS growth  percentage EPS growth  percentage EPS growth  percantage
structura of EPS of EPS ol EPS of EPS
portion of portion of portion ot portion of
the award the award the award the award
that vests that vests that vests that vests
11% p.a. 100% 15% p.a. 100% 15% p.a. 100% 11% p.a. 100%
4% p.a. 25% 7% p.a. 25% 7% p.a. 25% 5% p.a. 25%
Less than 0% Lass than 0% Less than 0% Less than 0%
4% p.a. 7% p.a. 7% p.a. 5% p.a.
Performance  Single 3 year performance Single 3 year performance Single 3 year performance Singte 3 year performance
periods period for both elaments period for both elements period for both elgmants period for both elements
MNosey
£0r% UK basad A0 LS biand cofnpmnies, with the rermneinddar barsad tn Europs. th add:on. the market

1. nurmmm«mmma
1 of these

o MWIMMMGMWWH&MNM&GM
2. Mnmmum smortaxtion and toreptions sms.

on
4 [» Group
will succead Cookaon Group in the comperston

onif

[roup.
5. Charter pic waa ecquired during 2011 and has been replaced by AMEC In (he COMPratHl group.
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Total sharehoddings of directors

Long Term Incentive Ptan awards
The table and accompanying notes are subject to audit.

Humber
Number of shares
of shares Sharea under
= izpeeciidid Thares award » urket Market Noronsd
weard s Shares nol vest  exerched o1 28 Dec arice st pricest  Market valye axarcise
Detsct  #t31Dec prantsd  curingths  during the 2012 dats ot dute ot wt dath of period
Notes awsrd 2Nt during year yoar yoar {rote 3) award vesting wabting {note 4)
Kaith Cochrane
LTIP - ' 1BMar09 155257 - - 155,287 - 400p 1,787p £2,774,443 -
performance 15Mar 10 84,838 - - - 8a,838 923p - - 15Mar-
& matching 15 Jun 13
7 17 Mar 11 83,161 - - - 83,161 1608p - - 17 Mar -
17 Jun 14
7 O Mar 12 - 83528 - - 83526  1065p - - 8 Mar -
9Jun 15
LYIP - 16 Mar 09 19.715 - - 18,716 - 400p 1,787p £352,307 -
compuisory 15 Mar 10 10,181 - - = 10,181 823p - - 15 Mar ~
Irvastment 15 Jun 13
shares 7 17 Mar 11 13.162 - - - 13,162 1.806p - - 17Mar-
17 Jun 14
7 GMari2 - 15,023 - - 15,023 1.965p - - 9 Mar -
8 Jun 15
366,314 B8, 548 - 174072 28989
Alan Mitchelson
LTe - ' 16 Mar08 124995 - - 124,995 - 400p 1,787p £2,233,661 -
performance 15Mar 10 49,5 - - - 49,581 923p - - 15 Mar -
& matching 15 Jun 13
shares
7 17 Mar 11 34,838 - - - 34,838 1.606p - - 17 Mar -
17 Jun 14
LTIP - 16 Mar 0D 16,6668 - - 16,666 400p 1.787p £297.821 -
compulsory 15Mar10 6731 - - - 5™ 923p - - 15 Mar -
inestmant 16 Jun 13
shares 7 TMa 11 6250 - - 825"  1.606p - T 17 Mar-
17 Jun 14
238,062 - - 141,861 298,401
Jon Stanton
LTIP - 1 BAugi0 30,204 - - - 30204 1.240p - - 9 Aug -
parformance 9 Nov 13
& matching 7 17Maryi 35608 - - - 35606 1.606p - - 17 Mar -
shares 17 Jun 14
7 9Mari2 - 33,899 - - 33,899 1.965p - - 9 Mar -
8 Jun 15
LTIP - T 17 Marn 5,040 - - - 5,040 1,608p - - 17 Mar ~
compulisory 17 Jun 14
investment 7 9Mar12 - 6183 - - 6183 1965 - - 9 Mar -
shares 9.Jun 15
70.850 40,062 - - 110,912

Notes
1. mmnmygmmmmmwumwmmummmwwmwummcmmquwimuumwlmpm".
2. Awarda under the LTI Lake Ihe 10 O il Cos! options and have no periormancs retesting faciity.

3. Tha numbar of stavey under awerd for Alan MIchetson i o1 @ May 2012,

£, Awards under the LTIP can bo exercised sfite the third ennivergary of the swerd date, subject to the perionmence conditonts. No expiny ciate is shown il the sward was exercised of
pawd I the 52 woeks to 28 Decenber 2012

5. On 18 March 2012, the 2009 awards under (he LTIP vesiad in ha. Ag & resuft Keth Cochrans and Alan Mitchelson exgrcised thelr swands as st oul £hove, seltng 52,020 end 74,550
shares respectivaly 10 pay the relevant tax and nations) insurance and reteining the balence. The aggrogate gaing made on ofl oward extrcises by directors during te year wialied
5,658,232 {£011: £3,255,092),

8. Tra ciosing markot price of the Group's Ehares 6t 20 Decombaor 2012 was 1,578p and (he renge for thw yeas was 1,352p to 2,243p.

7. Tha swards granted In 2011 and 2012 heve e right 1o recelve dividend oquivalpnty in the form of shares paysble a! vesting.
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Directors” intsrests

The interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 28 Dacember 2012 and at the end of the preceding financial period | B
wora as follows:
As #1 28 Dacember 2012 As o1 30 Decoember 2011

Shares AP ewercs Shares LTP srwerds W)
Ksith Cochrans 207,663 289,891 120,858 386,314
Alan Ferguson 2,730 - - -
Metanie Gea 2,500 - - -
Richard Menall 1,000 - 1,000 -
John Mogtord 11,481 - 7.681 -
Lord Robertson 10,650 - 10,000 -
Lord Smith 163,400 - 159,000 -
Jon Stanton 3,000 10,912 3,000 70,850

Notes

1. No Director had, curing of 51 the end of the year, sny malerls! iisnes! In any CONract &f ey $iGAIBCANCS In relation 10 the Group’s business, in any cebarturs atocks of 1he Company,
arin the shore capital or debernture or Yoen stocia Of any kulriitbry.

2 There hérve been fa changos (Mo Dire 3 b ' 28 D

2012 an0 27 Fobruary 2013,

Total pension entittements
Kaith Cochrane and Jon Stanton are responsitle for their own pension arrengements.

Alan Mitchelson was an active mamber of the Company’s 1972 pension and lite assurance plan until 31 Decembar 2011 whan he ceased to
accrus further benefits and became a deterred member. The plan is a contributory defined benefit plan with the active members contributing
8% of satary.

The balance of the cost of the ptan ks mat by the Group having taken account of the trustee’s opinion arrived at by considering the funding
recommendations of the plan‘s independent actuary.

The plan targets a pension of two thirds of final salary payable at normal retirement date, providing a member then has at least 24 years’
pensionable service, Where a member has lass than 24 years' pensionabls sarvice to nomnal retirement date their pansion curmently accrues
at 1/36th of final sadary per anoum,

For members, salary (both for contritutions and for plan banefils) is subject to a plan specific earnings cap. This is currently £137,400.

The plan provides for a surviving spouse’s pension of ong hall of the member’s pension (before any exchange for cash) and, in certain
circumnstances, for a dependent child's pension until the child attains the age of 23 years.

Pension built up prior to April 2008 increasas in payment by the annual ingrease in the retail prices index up to a maximum of 5%, For pansion

buiit up aftar April 2006, the annual increasa |s limited to a maximum cf 2.5%. Delerred pensions are revalued batween the date of exit and
normal retirement date in lne with statute.
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Directors’ Report Corpurate Govermnanos

Remuneration Report
Continued

The folowing table and its comesponding notes detailing pension emtilemant and tha coresponding transfer values during the period is
subject to audit.

Change in
transter velus
of scrnisd
Trarwfer vilos  ponaion durtng Transter valus
Accrued of sconaed the yanr el of mocrued Transter
Accrued increass pemionasst p asmt ol 4 ponsinn as &t valus of
panzion s st n D by H D ¥ ] n ot
21 Decamber pension during w012 =M Y 20M of inflathon}
Neme of Director Notss 20U the period {nots 1) {rote 2) jrotel) co note 2) note 2}
Alan Mitchelson 45878 40,422 3.355 43,777 983,807 20,880 - 1,004,687 76,997
Notes
1. m-mmmmummmuwumymm prios 1o Bny cash comemutation, ot the ond Cf e yer
2. With ehiect tromn 1 October 2008, Gowermment wmmmﬂwMImmqumhmanwm

mmmmmmuummummwmmnmmmmhwwhmwmaumw
ponsion emilement have boen caltutzied In scCondance with this revissd recuirernertt.
< mmnhmmmmmnﬂnmmhmwdmmmr
#. tranglr vokih of the INCHaLS In Bccrusd
-8 mhmwmmmmnmmunmmmmmmmwmmm
€. mpact of &0y changein the or mortakty v ying the ranster value sty — &3 retemed 1 In 2, wow:

anfnery

4, mmnmmamm&mwuwmmmulmhhmumumummmmunmmwmm
BICH B3 SI0CK ITArKET Movermenms, which will De refecing witnin 3¢, abova. Tha Consumar Prices intation meesure for lagvers from the detned Deneit schime during 2012 with
i tezst ONY yoi! (MErEng yatl thel normal rplrampnt was 2.5%. Since Alan Mitchalson ist) the datned banedt schanm In 2011 efter his narmel reticement Cate and a3 21 the yors
mdhmmumdwnfﬂuulrmrﬂbmmhrahdmmmlnmcmhurubm&

8. Directors have the option to piy voluntary contributions. Neither the tiora Nor e g Denslits Bro INCiuceg in the Rbove LLD.

8. mmruwmmmmmmkwdwmnwtcwﬂmmhisrasrﬂeudmwmmmw:ommdmuwmmmmm
1 Jars sy 2012, Alan Mitchelson does not heve sn antdoment to an exceptsd {formerty known &3 unapproved) pension 1rom the Group and, b9 &1 The yetr end, had ROt vested
arwy ©f Ria FUrment Dansits uncer the Jeftne0 benest scheme provided Ly the Group.

7. Peymen of aclyal trnster vakuss (rom the 0etned bensl: schame of which Alan Michelson i & memiber) s N0l curtently recuted below 100% of thel Al value.

a Alsn Mictwison ceased 10 be an Exscuive Diroctor with etisct fom 9 May 2012,

Matanie Geo

Chairman of the Remuneration Committes
Signed and approved for and on behalf of the Board
27 February 2013
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Other Statutory Information

2013 Annup! General Meeting

Tne Annual Ganeral Meating will be heid at 2.30pm on Wadnsasday 1 May 2013 at the Radisson Blu Hotal, Argyle Street, Glasgow. The Notice
of AGM along with an axplanation of the proposed resolutions are 56t ocut in a separate circutar 1o shargholders which accompantes this
Annual Report and can be dowrdoaded from the Company's website,

Substantial shareholders
At 27 February 2013, the Company had been notified in accordance with the UK Listing Authority's Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rulas
thai the following heid, or were baeneficlally interested in, 3% or more of the Company's issued share capital.

Sharsholder Kumber of shares Percentage of insued share capital
Abardeen Asset Managers Lid 11109972 5.23%
AXA 10,613,785 5.02%
Lepa & General 9.878,381 4.70%
The Capita! Group Companies. Inc. 8.475.978 3.98%
FMRA Corp 8,425,000 3.09%

Since tha date of disclosure to the Company, the interest of any shareholder listed above may have increasad or decreased. No requirement
to notity the Company of any increase or decrense would have arisen uniess the holding moved up or down through a whole number
percentage level. The parcantage leve! may increase (if the Comparny cancelied shares pursuan to the power {0 purchase its own shares}
or gecraase {on the issue of new shares under the LTIP).

Materia! contracis
There are no persons with whom the Company has contractual or other arrangements which are essantial to the business of the Company.

Employment policy and Involvement
The avarage numbear of employees in the Group during the period is given in note 4 to the Group financial statements on page 99.

Group companies aperate within a framework of HR policies, practices and regulations appropriate to their market sector and couniry ot
operation, Policies and procedures for recruitment, tralning and career development promote equality of opportunity regardiess of gender,
sexual oriantation. age. marital stetus, disabllity, race. relgion o other beliats and ethnic or national origin.

The atm is to encourage a culiure in which all employees have tha opportunity to develop fully according to thek iIndividual abilitles and the
needs of the Group. The Group remains committed to the falr treatmsent of pecple with disabiities regarding appiications, training, promotion
end carear development.

Employee involvement and feedbeack is actively encouraged. A varisty of ways are used to consutt and Inform employees including
& Group-wids bulletin, e-mail, intranat and local briefings. These are designed to feciliate dialogue while enabling the development of
& COMIMON EwWaraness among ampiloyeas of what eHects business performance.

Financlal instruments
Thae information required in respecs of inancial instruments as required by Schedule ¥ of the Large and Maedium Sized Gompanlea and
Groups [Accounts and Reporis) Regulations 2008 Is given in nate 30 to the Group financial statements on page 127 to 135.

Share capital and righta attaching to the Company’s shares

Details of the issued share capital of the Company, which comprises a single ¢lass of shares, ordinary shares of 12.5p each, are set out
in note 25 1o the Group financial statements on page 121. The rights attaching to the shares are set out in the Company’s Articles of
Assoclation. There are ne special control rights in relation to the Company's shares and the Company ls not aware of any agreements
betwean shareholders that may resutt in rastrictions on the transier of securities and/or voilng rights.

The Weir Group has two employee benefit trusts: one with the trustees Kleinwort Bensen (Guernsey) Trustees Limited {the *Kleinwort EBT?)
and ong with the trustees Appleby Trust (Jersey} Limited (the ‘Appleby EBT').

During the paried, the 2008 LTIP award vasted and the trustees of the Kieinwort EBT transterved 70,987 ordinary shares t0 empioyees to satisfy
the LTIP awards using ordinary shares purchasead by the Kieinwort EBT in the market. A further 824,531 ordinary shares were transfamed out

of treasury to satisty awards under the LTIP. in addition, a tolal of 550,277 ordinary shares, with an aggregate valua of £68.784.63, were allottad
during the period in connaction with the Company's LTIP.

Both EBTs have agreed to walve any right 1o all dividend payments on shares held by them, with the exception of shares held in respect of awards
which have a dividend entitiement. Detals of the shares held by the EBTs are set out in note 25 to the Group financial statements on page 121. The
Klairnwort EBT holds, through ks account normines KB. (Cf Nominees Limited, 0.06% of the issuad share capital ol the Company, &5 & 28 December 2012,
in tnust ko the benefit of certain Execastive Directors and senior executives of the Group. The Apploby EBT holds, theough account nominee, Forast
Nominees Limited, 0.07% of tha issued share capital of the Company as at 28 December 2012, 0.02% o this is held in trust for the benefit of
certain senfor exacutivas of the Group, and 0.05% is held In trust on behalf of the Company for satisfaction of any future vesting of the Wakr Group
Deferrad Bonus Plan. The voting rights In refation o these shares are exarcised by the trustess. The EBTs may vols or abstain from voting with the
shares or accept o reject any offer relating to shases, in any way thay see fil, without incurring any ability and without being required to give reasons
for thew decision.
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Directors® RAeport: Corporate Governance

Other Statutory information
Continued

Repurchase of shares

At the 2012 Annual Ganeral Meeting, shargholders renewed the Company's authority to make markat purchases of up to 21.12m ordinary
shares {representing 10% of the issusd share capital exciuding treasury shares). No shares wete purchased undar this authority during tha
52 weeks ended 28 Dacember 2012 and at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the Board wil again seek shareholder approval to
renew the annual authority for the Company to maks market purchases.

Voting rights

The Company's Articles of Association providae that on a show of hands at a ganeral meeting of the Company, every hoider of ordinary shares
present in person and by proxy and entitied to vote shall have ane vote end on a poll, every member present in peraon or by proxy and
entitled to vote shall have one vote tor gvety ordinary share held. The Notice of the AGM specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights and
appointing a proxy of praxies to vote in ralation to resolutions to be passed at the AGM. The Company conducta the vote at the AGM by
glactronic poll. ANl proxy votes are counted and the numbaers for, against of withheld in ratation to each resolution are announced at the AGM
and pubkshed on the Compary's website after the meeting.

The Articles of Assoclation may only be amended by a speclal resolution passed a1 a ganeral meating of sharsholders.

Transter of shares
There are no restrictions on the transter of ordinary shares in the Company, other than as contained in the Articles of Assoclation:

- The Directors may retuse to register ary transfer of any certificated share which is not fully paid up, provided that this power will not be
exarcised s0 as 1o disturb the market in the Company's 8hares.

- The Directors may also refuse to register the transfer of a certificated share unless it is delivared 1o the registrar's office, or such ather
place as the Directors have specified, accompanied by a certificate for the shares to be transierred and such other evidence as the
Directors may reasonably require to prove title of the intending transfercr,

Cartain rgstrictions may from tima to time be imposed by laws and regulations, for axample, insider trading laws, in relation to the transfer
of shames.

Appuintment and replacement of Directors
The provisions about the appointment and re-alection of Directors of the Company are contained in the Artictes of Association.

Powers of Directors
The business of tha Company is managed by the Directors who may exarcige all the powers of the Company, subject to the provisions of the
Company's Articles of Association, any special reschution of the Company and any relevant legisiation,

Change of control — significant agreements
The fellowing significant agreements contain provisions ertthling the counerparties 10 require prior epproval, exercise termination, akeration
or similar rights In the event of a change of control of the Company.

The Group has in place a four year US$800m muiti-currency revolving credit faciiity with a syndicate of 12 banks cue to mature in Seplembear
2014, Under the tarms of thase agresments, If there is a change of control of the Company any lender may raequest, by not lass than 30 days’
notice to the Company, that its commitment be cancelled and all outstanding amounts be repaid to that lender at the expiry of such notice
pariod.

Tha Group has in place a three year USS300m arnortising term loan with Banc of America Securities Lirmited and HSBC Bank pic,
coterminous with the mvolving cradit facility. Under the terms of these agreemants, it there is a change of control of the Company either
lender may request, by not less than 30 days' notice to the Company, that its commitmesnt be cancelled and all outstanding amounts be
repaid 1o that lender at the expiry of such notice period.

The Company has in issue fixed rate private placement notea with a range of maturities: USS90m at an interest rate of 4.2% due on

11 January 2015, £12m at an interest rate of 4.58% dus on 11 January 2015, US$70m 8l an interast rate of 5.03% due on 11 January 2018,
£43m at an interast rate of 5.36% due on 11 January 2018, US$210m at an interest rate of 3.69% due on 16 February 2019, US$590m

at an intarast rate of 4.27% due on 16 February 2022 and US$200m st an interast rate of 4.34% due on 16 February 2023, Under the terms
of the epplicable note purchase agreements, If there is a change of control of the Company, the notas must ba offerad for prepayment by
the Company within seven days of the change of control. Tha prepaymen! date woutd be no later than 60 days after the offer of prepaymaent
by the Compsny.

There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment
fwhether through resignation, purported redundancy or otherwisa) that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Kaeith Ruddock \L;%/\’ Q 5 g gi
Company Secratary

Signed and approved for and on behalf of the Boarg
27 Febvuary 2013
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independent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Weir Group PLC

We hava audited the Group financial statements of The Weir Group PLC tor the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012 which comprisa the
Consolidated Incoma Statamant, the Gonsolidated Statement of Comprehensive incoma, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, tha Consolidatad m
Cash Flow Staternam, the Consolidatad Statement of Changes in Equity and the redated notes 1 to 33. The financial reporting framework that has
bean appiied in their preparation is applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) a3 adogtad by the European Union,

This raport is made solaly to the Company’s members, as a body. In accordancs with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. i
Our audit work has been undartaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to tham
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permittad by law, we do not accept or assumse responsibiity tO anyone
othat than the Company end the Company's members as a body, tor our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have tormed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Directors' statament of rasponsibilities sat out on page 63, the directors are responsible tor the preparation
of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the Group financial statements in accerdance with epplicable law and Imematicnal Standards on Auditing (UK and tretand).
Those standards require us (o comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethicat Stencards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves oblaining evidence about the amaunts and disclosures in the financial statemems sutiicient to give reasonable assurance
that the finencial stataments are free from material mssiatement, whathar caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstiences end have been consistently appiied and adequately disclosed:; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the averall presentation of the financtal statements, In addition,
we read all the Enancial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012 to identify material inconsistencles
with the audited financial siatements. If we become aware of any apparem material misstalemsnis or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinlon on financial statements

In our opinion the Group financial statements:

— givea true and tair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 28 December 2012 and of its profit for the 52 weeks then endsd;
— have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSS as adopted by the European Union: and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of the Companies Act 2008 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Opinlon on other mattar prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
In our opinian the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Group financtal statements are prepared
is consistent with the Group financial siatements.

Mattars on which we are required to report by exception
Wa hava nothing to roport in respect of the following:

Under the Companias Act 2006 we are required to report to you H, in our opinion:
- ceriain disciosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- wa have not receivad all the information and explanations wa require for our audi.

Undar the Listing Rules we are required 10 review:

- the directors’ statement. s&t out on page 63, In retation to going concern: and

- the part of the Coporate Govemance Report retating to tha Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of tha UK Comporate
Governance Code specified for our review: and

- certain slements of the raport to sharehoiders by the Board on directors’ ramuneration.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Company financial statements of The Weir Group PLC for the 52 weeks to 28 December 2012 and
on the information in the Rarmumegration Raport that is described as having been audited.

e P

James Dougtas Nishet [Senior Auditor)
tor and on behatl of Emst & Young LLP, utory Auditor
Glasgow

27 February 2013
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Financial Statemants

Consolidated Income Statement

for the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012

62 wouhs snted 28 Decsmber 2012 Raatoted (note 2
Befors Excaptionsd Beatore  Exceptional
sxcaptional ftamn & sxcaptionsl kom &
Remald imangities temi  intanghbios
tangities  amortiastion nanghies  arnortsaton
amaortisstion tnote ) Total  smortisation st ) Tota!
Notes tm tm tm tm om £m
Continuing opsrations
Revenue ] 2,538.39 - 25383 2.292.0 - 2,292.0
Continuing operations
Operating profit before share of resutts of joint veniures 4792 {18.5) 482.7 407.9 4.8 4031
Share of results of joint ventures 15 84 - 6.4 48 - 4.8
Operating profit 485.6 {16.5) 469.1 4127 ‘.8 4079
Finance costs [} {46.5) {2.8) {49.1) {18.4) 0.7 (20.1)
Finance incoma 6 52 - 82 43 - 43
Other finance costs — retirernent benefits 24 (1.2 - 1.2 {(1.3) - (1.3)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 443.1 {19.1) 424.0 396.3 5.5) 390.8
Tax expense 7 {124.2) 126 1.6 {1142) 1.8 {112.49)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 3189 {6.5) M24 2821 8.7 278.4
Profit for the period from discontinued operations [] - 33 33 - 1.8 19.9
Profit for the period Nbe 3.2 315.7 282.1 16.2 208.3
Attributabla to
Equlty holders of the Company 188 [~ 5] 315.4 2821 18.2 298.3
Non~controlling interests 03 - 0.3 - - -
318.9 B33 5.7 2821 16.2 298.3
Eemings per share 9
Basic — total operations 148.8p 141.2p
Basic — continuing operations 150.1p 147.1p 133.6p 131.8p
Diluted - total operations 141.7p 139.8p
Diluted - continuing operations 1492p 146.2p 132.2p 130.5p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012

Restated

oo 2)

82 woekn 52 wache

28 December 30 Oucarnber

[ 2n

Nota tm fm

Profit tor the period 357 288.3
Other comprohensive Income

Gains (losses) taken Lo equity on cash flow hadges 14 {1.1)

Exchange losses on translation of foreign cperations 84.9) {18.9)

Exchange gains (l0sses) on net investment hadges 38.6 (1.4)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans {note 24} {(14.1) {45.0)

Reclassification adjustments taken to the income stalement on cash flow hedges 08 1.5

Tax relating to other comprehensive expanse H 20 12.2

Net other comprehensive axpense 552 {55.7)

Total net comprehensive Incoms for the period 2605 2426

Attributable to

Equity ho'ders of the Company 260.5 2428

Non-controliing intarests - -

260.5 2426
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheot
at 28 December 2012
Restzted {nots 7)
Z8Dwcomber 2012 30D, 20m
Notes £tm tm
ASSETS
Nonh-turrent aasets
Praperty, plant 8 equipment 11 3TN 3188
Intangjible assets 12 1,454.1 1,415.1
Invasiments n joint ventures 15 120 11.4
Deferred tax agsets f<) 304 38.7
Derivative financial mstruments 30 08 0.1
Total non-current agaets 18713 1,784.2
Current assats
Inventorles 1L 5127 463.8
Trade & other recoivables 7 4782 516.1
Construction contracts 18 21.7 19.8
Derivative financial instruments 30 38 6.4
Income tax receivable 41 1.6
Cash & short-term deposits " 39%.1 1136
Total current essets 1411.4 1,131.4
Total azsets 3,282.7 2,915.8
LIABIUTIES
Currant lizbilitlas
Interast-bearing loans & borrowings 20 B85.4 82.0
Tracle & other payables n 485.8 569.1
Construction contracts 18 137 26.8
Derivative financial insyruments 30 14.7 244
Income tax payabla 206 33.4
Provisions 2 36.4 55.5
Total current liabillties 644.6 801.2
Non-current liahllities
Intarest-bearing loans & borrowings -] 1,014.6 695.1
Qther payables n 203 155
Derivative financial instruments 2 0.8 15.2
Provisions 2 332 ara
Deferred tax liabilities 2 1625 1483
Retirernent benefit plan deficits 24 90.4 84.7
Total non-currant llabllities 13278 996.9
Tolal labilities 19724 1,798.1
MNET ASSETS 1,310.3 1,1i7.5
CAPITAL & RESERVES
Share capital 25 28.7 288
Share premium 38.0 38.0
Treasury shares {5.8) (5.6)
Cepital redemption regserve 0.5 0.5
Foreign currency translation reserve 375 83.5
Hedge accounting resarve 02 {1.6)
Retained eamings 1,209.8 974.0
Shareholders equity 1,307.1 1,115.4
Non-gontrolling interests .2 21
TOTAL EQUITY 13103 1,117.5

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013

mmﬁ:m Jon Stanton
I D
[,
wL
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the 52 weoks ended 28 December 2012

62 weoks 52 wosia m

ended onciad
28Owosrrber 30 Docomber
2 F-1 i)
Notse €m £m
Continuing operastions v
Cash flows from opersting activities 28
Cash generated from opsrations 33586 302.6 —
Additional pension contributions paid {7.5) 8.6)
tncome tax paid {$04.9) (87.93)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2862 168.7
Continuing operationa
Cash flows trom investing activities
Acquisttions of subsidiaries 2 123.3) 086.0)
Disposals of subsidiaries » 229 -
Purchases of pvoperty, plant & equipment & intangible assets (123.8) {95.4)
Cther proceeds from sale of property. plant & aquipment & intangible assets 73 40
interest recaived &1 4.3
Dividands rocaived from [oint ventures 54 4.1
Net cash used in investing activities {206.2) {469.0)
Continuing operations
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchasa of sharas for equity settled share-based incentives [~ X)) {D.4)
Procaeds from borrowings 788.5 469.0
Repayments of borrowings 482.5) (50.8)
Sattlement of extemnal debt of subsidiary on acquisition 26 1.9 {55.4)
Setdement of derivelive finencial instruments 1.0} (10.9)
Interest paid (33.4) (7.7
Proceads from increass In non-controlling interests 1.0 1.7
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company 10 71.0 59.5)
Net cash generated from financing activities 204 .4 276.0
Net Increase in cash & cash equivalents from continuing operationa 204.4 57
Net Increase in cash & cash sguivalents from diacontinued operations - Investing aclivities - 2486
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the pericd 108.8 79.5
Foreign currency transtation difterences (8.8) 1.2

Cash & cash equivalants at the end of the period

"0 3842 108.6
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Financlal Staternents

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012

Foreign Aftributubie
Capiind cuTency Hadge to squity Non-
Share Share Treasury redemption tranzistion sccounting Rmalned hokienolthe controling Totsl
capitsl premiun  shares reserve resarve reserve ng: Company oquity
£m m em m £m m o £m £m
At 31 Decemnber 2010 26.6 38.0 5.8) 0.5 103.8 04 7588 a21.3 04 9217
Profit for the period - - - - - - 288.3 298.3 - 08.3
Lossas taken to squity on cash
fow hedk - - - - - (1.1} - {1.1} - n.1
Exchange losses on transiation
of foreign operations - - - - (18.9) - - (18.9) - {18.9)
Exchange losses an net
irvestment hedges - - - - (1.4) - - {1.4) - {1.4)
Actuarial losses on defined
benefil plans - - - - - - (45.0) (45.0) - (A5.0)
Reclassification adiustmenis taken
to the income slatement on cash
fiow hedges - - - - - (1.5} - {1.5) - 1.5}
Tax relating to other
comprehensive incoméa - - - - - 0.6 186 12.2 - 2.2
Tota) net comprehensive income
for the period - - - - (20.3) 20 2649 2428 - 2426
Proceeds from increass
in non-gontroling ingreata - - - - - - - - 1.7 1.7
Cost of share-based payments
in¢lusive of tax credits - - - - - - "o 110 - 11.0
Dividends - - - - - - (59.5) (59.5) - {59.5)
Exsrcise of LTIP awards - - 1.2 - - - 1.2 - - -
A130 Decermber 2011 feststed note 2) 26,8 280 (5-6) 05 (<Y1 (1.6) 9740 1,1154 21 1,176
Profit for the period - - - - - - 3154 N54 03 =57
Gains taken o equity on cesh
fiow hedges - - - - - 14 - 1.4 - 1.4
Exchange losses on translation
of toreign operations - - - - (B4.6) - - 84.6) 0. B4.9)
Exchange gains on net
Inveatment hedges. - - - - 8.6 - - 386 - 388
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit plans - - - - - - {14.1) (41) - (4.1}
Reclassificetion adustments taken
10 the inCome statement on cash
flow hedges - - - - - 08 - 0.8 - 0.8
Tax relating to other
comprahensive incoma - - - - - {0.4) 3.4 3.0 - 3o
Tota! net comprehensive income
for the pariod - - - - 48.0) 18 304.7 260.5 - 2805
Proceeds from increase in
non-controlling interasts - - - - - - - - 1.1 1.1
Cos! of share-basad payments
inclusive of tax charge - - - - - - 4.9 4.9 - 4.9
Dividends - - - - - - .n .7 - 7.7
Purchases of shares® - - 2.0) - - - - 2.0) - [~ X )]
Exercize of LT awards [ 2] - 20 - - - (Al - - -
At 28 December 2012 26.7 38.0 5.6) 0.5 375 02 1,2098 1,307.1 32 13108

* Thase shares wem purchased on the opan markat and ane held by the Appleby EBT on bebati of the Group for satistaction of any futura versting of B delevrad bonys plen.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

1. Authorisation of flnancial statements & statement of complignce

The consolidated fimancial statements of The Weir Group PLC (the ‘Comparry’) and its subsidiaries {together, the ‘Group’) for the 52 weeks
ended 28 Dacember 2012 {20127 wers approved and authorised for issuea in accordanc with a resolution of the directors on 27 Fabruary
2013. Tha comparative information ks presented for the 52 weeks endad 30 Decembar 2011 {2011'), For practical reasons, the Group
prepares its financial statements to the week ending closest to the Company reference data of 31 Decernber. The results on this basis are
untikely to be materially difterent from those that would be presentsd for a period of one year. The Welr Group PLC is a imitad company
incomoratad in Scotland and is listad on the London Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements of The Weir Group PLC have been prepared in eccordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) as adopted by the Eiropean Union and appliad in accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act 2008,

The principal activities of the Group are described in note 3.

2. Accounting policles

Basls of preparation

Thesa financial statements are presanted in starling. All values are rounded to the nearest 0.1 mdlion pounds ([Cm) except whan otherwise
indicatad.

In ordear to provide the users of the financial statamons with a mose relevant prasentation of the Group's undarlying psriormance, profit for
each financial year has been analysed between:

) profit before exceptional items and intangibles amartisation; and
0 the effect of exceptional items and intangibles amortisation.

2. Exceptional items are items of income and axpense which, because of the nature, size and /or infrequency ol the events giving rise
to thern, merit separate presentation to allow a batter understanding of the elements of the Group's financial performance for the
period and are presented on the face of the income statemant to {acilitate comparisons with prior periods and assessmaent of rends
in financiat performance. Exceptional tems may include but are not restricted to: profits or Iosses erising on disposal of businesses
or on closure of businesses; the cost of significant business restructuring; significant impairments of intangible or tangible assets;
acjustments to the fair value of accuisition retated items such as contingent conslderation and inventory: other items deamed exceptional
due to their significance, slze or naturme; and the rolated exceplional taxation.

b. Intangibles amortisation, including impairmant, has beon shown saparatoly to provide visibllity ovar the impact of increased acquisition
activity on intangible assets.

Further analysis of the items included in the column ‘Exceptional iterms & intangibles amortisation’ is provided in note 5 to the financial staternents.

During the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012, the provistonal 1air values attributed to tha 2011 acquisitions of Weir Intermational and
Seaboard were finalised. In accordance with IFRS3, the net impact of the adjustments to the provisional fair values has been recognised by
maeans of a decrease to goodwill and the gdjustmants to the provisional amounts have been recognised as If the acoounting for the businass
combinations had been complated at the relevant acquisition dates. As such, all aHectad batances and amounts have been restated in the
financial statements. To this effect, the Consolidated Balance Sheet and affected notes present restated comparative information as at

30 December 2011, The Consolidated income Statement for the 52 weeks ended 30 Dacember 2011 has bean restated to reflect £0.7m
amortisation of customer relationships. Further detalls of the adjustments made to the pravisional tair values can be found in note 13.

In addition, tho provisional fair values attributed to the acquisition of Novatech in February 2012 were also finallsed during the period and
details can be tound in note 13.

The accounting policies which follow are consistent with those of the previous periods except for the adoption ¢f the following standards
and intarpretations which have not had a material impact on the Group's financial staternents in tha period of initial application,

IFRS7 Financial instruments: Disciosure (Amendment)
AS12 Incoms Taxes (Amendment} ~ Delerred Taxes: Racovery of Underlying Assets

Use of astimates & judgements

The preparation of tha consolidated financial stalements requires management to make judgements, estirnates and assumptions thal affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, income and expensas. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimatas and underying assumptions are roviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates ere recognised bn the perlod
in which the estimate is revised and In any future pariods atfected.

Details of the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounis recognised in the financial statements are described in the Financial Review on page 38 and in notes 14 and 24,
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Financlal Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include results, cash flows and assets end liabilities of The Weir Group PLC aend its subsidiaries, and
the Group's share of its jomnt venitures' results. The financial statements ol subsidiasies end joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting
pariod as the Company using consistent accounting policies.

A subsidiary is an entity controBad, aither directty or indireclly, by the Company, where control is the power to govern the financial and
opersting policies of the entily s0 as to obtain benefit from ils activilies. The results of a subsidiary acquired during the period are inchaded in
the Group's resuits from tha effective date on which control is transferred to the Group. Tha results ot a subsidiary sotd during the period are
incleded in the Group's results up to the effective date on which control Is transferred out of the Group. All intragroup transactions, balances,
Income and axpenses are efrminated on consoldation.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit of loss and net assels in subsidiarias that are not held by the Group and are
presented within equity in the Consolidated Batance Sheet. separately from the Company shareholders equity.

Jeint ventures

The Group has a number of tong-term contractual arrangements with other parties which represent joint ventures. Thase alt taks the form
of egreements to shara control over other entities (jointly controlled entitiea”). The Group’s interests in the results and assets and biabllities
ol its jointly controlled entities are accountad for using the aquity mathod.

These investments are carried In the balance shest at cost plus posi-acgulsition changes in the Group's share of net assets less any
impairment in valee. The income statemant reflects tha share of results of operations of thesa investments aftor tax, Where thera has been
a ¢hange racognised directly in the investes's equily, the Group recognises Its share ol any changes and discloses this when applicable

in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incoms.

Any goodwill arising on the acguisition of a joint venture, represanting the axcess of the cos! of the investmeant over the Group's share of the
net Iair value of the joint venture's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilfties, is included in the carrying amount of the joint venture
and is not amortised. To the extent that the net fair value of the joint venture's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingery liabilities is greater
than the cost of the invesiment, a gain is recognisad and addad 10 the Group's shara of the joint venture’s profit or loss in the period in which
the investment Is acquired.

Foreign currency transiation
The financial statements for each of the Group's subsidiaries and joint ventures are prepared using their functional currency. The funclional
currancy is the currency of the primary econsmic environment in which an entity operates.

Al entity level, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are transiated ino the entity’s tunctional currency at the exchangs rata ruling
on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities danominated in foreipn currencies are retransiated at the exchange rate ruling
on the balance sheet date. Currency translation ditferences are recognised in the incoma statement except when hedgs accounting is
apptiad and for differences on monetary assets and liabilities that torm part of the Group's net Investmant in a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investment, &t which time thay ara recognisad in profit or loss.

On consolidation, the results of forelgn operations ara trénsiated Into steriing at the averaga exchange rate for the period end their assets and
ttiabiitles are transiated into sterling at the exchangs rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Currency transiation diiferences, including those
on mongtary items that form part of 8 net Investment in & foreign opsration, are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.

In the event that a toreign operation is sold, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in the Consolidatad Income Statement Is determined after
taking into account the cumulative currency transiation ciifferences that are sttributable to the oparation. As permitted by IFRS1, tha Group
alectad to deem cumulative currency transiation ditferences to be £nil as at 27 December 2003. Accordingly, the gain or loss on disposal

of a torsign operation does not include currency transiation ditferencas arising betore 27 December 2003,

in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the cash flows of foreign operations are translated into sterfing at the average exchange rate for
the period,

Revenus recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenua Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow 1o the Group and 1he revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is shown net of sales taxes, discounts and
after elimingting safes within the Group.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks gnd rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usuatly on dispatch of the goods, and can be reliably measured. Revenus from the sales of services and revenue from construction contracts
Is recognised by referance to the stage of completion whare the outcoms can be estimated rellably. otherwise it is recognised to the extent
costs are incurred. The stage of complation of a contract is determined either by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurved tor
work pariormed to date bear to the estimatad total contract costs, or by reference to the completion of a physical proportion of the contract
work. The basis used is dependent upon the nature of the underlying contract and takes into account the degres to which the physical
proportion of the work is subject to formal customer acceptance procedures, Losses On contracts are recognised in the period when such
losses become probabie.
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Property, plant & squipment
The Group elactad to use pravious UK GAAP revaluations of land and buikfings, amounting to £10.5m, prios to 27 December 2003 as u
deemed cost at the date of the revaluation,

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairmant losses. Gost includes
borrowing costs for qualifying assats tor which the commencement data tor captialisation |s on or after 1 January 2009. Prior to this date, v
tha Group recognised all borrowing costs as an expense immediately. Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreclated,

Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment, cther than freehold land and assets uncer construction, is provided on a straight-kine basis
s0 a3 to charge the cost less residual value, based on pricas prevalking at the balance sheet date, to the income statament over the expectsd
useful fife of the asset concemed, and ts In the following ranges:

Freshold buildings, long lsasehold land & buildings - 10-40 years
Short leasehold fand & buitdings - duration of lpase
Flant & equipmant - 3-20 years
Investment property

Umiil Cecembear 2011, the Group gwnied one property which was classified as invesimon property en the basis that it was baing held

to earn rentats and tor capital appreciation rather than for uza in tha production or supply of goods and services. This property was gokd
in Dacember 2011, irvastmen! property was stated at cosi less accumulated depreciation. Depraclation was provided on a straight-line
basis ovar 40 years,

Qaodwill
Busingss combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Goodwill artses on the acquisition of subaldlarias and reprasents any excess of the cost of the acquired entity over the Group's interest

in the (air value of the erity's identifiable assets, kabdities and contingen liabilities determined ai the datle of agquisilion, Acquisition costs
are expensed in the period in which thay are incurred. Goodwil In respect of an acquired subsidiary ts recognised as an intangible assset.
Goodwill i tested at laast annually for impairment and carriad at cost less any recognised impairment losses.

Whara the fair value of tha interest acquired in an entity's assats, {abditias and contingent liabilitins exceads the consideration paid,
the excess is recognised immediately as a galn & the income stateman.

Gooowil recognised as an assat as &t 27 December 2003 is rocordad at its camying amount at that date and Is not amortised. The carrying amoum
of goodwill allocated 10 a cash-genarating unil is takan inte account when determining the gain or toss on disposal of the unit. Goodwill that
was writtan off directly to reserves under UK GAAP is not taken into acoount in determining the gain or loss on disposal of acquired
businesses on or after 27 December 2003,

Any contingent consideration to be transterred is recognised &t the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair vaiue of the contingent
consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or a kzbiity, will be recognised in accordance with IAS39 in profit or loss or as a changs to
other comprahansive incoms,

Other intanglble assots
Other intangibie sssets ara stated at cost lbss accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired separatety are measured at cost on initlal recognition, An intangible resource acquired In a business combination
is recognised as an intangible asset if it is saparable from the acquired business Or arises from contractual or legal rights, is expected to
generate fulure economic banefits and its tair value can be measured reliably. An intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-
tine basis 80 &8s 10 charge its cost, which in raspect of an acquinad intangible assel represents its tair value at the acquisition date, to the
income statemant over its expected usetul lite. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is not emortised but is tested at |oast annually for
impairment and caried at cost less any recognised impairment losses.

Computer scftware thal is not integral to an item of property, plant and equipmemn is recognisec separetely as an iniangible asset.
Amariisgtion is provided on a straight-line basis so as to charge the cest of the software to the income statemant over its expected useful
life, not excesding eight years.

The expectad useful lives of the acquired intangible assets are as follows:

Brand names - indefinite fife
Customar relstionships - 5-25 years
Purchased sottware - 4 -8 yoars
intafectual property & trade marks ~ 6-15 years
Other - up to 6 years
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Firancial Statements

Notes o the Group Financial Statements
Continued

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Research & development costs
All research expenditure Is charged to the income statement In tha perod In which it Is incumred.

Development expenditura Is charged to the income stetament In the perlod in which it Is incurred unless it relates to the development

of a new product and it is incurred after the technical féashility and commercial viability of the product has been proven, the developmant
costs can be measured reliably, future economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
the developmaent and to use or sall the asset. Ary such capitalised development expenditure is amortisad on a straight-line basis so that

it is changed to the income statement over the expected lifa of the resulting product.

Impairment of non-current oasets

All non-current assats are tested for impairment whenever events or circumsiances indicate that their carrying values might be impaired.
Additionally, goodwil,, intangible assets with an indefinite e and any capitalised development expenditure are subject 1o an annual
impaiment tast.

An impainment foss is recognised 1o tha extant that an asset’s carrying value exceeds ils recoverable amount, which reprasents the higher

of the asset's lair vedue less costs to sell and its value in use. An asseat's value in use reprasents the present value of tha fulure cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. Where it is not possible to sstimats the recoverable amount of an indivich:al asset. the impairment test
is conducted for the cash-generating unit to which i belongs. Similarty, the recoverable amount of goodwil is determined by referance to the
discounted future cash flows of the cash-generating urits to which il is allocatod.

Impairment fosses are recognisad in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in previous pericds for an asset other than goodwill
are roversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assat's recoverable amount. The camying amount of an asset
shall not be increased above the camrying amount that wou'd heve bean determinad had no impsairment loss been recognisad for the asset
in prior periods. impalment lkosses recognised in respect ot goodwill ara not reversed.

rventories

Invertories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valus, with due allowancs tor any obsolate or slow moving tlems. Cost represants
the expenditure incurred in bringing inventories to their existing location and condition and comprises the cost of raw materiats, direct labour
costs, other dinect costs and related production overheads. Raw material cost is generally determined on a first in, first out basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated saling price less costs to complete and sedl,

Financial sssets & linbilities

The Group's principal financial essets and kabilities, other than derivatives, comprise bank overdrafts, short-term borrowings, loans and fixed
rate notes, cash ang short-term deposits. The Group also has other financial assets and liabilitles such as trade receivables and trade
payables which arise directly from its operatlons.

A financial asset is generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires,

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiity is discharged or cancelled or expires. Whera an existing financial
fiabllity s replaced by another from the same lender on substantaly ditferant terms. or the terms of an existing iab¥ity are substantiaty
madified, such an exchange or modification is treatad as a derecognition of the original Esbility and 1he recognition of a new tability, such
that the difference in the respective carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred are recognlsed in profit or loss.

Trade recehvahlon

Trade receivables, which generally are ¢f & short dated nature, are recognised and carmied at original invoice amount less an allowance

for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Provision is made whan there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances
in full. Belances ara written off when the probabllity of recovery is assessed as belng remote.

Cash & cash oquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits avallable on demand and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
©n acquisition of three months or less and bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings with a maturity on acquisition of three months or less.
Bank overdrafts are presented as current llabliitles to the extent that there is no right of otiset with cash balances.

Trade payables
Trada payables are racognised end carried at orginal involce amount,

interest-bearing loans & borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognisad when the Group bacomaes party to the related contracts and are measured inttially a1 fair
value less directly attributable transaction costs. Atter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the efiactive interast method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs and any discount
or premium on settiement. Borrowings are classified as current Biabilities untess the Group has an uncenditional right 10 defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date,
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Proviaions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheat when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of 8 past event, the obligation
can be estimated rellably 2nd it is probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation. If the eflect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expeciad future cash flows at a pre-tax rale that reflects currant market assessments
of the time valua of money and, where appropriate, the risks speciflic to the liabiity.

Derivative financial ingtruments A hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally forward foreign currency contracts and cross currancy swaps, to reduce its
axposure to exchange rate movements. The Group also uses foralgn currency bomrowings as a hedge of its exposure to foreigh exchange risk
on its investments in foreign subsidiaries. Additionally, the Group uses intarest rate swaps to manage its expesure to interast rate risk. The
Group does not hold or issue dervatives for speculative or trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised as assets and liabllities measured at their falr values at the balance sheet date. The fair vatue
of forward lorelgn currency contracts is calculated as the present value of the estimated futurs cash flows based on spot and forward foreign
exchange rates. The fair vaiue of inter@st rate swaps and cross cumency swaps is calcutated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on intenast rate curves end spot foreign exchange rates, Changes in their tair values have been recognised in the income
statement, except where hedpe accounting is used, provided the conditions specified by IAS30 are met. Hedge accounting is applied in
raspect of hedga relstionships where it Is both permissible under 1AS39 and practical to do s0. Whan hedge accounting is usad, the relavant
hedging relationships will be classifiad as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net invastment hedges.

Where the hedging relationship is classified as a fair value hedge, the carrying amount of the hedged esset or fiability will be adassted by the
increase or decrease in its tair value attributable to the hedged risk and the resulting galn or 1055 will be recognised in the income statement
where, to the extent that the hedge is effective, it will be offsat by tha change in the fair value of the hedging instrument.

Where the hedging relationship is classified as a cash flow hedge or as a net investment hedge. te the extent that the hedge is effective,
changes in tha fair value of the hedging instrument will be recognised diractly in other comprehensive income rather than in the income
statement. When the hedged item Is recognised in the financial statemenis, the accumutated gains and losses recognised in other
comprehensive income will be aither recycied to the income statement or, if the hedged item results in a non-financial eszet, will be
recognised as adgustments to its initia! carrying amount.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrurnent expires or is sokd, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that poirt in time, arny curnulative gain or ioss on the hedging instrument recognisad In othar comprahensive income is kept
in other comprehensive incoms untll the forecasted transaction occurs. i a hedged transection is no longer expected 1o occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is transferned to net profit or joss for the period.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are recognised separately as derivative financial instruments when thedr risks and
characteristics are not chosely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not stated at its fair value with changes in its falr
value recognised in tha income statement.

Share-based payments
Equity settied share-based incentives are provided 10 employees under the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP'), the Exacutive Bonus
Scheme (‘EBS') and as a consequence of occasional ona-off condiional awards mads to senior axacutives.

The {air value of the LTI at the date of the grant is cakeulated using appropriate option pricing mode!s and the cost is recognised on
straight-line basis over the vesting period. Adjustments are made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period
dus to faliure to satisty service or performance conditions.

The EBS s determinaed as a percentage of the annual bonus. This percentage is matchad Dy the Group with a shane award that will vest

on tha third annivarsary of the grant date provided the individual continues to hold the original bonus shargs awarded and continues to be
empioyed by the company at the data of vesting. Ths EBS includes a strategic bonus shares element for a imited numbenr of senicr employees.
The fair value of the matching and strategic elements of the EBS is determined at the date of grant of the bonus and the cost Is racognised
on a straight ine basls over the vesting period. The Group recognises a8 compensation cost in respect of this pian that is based on the fair
value of the awards. The fair valua is determined at the date of grant and & not subsequently re-measured unless the conditions on which
the award was granted ere modified.

As pennitted by IFRS1, the Group has applied IFRS2 'Share-based Payment’ retrospectively only to equity settled awards that were grantad
on or after 7 Novernber 2002 and had not vested as at 1 January 2005,

Treasury shares

The Welr Group PLC shares held by the Company are classified in shareholders equity as treasury shares and are recognised al cost,
Consideration recelved for the sale of such shares is also recognised in equity, with any dilferance between the proceads from sale and the
original cost being taken directly to revenue resarves. No gain or loss is racognisad in to1al comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issus or cancelation of equity shares.
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Financial Ststamsrnts

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

2. Accounting palitiea {continuod)

Post-smployment beneflts

Post-employment benefits comprise pension banefits provided to empioyees throughout the world and other benefits, primarily post-
ratiroment heatthcare, provided 1o certain employess In the United States.

For defined bensfit plans, the cost is calculated using tha projscted unit credit method and is recognised aver the average expected
remalning sarvice lives of participating employees, in accordance with the advice of qualified aciuaries. Past sarvice costs resulting kfom
enhanced benefits ane recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, or immediately il the benefits have vested. Actuarial gains
and losses, which represem ditferances between the expectad and actual returns on the plan assets and the effect of changes in actuarial
assumptions, are recognisad in full in the statement of comprehansive income in the perlod in which they occur.

The defined benefit liabllity or asset recognised in the batance sheet comprisas tha net total for each plan of the present value of the benefit
obligation, using a discoun! rate based on appropriata high quality corporate bonds, at the balance sheet date, minus any past service costs
not yet recognised, minus the falr valus of the plan assets, if any, at the balanca sheat date. Where & plan is in surpius, the assel recognised
is limited to tha amount of any unrecognised past service ¢osts and the present value of any amount which the Group expects to recover by
way of refunds or a reduction In tuture contributions.

For defined contribution plans, the costs represent the Group's contributions to the plans and thase are charged to the income statermant
in tha period in which they fall due.

Leases
Leases which transter 1o the Group substantially afl of the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset ere classified as finance keases,
All other leases are classlfied as operating leases.

Assals held under finance leases are included within property, plant end equipment, initially measured at thelr fair value or, if lower, the present
velue of the mintmum lease payments and a corresponding lability is recognised within obligations under finance leases. Subsequently, the
assels are depreciated on a basis consiatent with simitar owned assets or the tease term i shortar. At the incaption of the laase, the laase
renials are apportioned between an interest element and a capital element so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
outstanding liability. Subsequently, the interest elernent is recognised as a charge to tha incoms statement whils the capital alemant is
applied 1o mduce the outstanding liability.

Cperaling lease rentals and any incentives receivable are recognised in the incomae statement on a straight-kne basls over the tarm of the leasa.

Texstion
Currert tax is the amoun! of tax payable or recoverable inrespect of the taxable profit or oss tor the period.

Defarred 1ax is recognised on temporary ditferences between the camying amount of an asset or liablity in the batance sheel and its lax base
with the following exceptions:

() Deterrad tax arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, or of an asset or liability In & transaction that is not a business combination,
that, at the time of the transaction, affects nailher accounting nor iaxable profit or loss, s not recognised;

(i) Daterred tax is provided on temporary ditferences arising on investrnents in subsidiarias and Joint ventures, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary diierence can be controked and it is probable that the temporary difterence will not reverse in the foreseeabla future;

(ii) A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extant that it is probable that future taxable profits will be evailable against which the asset
can be ytilised.

Deferrad tax labilitias represent tax payable in tuture periads in respect of taxable temporary differences. Deterred tax agsats reprasant
tax rocoverable in future periods in respect of deductible temporary diffarences, the cary forward of unutiised tax losses and the carry
forward of unused tax cradits. Deferred tax s measured on an undiscounted basis using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax assat is realised or the deferred tax
liabilty is settied.

Current and deferred tax Is recognised in the income statement except ¢ it relates to an item recognised directly in equity, in which case
It ts recognised directly in equity.
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Now siandards 4 interpretations
The International Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes have issued tha following
standards and interpretations, which are considered relevant to the Group, with an effective date after the date of thase financial stetements,

bt tionel A ting Standsrds IASHFRS) Eftective duts for parlad: iy
IAS1 Presentation of tems ol Other Comprehensive Income (Amendmerts to 1AS1) 1 July 2012
1AS18 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 January 2013
IFRS13 Fair Value Maasuremant ~ 1 January 2013
IFRS10, IFRS11 and IFRS12 Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS10, IFRS11 and IFRS12) 1 January 2013
FRS10 Consolidated Financiat Statements * 1 January 2014
[FRS11 Joint Arangements * 1 January 2014
FRS 12 Disclosure of interasts in Other Entities * 1 January 2014
1AS32 Cfsetting Financial Assats and Financial Liablities [Amendmaents to IAS32) * 1 January 2014
FRSY Anancial Instruments * 1 January 2015

Tt e adoDtad 104 Lisa In the Buropeen Union

Tha above standards and interpretations will be atioptad in accorciance with their eftective dates and have not been adoptad in these
financia! statemnamts, The directors do not enticipats that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact
on the Group's financiat statements in the period of inilial application with the exception of IAS19 (Revised).

Under IAS19 (Revised), there will be no impact on the disclosed defined benefit obligation. The net charge to the Income Statement will
increase by approximately £3m following the introduction of the concept of recognising net interest on the net defined benefit obtigation
in ptace of the interest on the defined benefil obligation and the expected retumn on plan assels recognised under the current standard,

For the standards with a laler etfective date, the diractors are in the process of assessing the Ekely impact and look to finalisation of the
standards bafore formallsing their viaw,

3. Segment information

For mansgemeant purpases, the Group is orgenissd into three operating divisions: Minerets. Oll & Gas and Power 8 Industrial, These three
divisions are orpanissd and managed separately based on the key markats served and each is treated a3 an operating segment and a
reportable segrment under IFRSA. The operating and reportable segments were determinad based on the reports reviewed by the Chiat
Execturive which are used to make cperational decisions.

The Minerals segmeant is the global leader in the provision of slurry handling equipment and essociated aftermarket support for abrasive
high wear applications used in the mining and oll sands markets. The Oil & Gas segment provides products and servics solutions to
upsiream, production, iransportation, refining and related industries. The Power & Industrial segmem designs and manutactures valves,
pumps and turbines as well as providing specialist support services to the globa! power generation, Industrial and ol and gas sectors.

All othar segments, which are disclosed as Group companies, Inchuds Lhe results of LGE process which supplies equipment to the liquefied
petroleum gas marine and onshore markets. This business was sold on 28 December 2012 (note 5)

The Chief Executive assesses the performance of the operating segments based on oparating profit from continuing operations betore
exceplional itams and intangibles amortisation, including imparment {‘'segment rasult’). Finance income and expenditure arx associated
Interest-bearing hiabiities and dernvalive financial instruments are not allocated to segments as all reasury activity is managed centrally by
the Group treasury tunction. The amounts provided to the Chiel Executive with respect to assets and kabilties ase measurad in @ manner
consisiant with that of the financial statements. The assets are aflocated based on the operations of the segmaent and the physical location
of the asset. The liabilities are altocated based on the operations of the segment.

Transfar prices between business segments are set on an amm's lgngth basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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Financisl Siatements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

3. Segment information {(continuoad)

The segmeant iInformation for the reportabls segmants for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2012 and the 52 wesks ended 30 December

2011 is disclosed below.

Totsl conttnulng

Minersia Ol & Ges Power & Industrial operations
01z = o2 20m 2018 1 012 201
tm tm &m tm tm £m tm £m
Revenue
Sales 10 external customarg 1333.8 1,216.3 843.6 742.7 34 308.7 2,500.6 2.265.7
Imer-segment sales 43 5.2 153 14.7 4.0 8.6 23.6 26.5
Segrmant rgwanue 1337.8 12215 858.9 757.4 3274 333 2,524.2 2,292.2
Gmup compenies sales to extsrmal customers L1 2683
Eimingtions (23.6) (26.5)
25383 22920
Sales 1o extemal customers - 2011 at 2012 average sxchange rates
Salas to axternal CUstomarns 1,333.8 11853 843.8 7468 A224 3.4 2,500.8 22435
Group companies sales to external customars .7 26.3
2,538.3 2,260.8
Ragutt (restaied note 2)
Segmant result befora share of results
of joint ventures 255.9 2139 2042 178.3 NS5 26.8 a8 419.0
Share of resutts of joint ventures - - a4 48 - - 8.4 4.8
Segment result 255.9 213.9 210.8 183.1 s 26.8 498.0 423.8
Group companias 25 3.0
Unallocated expenses {14.9) 14.1)
Operating profit before exceptional tems & intangibles amonisation 485.8 412.7
Toa! exceptional tems & intangibles amortisation {19.1) {5.5)
Nst finance costs before exceplional items 41.3) {15.1)
QCiher finance costs — relirement benefils na 1.3
Profit before 1ax from continuing operations 424.0 390.8
Sagment result - 2011 at 2012 average exchange rotes
Segment rasult betore share of rosutts
of joint vemtures 2559 211.5 2042 180.2 AR 26.0 4916 4a17.7
Share of results of joint ventures - - a4 4.9 - - 84 4.9
Segment result 255.9 211.5 2108 1851 315 26.0 488.0 4226
Group companiss 2.5 3.0
Unallocated expenses (14.9) (14.1)
Operating profit befere exceptional tems & intangibles amortisation 485.6 411.5

Thare are fo matarial revenues cerived from a single axternal customer,
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Total continudng m
Minersis oA Gas Power & Incustria! operstions

2012 201 2012 om 2012 20n 2012 201
tm trn tm frn m o m £m

Assaets & liabllities (restated note 2) v
ntangible assets 3604 380.0 o9T4.4 917.1 1088 117.8 1,452.6 1.414.9
Property, plant & equipmennt 199.1 187.4 1216 BE.6 522 44.3 3r2e 3183
Working capital assets 4B5.9 470.9 3858 391.0 167.0 143.2 1,018.7 1,006.1
1,083.4 1,038.3 1,481.8 1,394.7 320.0 305.3 28442 2,738.3
Investments in joint ventures - - 120 11.4 - - 120 114
Sagment asssets 10534 1,038.3 14738 1,408.1 ax.o 305.3 2,858.2 2,740.7
Group companies assets - 3.2
Unaflocated assets 428.5 16827
Total assets 328207 20156
Working capital labilities 283.7 2682.2 128.0 208.9 2680 88.5 479.7 557.8
Group companies Eabilities 34 12
Unafiocated Eabiities 1,489.3 1,229.3
Total libiitles 19724 1,798.1

Other ssgment information

Segment eaditions to non-cumrent assets 50.4 49.0 523 32.5 18.86 13.4 ms3 84.9
Unatocated adiditions to non-current assets 23 0.5
Total additions to non-current assets 1228 95.4
Segment depreciation & amortisation n.s 201 429 213 10.9 103 as.3 60.7
Unaflocated depreciation & emortisation 08 0.4
Total dapreciation & amortisation a8.1 G1.1

Unaflocated assets primarily comprise cash and shorl-ierm deposlis, derivative inancial Instrumenis, incoms tax receivable and deferred tax
assels as well as those assels which are used kx general head office purpoases. Intanghle assets have been allocated within the segmental
analysis to reflect changes made to the information provided to the Chief Exacutive for decision-making purposes. Unallocated liablities primarily
comprise interest-bearing loans and bomowings, detivative Enancial instruments, incoms tax peyable, provisions, deferred 1ax lisbilities and
retirament benefit deficits as weoll as kabilities reiating to general head office activities. Segment additions to non-current assets do not include
those additions which have arisen from business combinations (note 13).
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

Continued

3. Segment information (continued)
Gsographical information

Gsographical intormation in respect of ravenus and non-current asssts for the 52 weeks endsd 28 December 2012 and the 52 weeks sndad
30 December 2011 is disclosed below. Revenues are allocated based on the location to which the product is shipped. Assets are allocated
basad on the location of tha assets and operations. Non-current asséts consist of property, piant and equipment. intangible assets end

Investments in joint ventures.
Ewrope & Asln South  Middie Esst
uK USA  Cenads [2.1] Pacitic Auxtralis America & Africa Totat
82 weeks snied 20 December 2012 om m £m £m om Cm £m L] m
Revenue trom ¢ontinuing operations
Sates tn external customers ar.7 787.1 2625 2154 2879 238.0 3163 3454 2,638.3
Non-currart assets 1032 10831 24.1 1433 172.4 163.5 52.1 98.4 1,840.1
Europe & Asia South  Middie Enst &
52 wesks snded 30 December 2011 - w USA Canncia FSU Pacttc Austrola Arerica Adrica Torst
restutsd {nots ) fm om £rn On tm tm £m £m tm
Reavenus from continuing operations
Sales to axternal customers 100.6 702.3 267.3 183.5 280.0 231.0 2682.3 265.0 2.202.0
Non-current assets 88.6 994.2 17.4 140.9 177.0 167.1 45.8 104.3 1,745.4
The following disclosures are given in retation to continuing operations.
2012 201y
& &m
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as folows
QOriginal equipment 10393 11,0147
Ahermarket parts 990.8 8882
Salas of goods 2.030.1 1,902.9
Aftarmarkst services 415.7 3135
Revenue from construction contracts 2.5 75.6
Revenue 2,538.3 22020
Finance income 52 4.3
Total revenue 2,643.5 2.208.3
No revenus was derved from exchanges of goads or services (2011 Enil).
4. Revenues 4 exponses
The following disclosuras are given in retation to continuing operations.
201
Foststed
m2 o
tm om
A reconciliation of revenue to cperating profit is as fobows
Revenue 2,630.3 2.262.0
Cost of sales (1,852.2) (1.485.4)
Gross profit 888.1 796.6
Gther operating Income 3s2 23.9
Seting & distribution costs {220.8) {211.3)
Administrative axpenses {237.8) {206.1)
Share of results of joint ventures a4 48
Operating profit 469.1 407.9
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M
Rexated
2012 rote 2
£m om
Operating profil is stated after changing
Cost of inventorias recognised as an expense 1,682.2 1,4954
Depraciation of property, plant & equipmant & investment property {note 11} 484 3ra3
Amortisation of intangible assats (note 12} 8.7 238
Acquisition transaction costs 1.0 56
Other one-off costs* 83 1.0
Net foreign exchange losses 03 45
Net impairment of trade receivables (note 17) 33 0.7
* Cthar one-Of CORts INCILoe M nuCiung, integration and shoried acquisition costs a3 well 83 the provision recordad In 2011 for Libysn working capital exposures.
The following disciosures are given in retation to total operations.
Wz 2omn
m om
Auditors remuneration
The total foas payable by the Group to Emnst & Young LLP and their associates for work performed i respect of the
audit end other services providad to the Company and its subsidiery companies during the period are disciosed below.
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company & Group financlel statements 03 03
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and lts assoclates for cther services
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant 1o legislation 13 1.4
Corporate finance services 02 03
Taxation edvisory sarvices 0.1 -
Feas payable in respect of the Group's pension Schemes
Audit 0.1 0.1

Resaarch & develcpman! costs

Research & devalopment costs amount to £23.5m (2011: £18.4m) of which £22.2m (2011: £17.8m) were charged directly to cost of sales

in the Income statamaent and £1.3m (2011: £0.6m) were capitalised (note 12),

Operating leanes
Minimum lease payments under cperating jeases recognised as an expensae In the period were £37.1m (2011; £28.7m).
2012 2011
£m tm
Employes benefits expensas
Wagses 4 salaries 491.1 4130
Social security costs 50.9 44,2
Pension costs
Defined benafit plans (note 24) 2.1 1.3
Defined benefit plans exceptional item {note 5) - (19.0)
Defined contribution plans 163 149
Share-based payments - equity settied transactions 1.5 4.9
567.9 459.3
212 21
Number Number
The averege monthly number of persons employed by the Company and Its subsidiaries is as follows
Minerals 7,326 6,649
Ol & Gas 2,999 2,196
Power 8 Industrial 2813 2,723
Group companias 107 101
13,245 11.669

Al 28 December 2012, the number of persons smpiloyed by the Group including those under tamporary contracts was 14,351 (2011: 13,606).
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

5. Exceptional itams & intangibles amortisation

2011
Restmad
2012 noin 2y
m tm
Recognized in arriving at operating profit from continuing operations
ImMangiblas emortisation (note 12) (36.7 23.8)
Exceptional iterm - charging of tair value inventory uplift “.s) -
Exceptiona! itermn - gain on sale of LGE Process 0.5 -
Exceptions! item - uplift in respect ol contingent consideration {labikity (5.8) -
Exgeptional itern — past service gain on UK defined benefit scheme (note 24} - 18.0
{16.5) 4.8
Recognised in finance costs
Excaptional #am — unwind of discount in raspect of contingant consideration liabliity {2.8) ©.7
Racognised in arriving at profit for the period lrom discontinusd operations
Exceptional itams (nota B) 3.3 19.9

Under [FRS, at acquisition, invantory vaiues are ediusted trom their carrying valuas {generaily at cost of production) to a falr valee, which
Includes profit attributable to the degree of completion of the inventory. This rosutted in e fadr value uplift totaliing £4.5m for Seaboard and
Kovatech combined. This uplift is charged to the incoma statemnent as the inventory is sold, thereby reducing operating profits. All of the
uplitted inventory was sold In the 52 weeks endad 28 Dacemnber 2012 giving rise to the charge to the ingcome statament of £4.5m which
has been treatad as an excaplional item.

The gain on sale of LGE Process has been disclosed within othar operating incoma (note 4).

6. Financa (costs) income

Finance costs
2012 am
£m om
Interest payable on bank loans, fixed rate notes & overdrafts 35.7) 120}
Losses on financial assets & labilities ai fal value through profit & loss (5.0) (4.5)
Finance charges retated to committad loan tatilities {5.8) t2.9)
{45.5) (18.9)
Unwind of discount In respect of contingen consideration = exceptionat item (note §) {2.6) ©.7
49.1) (20.1)
Finance income
2012 2011
&m m
Inmerest receivable on financial assets 0.7 0.8
Gains on financial essets & liabilities at fair value through profit & loss 45 3.4
52 43
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7. Tax expense S
Incorno tax expense n
2m
Pestated
2m2 rond) S—
m £m v
Consolidated Income Statement
Current incoms tax
UK cotporation tax - continuing oparations [0-4) @3.1)
Adjustmenis in respsact of previous years 2.8) 2.0}
UK. comporation tax 3.0 (5.1)
Forgign tax — continuing operations (1103 {1118}
Adjustments in raspect of previous years a1 1758
Total current Income tax {1101} 99.5)
Delerred lncome tax
Crigination & reversal of temporary differences — continuing oparations 0 ®.2)
Adjustment to sstimated recoverable deferred tax assets (1.8} 0.1
Ettect of changes in tax rates (1.1} 0.7
Adjustments in raspect of previous years 14 {4.1)
Total deterred tax" 1.5) (12.9)
Total incoma tax expense in the Consolidated Income Statement {111.6) (112.4)
" nchries £1.5m of Ostemed tax cradh stanng to foreign tan [2011: a charge of 08.6m).
The total income tax expense is disclosed in tha Consolidatad incoma Statement as follows.
am
Restanc
2012 note 2
tm bm
Tax axpense - continuing operations before exceptional Rems & intangibtes amortisation (1242) {114.2)
- axceptional items 15 4.8
- intangibtas amortisation 14 8.6
Total iIncomae tax expense in the Consoildated incoma Statement {111.8) {112.4)
Current tax tar 2012 has been reduced by £nil (2011: £0.1m) duse to the utillsation of detarmad tax assets previously not recognised.
The tolal deferred tax included in the income {ax axpenss is detated in note 23.
Tax relating to Hams charged or credited to equity
2012 2m
tm tm
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Current tax on pension contributions 29 25
Deferred tax ~ origination & reversal of temporary differences 0.7 9.1
Tax credit on actuarial losses on retiremernt benefits s 118
Deferred tax (charge) credit on hadge Josses {0.5) 06
Tax credit in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive iIncoma 30 12.2
Consolidnted Statoment of Changes in Equity
Deferred tax on share-based payments 2.6 5.1
Current tax on sharg-based payments - 1.0
Tax (chargs) credit in the Consobdatad Statement of Changes in Equity (2.6) 6.1
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7. Tax expense {continued)

Reconcillation of the total tax charge

The tax expense in the Consolidated Income Statement for the period is kess than the weighted everage o1 standard rates of corporation tex
ecross the Group of 30.29% (2011; 32,0%). The diffarances are reconciad below.

2011
Rextxted

2012 now 2

tm om

Profit before tax from continuing operations 424.0 3908
Profit betore tax from discontinued operations as 19.9
Accounting profit before tax 4273 410.7
Al the weighted average of stendard rates of corporation tax across the Group of 30.2% (2011: 32.0%) 129.1 1315

Adjusiments in respect of previous years - current tax {0.5) {15.5)
- defared {ax {14) 4.1

Joint vertures {1.2) (0.6)

Unrecognised defarred 1ax assets 18 {0.1)
Overgeas tax on unremitted earnings 4.6 8.7

Permanent ditferences (15.4) 8.0
Effect of changes in tax rates 1.1 0.7

Exceptional gain from discontinued operations covered by indexation relief - {5.4)
Exceptional tems inaligible for tax 1.1 -
Gains exempt from tax {1.4) -
Al eftective tax rate of 26.1% (2011 27.4%) 1118 1124

8. Discontinued operations

There wers no disposals of com businasses during the 52 weaeks ended 28 December 2012 or the 52 weeks ended 30 Dacember 2011.
The profit arising from discontinuad operations of £3.3m was as a resull of the release of unutilised provisions refating to prioe year disposals
ON expiretion of the tax warranty perods.

In Decambear 2011, the Group disposed of the former Wer Pumps site at Catheart to Clyde Unlon, subsequently acquired by SPX Clyde UK
Limited, for cash proceeds of £25.0m resulting In 8 net gain of £19.9m {net of tax of £nil) after taking account of disposal cosis and other
costs arising from discontinued operations. Sinca the property was used by the Weir Pumps business, which was sold in 2007, the net gain
was shown as a profit from discontinued operations.

Eamings per shara from discontinued operations were as follows.

£ ] 2011

pance [ e ]

Baslc 1.6 9.4
Diuted 1.8 9.3

These earnings per share figues were derived by dividing the net profii atlributable to equity hokdars of the Company from discontinued
operations of £3.3m (2011: £19.9m) by the weighted sverage number of ordinary shares for both basic and dited amounts shown in note 9.
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6. Eamings per share

Basic earnings per share amounis ase calculated by dividing net profit for the period attributable to equity hokiers of the Company by the u

weighled average number of ordinary shares outsiending during the period. Dluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit
attributable to equity hoiders of the Company by the waighted avaerage number of ordinary shares outstanding during the pericd {adjusted tor

the effects of diutive share awards).

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the calcutation of earnings per shara,

20U

Regtated
2012 rote 2}

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Total operations” {Em) 3154 208.3
Continuing operations* (€m) 312.1 278.4
Continuing operations betore excaptional items & intangities amortisation*® {£mj) 3188 2821

Waeighted average share capital

Basic earnings per share (number of shares, milor) 2122 21.2
Diluted samings pear share {number of shares, million} 2135 2134

The ditierence between the weighted average share capital for the purposes of the basic and dilutad eamings per share calculations

is analysed as follows.
Mz 0n
Shares Gharea
MRSon [
Waighted average number of ordinary shares tor basic 8amings per share 2122 211.2
Etfect of dilution; LTIP and deferred bomus awards 13 22
Adjusted weq_;!md average number of ordinary shares for diuted eamings per share 213.5 2134

The profit attributabie 1o equity holdars of the Campany used in the calculation of both basic and diluted earnings per shara from continuing
operations betore exceptiona itama and intangibles amortisation is calculated as toliows.

on
Restated
2012 rue?)
om tm
Net profit attributable to equity holders from continuing operations” 3121 278.4
Exceptional itemns & intangibles amortigation net of tax 6.5 3.7
Net profit attributable 10 equity hoiders from continuing operations before axceptional items & iMangibles emortisation’ 3188 282.1
012 a1
pance panco
Baslic eamings per share:

Total operations” 148.6 141.2
Continulng operations® 147.1 131.8
Continuing opsrations belore exceptional itams & intengibles amortisation® 150.1 133.6

Dituted samings per ahare:
Total operations” 147.7 1398
Continuing oparations® 1462 130.5
Continuing operations before exceptional items & Inlanglblas amortisation” 1492 132.2

* Adprsted tor £0.3m (2011: Cn) in rezpect of non-controllng interesta

There have been no share options {2011; nil} exercised between the reporting date and the date of signing of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

Continued
10. Dividends pald & proposed
m omnm
tm fm
Declared & paid during the period
Equity dividends on ordinary sharas
Final dividend for 2011: 25.8p (2010: 21.00) 54.8 44,3
Interim dividend for 2012: 8.0p (2011: 7.2p) 189 15.2
7.7 50.5
Proposed for approva! by sharehclders at the annual general mesting
Fina! dividand for 2012: 30.0p {2011: 25.8p) 63.8 54.5

The proposed dividend is based on the number of shares in issue, axcluding treasury shares held, at the date the financial statements were

epproved and authorisad for issue.

The fnal dividend may differ due to increases or decreases in the number of shares in lssue between the date of approval of the report and

financial staternents and the record date tor the final dividend.
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11. Propenrty, plant & equipment & inrvestment property

Tote!
property,
ot i o
tm tm  tm " om
Cost
Al 31 December 2010 1113 3290 440.3 1.8
Additions 18.8 72.4 91.0 -
Acquisitions 0.9 194 20.3 -
Disposals £3.8) 232 Qo) (102}
Reclassifications to intangible assels (note 12) - 2.3 {2.3) -
Reclassifications 2.0 (0.4) 1.6 (1.6}
Exchange adjusimernt {3.1) (12.0) {15.1) -
At 30 December 2011 - restated {ote & 1259 I02.9 508.8 -
Additions 2719 8r.4 1153 -
Acquisitions 12 88 78 -
Disposals {5.5) {18.4) {23.9) -
Reclassifications to iMangble assets - 0.2 ©2 -
Reclassffications [ ] 02 - -
Exchange adjustment “.0 {13.8) (17.6) -
At 28 Dacember 2012 1453 444.9 5902 -
Act iated deprecistion & impalrment
A1 31 December 2010 276 155.3 182.9 78
Depraciation charga for the period 5.7 31.3 3r.0 0.3
Impatrment 0.1 0.3 0.4 -
Dispasals 0.0 2.2 {23.9) 7.3
Reclassifications to intangiie assets (note 12) - {1.6) {1.6) -
Reclassifications 1.7 0.0 1.0 1.0
Exchangs adjustment {0.6) {5.3) 5.9 -
At 30 December 2011 - restated (note 2) 28 157.1 189.¢ -
Deprociation charge for the period 4.7 44.7 49.4 -
Disposals 2.4) (15.1) 7.6 -
Exchange adjustment (0.8) {4.7) (5.6} -
At 28 Decembear 2012 M2 182.0 2182 -
Net book value at 31 Dacember 2010 83.7 1737 257.4 39
Net book value at 30 December 2011 - restated (note 2) 83.1 2258 318.9 -
Net book value at 28 December 2012 1114 262.9 374D -

The carrying value of buildings held under finance leases is £1.7m (2011: £1.9m). The carrying value of plant and equipment held under

fnance laases is £0.5m {2011: £0.7m). Leased assels are pledged as security {or the related finance lease liabilities.

The carrying amount of assats under construction included in plant and equipment Is £52.9m (2011: £26.7m).

In December 2011, the Group disposad of the former Welr Pumps shte at Cathcart, which had been trested as an investmant property since
the disposal of the Weir Pumps busingss in 2007, to Clyde Union, subsaquently acquirad by SPX Clyde UK Limited.

In 2011 the impairment charge of £0.4m redated to specific assats in one location which were unabla to be transtarred to that operation's

naw location,
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12. Imtangible assets
malectus)
Brand Customer Purchased proparty& Dewsloprnent
Goodwil) Aames feltionship % trade merks costs Other Foual
o £m tm tm tm £m tm tm

Cast
At 31 Decamber 2010 5978 1413 184.0 28.3 55.8 23 173 1024.8
Additions - - - 4.7 - 0.8 - 53
Acquisitions 2890.5 N6 165.2 - - - - 488.3
Disocsals - - - .7 - - - 0.7
Reclassifications from property,
plant & equipment {nota 11) - - - 19 - 0.4 - 23
Reclassifications - - - 0.2 0.2) - - -
Exchange sdjustment 3.2 0.6) 3.5 {0.9) - - {0.8) 9.00
Al 30 Docarmnber 2017 - restated (note &) 8849 1723 5.7 30.5 556 33 185 4,508.0
Additions - - - 8.0 - 1.3 1.0 8.3
Acquisitions 570 45 53.4 - 4.7 - 1.8 114
Disposaly - - - {2.5) - - .7 8.
Reclassifications from property,
plant &8 equipment (note 11) - - - o2 - - - 02
Exchange adjustment P22 A (14.9) 1.0 23 0.1} 0.9) (38.2)
Al 28 Dacember 2012 908.9 169.7 384.5 3.2 58.0 4.5 117 1,576.6
Accumaulated amortisation & Impalrment
At 31 December 2010 - - 32.5 16.4 10.2 0.1 1.0 70.2
Amortisation charga for the period - - 13.5 2.7 55 0.1 20 23.8
Disposals - - - n.n - - - 1.7
Reclassifications trom proparty,
plarri & aquipmant (note 11) - - - 1.6 - - - 1.6
Reclassifications - - 0.1) 0.2) ©.8 - 1.1 -
Exchange adjusgtment - - 0.3) {0.5) 0.1 - 0.3 (1.0)
At 30 Dacember 2011 - restated (note 2) - - 45.8 18.3 15.0 0.2 13.8 029
Amortisation charpe ior the period - - 240 34 58 0.1 3a 88.7
Disposals - - - 2.3) - - ©.7 (3.0
Exchange adjustment - - [ 2] 10.6) ©.n - 0.7 4.2)
At 28 Decembar 2012 - - 67.4 18.8 10.9 03 18.0 124
Nst book vaue at 31 December 2010 597.8 141.3 1515 9.8 45.8 2.2 8.3 954.8
Nat book vatue at 30 December 2011
- estated {note 2) 884.1 1723 300.1 12,2 408 3.1 27 1.415.1
Nat book value at 28 December 2012 908.9 169.7 3171 14.4 38.1 4.2 1.7 1454.1

The increase to goodwill of £57.0m during 2012 is represented by the current year acquisitions of Gema and Novatach (note 13).

Brand names have been assigned an indefinite usefu! ife and as such are not amortised. The carrying value of £169.7m {2011 restated:
£172.3m} is tested annually for impairment (note 14). The brand nama vatué comprises the brands of Weir Linatex, Weir BDK, Weir American
Hydro, Weir Warman, Weir SPM, Wair Gabbionata, Weir Mesa, Weir Muttifio and Weir Novatech, all of which are considerad to be rmarket

leaders in thelr respective markets,
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The aflocation of customer relationships end the ramaining amortisation period of thase assets is as folows.

Asouaining smortisation Customer
period reistionships

2m
Raxtmtsa
e 01 2012 o
Yeurs Yeors tm £m
Wair Seaboarnd 135 18 1420 157.8
Walr Novatech 13 - 48.9 -
Welr Intemnaticnal 4 5 53 6.6
Weir SPM 19 20 824 20.6
weir Gabblonsta 18 19 129 139
Warman companles Upto 8 Upto9 105 14.0
OCther Upto18 Upto19 151 17.2
EAYA 300.%

The amortisation and impairment chargs for the period is inchuded in the income statement as follows.
2011
Ragtatod
on {note 2
tm om
Cost of sales 28 28
Selling & distribution costs 04 0.4
Administrative expenses 35 208
Amortisation charge for the period 36.7 23.8
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13. Business combinations

On 4 January 2012. the Group completed the acquisition of Gema Industri AB and Gema Industrigurmmi AB (‘Gema’) for an Initial net cash
consideration of £5m. Based in Gallivare, Sweden, Gema's core business is providing maintenance services to mines in northem Sweden.
At 28 December 2012, the Group had acquired 100% of the voting shares of Gema Industrigummil AB and 88% of the voting shares of Gema
tndustri AB and i8 in the process of acquiring the remaining shares in accordance with Swedish company law which has resufted In a further
cash consideration of £0.6m.

On 22 February 2012, the Group comptetad the acquisition of 100% of the voting shares of Novatech LLC {'Novatech’) for a cash
congidaration of US$192m (£121m), net cash consideration of US$176m (£111m). Based In Dallas, Texas, Novatech produces a wide varisty
of valves for high pressurs applications used in unconventional upstraam oft and gas operations, The far values of Novatach are disclosed
in tha following table. Tha tair values are final iollowing the completion of the talr vatue exercise in respect of each class of asset. There are
certain Intangible assats included In the £52.6m of goodwill recognisad that cannot be individually separated and refiably measured due

to their nature. These itams Include anticipated businass growth, synargies and an assembled workforce. The fair vatue and gross amount
of the trade receivables amount to £5.2m. Nana of the trade recaivables have been impaired,

Welt Movetech
2012
Falr values
tm
Property, plant & equipment 8.7
inventories 73
Intangible assets
- customer relationships 53.4
- brand name 4.5
- ordar backieg 18
- inteflectual property 4.7
Trade & other receivables 52
Cash & cash equivalents 10.2
Interest-bearing loans & borrowings {1.8)
Trade & other payebles 0.9
Provisions 0.1)
Delarred tax {23.0)
Felr value of net asssts 66.9
Goodwill arizsing on acguisition 52.6
Total consideration 119.5
Cash considaration 121.4
Settlement of extemal debi of subsidiaries on acquisition {1.9)
Total consideration 119.5
The total net cash outfliow on current year acquisitions was as {oflows:
Weir Novatech
- cash & cash equivalents acquired 10.2
- cash pald (1214)
Gema — nel cash outflow {5.8)
Total cash ouifow {note 26) (118.8)
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The Group acquired 60% of the voling shares of Weir International on 1 July 2011 and 100% o! the voting shares of Seaboard on
14 Decembar 2011. The remaining 40% of the voting shares of Weir International is subject 1o put and calt oplions exercisable between 2014
and 2019 and based upon an EBITDA mullipte of profil in the two years proceding the exercise of the option. The cash consideration paid
was £0.8m and the estimated fair vatue of the contingent consideration is £19.6m. This is based on an assessment of the profitabllity of

possible outcomes discounted to net present value. The range of possible outcomes on an undiscounted basis is betwaen zero and £50.0m.

in the 2011 annual report and accounts, tha far values on acquisition of Seaboard and Wair Intamational were provigional, dus to the timing

of tha transactions. In the 52 woeks ended 28 December 2012, the fair values of Seaboard and Weir international have been finalised

resutting in adjustmenis to the provisional fair values attributed. The following table summarises the adiustments made to the provisional fair

vatues during the pariod.
Provisionsl fair values Adjustmaents to provislonal falr valuss Reatatad inir values
Weir ek Weir Welr Weir Wer
Ssaboard imtamatioasl Tota! Bssbowrd ImMwmations! Total  Sesboard Imsmationst Total
o oM 011 2011 2011 zom 2011 2wom 01
m on m (-] tm [+ tm &n tm
Property, plant & equipment
- land & buildings 08 - 0.6 03 - D.3 09 - 08
- plamt & equipment 22.5 0.1 22.6 8.2 - 3.2 19.3 0. 194
Intangible assets
- brand name - - - 316 - 318 31.6 - 316
- customer ralationships - - - 157.6 7.6 165.2 157.6 7.6 165.2
inventories 20.8 0.7 30.3 6.0 - 6.0} 23.8 0.7 243
Trede & other receivables 42.3 1.1 43.4 (1.1) - (1.1} 412 1.1 42.3
Cash & cash aquivalents 2.2 0.2 2.4 - - - 22 0.2 2.4
intarast-bearing loans &
borrowings (55.4} 0.2 {55.6) - - - {55.4) 0.2 (55.8)
Trade & other payables {41.5) (1.6} 43.1) (3.6) - (3.6} (45.1) (1.6) (46.7)
Provisions
= warranty {1.5) = (1.5 (1.8) - {1.8) 3.3 - 3.3
- other - - - 0.5 - {0.5) {0.5) - {0.5}
Incosme tax 8.3 0.7) 6.2 - = - 8.3 0.7) 62
Deterred tax 1.1 - 1.1 (87.2) - {67.2) {86.7}) - {B88.1)
Fair value of net assels B2 0.2 8.4 108.1 7.8 1137 112.3 7.8 1201
Goodwill arising on acquisition 379.8 23.6 403.2 {1086.1) 7.6} {113.7) 2735 18.0 289.5
Total consideration 385.8 23.8 409.6 - - - 385.8 23.8 409.6
Cash consideration 432.1 9.8 441.9 - - - 432.1 9.8 441.9
Settlament of extermnal debt
on acquisition 55.4) - 155.4) - - - {55.4) - {65.4)
Contingent consideration 9.1 14.0 231 - - - 9.1 14.0 231
Total consigeration 3858 23.8 409.6 - - - 3858 23.8 400.6
The cash outfliow on acquisition
was as follows
Cash & cash equivalonts
acquired 22 0.2 24 - - - 2.2 0.2 24
Cash pakt (432.1) ©.8 (441.8) - - - {432.1) 9.9 {441.9)
Net cash outflow (429.9) {8.5) {439.5) - - - {429.8) (9.6) (439.5)

Together, Seaboard and Novatech contributed £173.3m to revenue and £45.5m 10 operating profit in the 52 weeks ended 28 December
2012. The contribution of Navatech to revenue and to profit for the period from continuing operations alter exceptiong) items and intangibles
amortisation was not material and so has not been separately disclosed. The combined revenue and profit for the period from continuing
operations efter exceptional ilems and intangibles’ amortisation of the Group, assuming thet Novatach had been acquired st the start of
2012, would have been £2,544.9m and £313.9m respectively, The revenue and operating profit of Gerna have not been disclosed as they
are deemed to be immateripl Acquisition costs in relation to Novatech of £0.3m have been included within operating profit.
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. Impairment testing of goodwiil & intangible aszets with indefinite lives
Goodwill acquired through business combinalions and intangible assels with indefinite lives have been allocated at acquisition to the cash
generating units (CGUS) 1hat are expected to benefit Irom that business combination.

The acquisition of Seaboard at the end of 2011 has been determined to be a separate CGU and Novatech, acquired in February 2012,
has been included in ‘Other’. Tha previous year acquisition of Welr International was includad in ‘Othar’. Tha emounts includad in ‘Other”
are not considered significant in comparison {0 their respective total carmying amounts.

The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with indafinite lves has been allccated as per the table below.

" am xnm

voor s mwn  pewd

acauiad tm tm £m tm

Walr Seabcard 2011 2602.7 30.3 2738 N6
Weir SPM 2007 223.0 2.5 229.0 28.7
Warman companias various 210 8a.6 2219 80.2
Wair Gabbionsta 2005 50.9 58 60.2 5.7
Other varous 1433 18.7 992 15.1
908.9 169.7 B884.1 1723

* Intpngibla assals with Indginiis Bves (Trand nonmes}.

The Group tests goodwill and imangible assets with indefinite bves annually for impakment, or more frequently I there are indications that
these might be impaired. The basis of these Impairment tests ncluding key assumptions are set out in the table below.

Baels of Period of Discount Real Kay

cau valustion forecest rwte' growth® sssumptions Source
Revenus growth* External foracest

Weir Seaboard Valye in use Syecars 12.2% (2011: 11.99%) 1.29% 2011: 1.29%) EBIT margins®  Historic experience
Revenue growth® Extermnal forecast

Wair SPM Value inuse Syears 12.2% (2011: 11.9%) 1.29% (2011: 1.2%) EBIT marging’  Historic exparence
Revenue growth® External forecest

Warman companies Value in use Syears 13.9% (2011: 18.4%) 1.7% (2011: 1.7%) EBIT margins®  Historic experience
Revenue growth’” External forecast

Weir Gabbioneta Valug in use Syears 14.2% (2011: 16.9%) 1.2% (2011: 1.2%) EBIT margins®  Historic expersnce

‘Discount rate

The discoun rates presented above reflect the pre-tax nominal weighted average cost of capital (WACC) in the most appropriate gecgraphic
region. The WACG is the weighted average of the pre-tex cost of dobt financing and the pre-tax cost of equity finance, In the main there has
boen an increase in the WACC refative to 2011 in mature economies largely due to en increase in government bond yields. Government bond
yields in laly have decreased significantly as local credit risks have reduced, the reduction visible in the Weir Gabbionets WACC, The discount
ratas for emarging markets has broadly dacreassed, directly Enkad to movement in the yleld on Govermnmsnt bonds.

*Real growth

Real growth beyond the five year forecast period of 1.2%, for all businesses except Souh Africa where a rate of 4.0% is used, reflects the
increasingly global nature of these businesses and the fact that they sell a significant proportion of their products to amerging markats which
have long-term stronger growth prospacts than their home markets.

JIEBIT margins
EBIT margins have been forecast based on historic lavals taking cognisanca of the likaly impact ol changing aconomic environments and
competitive landscapes on volumes and revenues and the impact of assoclated management sctions on casts.

“Weir Seaboard

Wak Seaboard is a welthaag solutions provider facused an the growing North American unconventional off and gas drilling and production
markets. Demand for Wer Seaboard's products and services is closely related to the number of conventional and unconventionat oll drilfing
rigs and gas well drilling rigs which is in turn dependent upon oil end naturat gas prices and storage levels. Independent forecasts of North
American oil and gas well driling activity. which taka into account foracas! oll and natural gas pricas and storage levels, have been used 1o
derive revenue growth assumptions. These independent iorecasts were prepared during the final quarter of 2012,
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* Weir SPM

Weir SPM s a suppfier of ol and gas well service pumps, associated flow control equipment ang! services to the oll and gas production
industry. A large proportion of the business’s revenues are genersted in North America with demand being closely related 1o the number
of conventional ol driling rigs and gas well drilling rigs in cperation which is in tum dependent upon oil and natural gas prices and storage
levals. Indepandent foracasts of North American oll and gas well driling activity, which taka into account forecast oil and natural gas prices
end storage levels, have bean usad 10 derive revanue growth assumptions. These independent forecasts were prepared during the fina!

quarter of 2012
* Warman companies

The Warman companias supply pumps and assoclated equipment and sarvices to all global markets. The key drivers for revenues ane

(i} leveis of mining capital expenditure which drives demand for original equipment and {i)) leve!s of ectual mining activity which drives demand

for epare paris and service. Independent forecasts of mining capital expenditure and activity have besn used to derive revenus growth

assumptions, These independent forecasts were prepared during the final quarter of 2012,

T Weir Gabblonsta

Weir Gabbioneta is a supptier of heavy duty process appications to od and gas refinery, petro-chemical and power generatian industries. The
kay drivers for revenues are capital expenditure within ol refinery and petro-chemicel industries. Independent forecasts of expenditure in thess
sectors have been used to derive revenua growth assumptions. These indapenden! forecasts ware prepared during the final quarter of 2012,

Senaltivity anatysls

Base case forecasts show significant headroem above carrying value tor each of the CGUs. Sensitivity analysis has been undertaken for
sach CGU to assass the impact of any reasonable possibls change in key assumptions. Thare is no reascnably possibie change that would

cause the carrying values to exceed recoverable amounts.

15. Invastments in joint ventures
The sigrificent investments in joint venlures are as (cllows,

Tow!
[
At 31 December 2010 103
Share of rasults 48
Share of dividends 4.1)
Exchange adjustment 0.4
At 30 December 2011 114
Share of results 64
Shara of dividends {5.4)
Exchange adjustmant (0.4)
At 28 December 2002 120
Details of the Group's share of the balance sheets. revenue and profits of its joint ventures are given below.
012 2011
tm tm
Shara of join! ventures balance sheets
Goodwill az 34
Currom assets 12.0 10.8
Non-current sesets 2.7 2.8
Current liabliities {4.3) @.h
Non-current liabllities {1.8) 1.5
et assots 120 114
Share of joim ventures reverwe & profits
Reverwe 2.5 18.9
Cost of sales {13.5) (10.8)
Salling & distribution costs (0.9) 0o.n
Administrative expenses (1.8) na
Income tax expense {1.1) 0.8)
Profit after tax 8.4 4.3
Carrying value of investments in joint ventures 120 11.4

The Group's significant investments in joind ventures are listed on page 151.
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16, Inventories
201
Rostated
20012 o= 2
tm £m
Raw materials 162.3 134.5
Work in progress 4.7 118.0
Finished goods 255.7 2053
512.7 4838
17. Trada & other recoivablos
Raxaina
2012 ot 23
() tm
Trade receivables 424.0 455.6
Allowance tor doybstiul dabis (12.6) 13.9)
44114 441.7
Other debtors 24.6 425
Sales tax receivable 12,0 126
Accrued income 121 55
Prapaymenis 17.2 138
4782 518.1
The average credit period on sales of goods is 59 days (2011: 70 days).
Analysis of trade recelvables
s
2012 note 3
tm tm
Nelther impaired nor past due 309.9 3435
Past due but not impatred 101.5 g8.2
tmpaired 12.8 139
424.0 4558
Ageing of past due but not impaired trede recetvables
Restamo
2012 e 2
m Em
Up to 3 months T4.2 775
Between 3 & 6 months 14.5 15.1
More than 6 months 12.8 56
1015 58.2
Movemeant in the allowance for douhtful dabts
Fesatea
»n2 hots 23
on m
Balance at the beginning of the period {13.9) (13.8)
impairment (05583 recognised on recelvables® .2 (3.3)
Amounts written off as uncollsctable 28 10
Amounts recovered during the pericd 04 Q.4
impairmeart losses reversed 20 35
Exchange adjustment 0.5 0.3
Balance at the end of the period (12.8) (13.9)

* Inchucies & 2 vailks AckIMEN! in relxion t te Wei Seabonsd scquisition o £1.1m adpsred against goodwil.
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Ageing of impaired trade recsivables

201 1]
Rostated
m2 ot 2
m om
Up to 3 months 14 18 v
Betwoen 3 & 6 months 10 0.8
Mora than 68 months 10.2 1.2
12.8 13.9
18. Construction contracis
2012 o1
tm £m
Gross emoun due from customers for contract werk (ncluded In current assets) 2.7 196
Gross amount dus to customars for contract work (included in current liabiiitios) 13.7) (26.8)
8.0 72
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses (o date 114.7 119.8
Less: progress bllings {106.7) {126.8)
8.0 72)
Ths amount of retentions held by customers for contract work emounted to £nil (2011: £nif) and the amount of atvances received from
customers for contraci work amounted to £2.5m {2011 £5.7m},
19, Cash & short-term deposits
=2 20m
tm tm
Cash &t bank & in hand 2200 738
Short-term daposits 163.1 401
Mm.a 1139
For tha purposas of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, cash & cash equivalents comprise the following
Cash & ghort-tarm deposits o 1139
Bank overgrafts & short-term borrowings (note 20) {6.8) (5.3)

3042 108.6

Cash at bank & in hand garns intevesi at floating rates based on deily bank deposit rates. Short-termn deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short-term daposit rates.

20. Interest-bearing loans & borrowings

2012 2011
tm on
Current

Bank overdrafts 39 1.7
Short-tanm bormowings 3.0 36
6.9 5.3
Bank loang 583 88.2
Obligations under inance leases (note 27) 0.2 0.5
65.4 920

Non-current
Bank loans 242.7 536.3
Fixad rate notes THA 158.2
Obligations under finance leases (note 27) 0.5 0.8

1,014.8 685.1
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20. Interest-baaring loans & borrowings (continued)

Walghtsd sverage

Interest rate

2 20%% 201 xm
Bank loany Maturity interest basls LY % tm tm
Revolving credit facility
United States dollar variable rate loans 2014 USS LIBOR 120 128 148.0 163.0
Seaboard acquisition finance
Unitad States dollar variable rate amortising term loan 2014 US$ UBOR 2,08 228 1529 190.3
United States dolar variable rate bridging loan 2013 USS LIBOR - 1,78 - 2437
Other
Uncommitted taciity loan 2012 USS LIBOR - 1.60 - 251
Indian rupee taemn kban 2013 FIXED 12.78 13.75 0.1 04

301.0 6225
Less current instaiments due on bank loans
Unlted States doller variable rate amortising temn loan 2014 USS LIBOR 58.9) (60.8)
Uncommitted facilty loan 2012 US$ LIBOA - 25.1)
indian rupee term loan {0.1) ©.3)
Non-cumrent bank loans 242.7 536.3
Weighted sverags

terest rete

012 20m 2002 20m
Fixed rate notes Meturity Imtsrest basis » L3 m £m
Private placement
Sterling fixed rete notes 2015 FIXED 458 458 120 12,0
United Statas doflar fixed rate notes 2ms FIXED 420 4.20 55.7 58.1
Sterling foced rete notes 2018 FIXED 536 5.36 429 429
United States doltar fixad rate notas 2018 FIXED 8.03 503 433 45.2
United States doliar fixed rate notes 2019 FIXED 3,69 - 129.7 -
Unitad States dollar fixed rate notes 2022 FIXED 427 - 3642 ~
Linited States dollar fixed rate notes 2023 FIXED 4.34 - 123.5 -
Non-current fixed rate notes e 158.2

USS UIBOR is the Unitad States dollar London Inter Bank Offer Rata. The welightad average interast rates Include an applicable mangin over
and above the interest basis.

The disclosures above represent the Interest profile and currency profie of financial lisbililes before the impact of derivative financial instruments.

On 16 February 2012 the Group issued US dollar denominated fixed rate notes via a Privale Placement lo US investors totalling US$1bn.
The notes were US$210m of seven year, US$580m of ten year and US$200m of eleven year notes. The average coupon payable is 4.16%.
Foliowing this issue, the Group regaid in fudl the US$380m bridging loan undsrtaken in 2011 to fund the Seaboard acquisition. These

new notes are in addition 1o the Group's existing US$800m multi-currency revoiving credit tacilty which was enterad into in 2010, and

the US$300m amortising term loan executed in 2011. As at December 2012, US$242m was drawn under the revolving credil tacility

(this being 1o fund the acquisition of Mathena, Inc. on 31 December 2012) and US$252m was outstanding undar the amortising term loan,
Total unamortisad lasue costs a1 28 December 2012 ware £6.2m (2011; £7.4m).
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21. Trade & other payables o
20m n
Reststed
2012 note
tm m
Gurront W
Trade payables 2015 3480
Other creditors 125 18.0
Other taxes & social security costs 18.0 178
Accruals 105.1 109.0
Caontingant consideration 0.4 2.1
Deaterred income 613 66.1
485.8 569.1
Non-current
Other payables 1.9 -
Contingant consideration 4.4 15.5
20.3 15.5
22, Provisions
WsTenties Dimcortirused
& onerous oparations
snies Employss warrerty &
niracts Other Totad
m B £m £m [
At 30 December 2011 505 262 &6 8.1 203
Prior year adjustmsms 18 - - 0.5
At 30 December 2011 {rastated nots 2) 523 282 55 8.8 926
Additions 195 5.1 - 58 304
Acquisitions 0.1 - - - 01
Disposal of business 2.9) - - - 2.9)
Utllisad (20.6) 3.8 05 1.8) g5
Unutilised (12-5) 0.3 RY) {0.5) {16.8)
Exchange adjustmant {13) {©.1) - 0.1) [AE-]
At 28 December 2012 4.6 274 1.7 8.2 69.6
Curren) 2012 26.7 a9 0.7 5.1 384
Non-curmrent 2012 79 232 10 K a%2
34.6 7.1 1.7 82 6896
Current 2011 {restated note 2) 41.8 3.6 3.3 6.8 55.5
Non-cument 2011 {restated note 2) 10.5 2286 22 1.8 371
52.3 28.2 556 8.6 926

Warranties and onerous sales contracis

Provision has been mads in respect of actual warranty and contract penatty claims on goods sold and services provided and allowance

has besn mads for potential waranty claims based on past exparience for goods and services 50ld with a wamanty guarantee. it is expected
that all costs related 1o such claims will have been incurred within five years of ihe bajlance sheet date. Provision has been made in respect

of sales contracts antered into for the sale of goods in the normal course of busingss whera the unawgitiable costs of meeting the obligations
undar the contracts axceed the economic banafits expected to ba received from the contracts. Provision is made immediately when it becomes
apparent that expecied costs will exceed the expected benefits of the cantract. It is expected that the majority of these costs will be incumed
within one year of the balance sheet date.

Empleyees related

Employea relsted provisions arise from legal obligations and asbestosis claims and are based on Managenem's DSt estimate of the tkely
costs, It is expectad that the costs will be incurred in the period up to 2025.
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22, Provigiona (continued)

Diacontinued operations warranty & indemnity

Provisions In respest of discontinued operations include provision for warmanty and Indemnity exposures under asset and shase sale
agreaments. Tha provision as gt 28 December 2012 is based on managemant's currant best estimate of the rematning liabllitieg. The actual
outcome may diffar and, in some casas, this may be dependent on the outcome of legal proceedings. K is expacted that the majority of these
costs will be Incurred within two years of the balance sheet date with the remaining costs expected o be incured within five years of the
balance sheet date.

Other

Other provisions relats to an environmental clean up programma in the United States for a company acquited in 1992 and various other legal
ctaims and exposures across the Group. The environmenta provision is basad on mansgament's current bast estimate of the expected costs
under the programme. i is expecied that thase costs will be incumed in the period up to 2018,

23, Deoferred tax
201
Restated
2m2 hote 2
[ bm
Detferred income tax assets
Post-employment benefits 220 23.0
Decelarated depraciation for tax purposes 3.0 80
Intangible assats 0.6 0.9
Untaxed raserves 65.0 731
Otisot against Eabifities 812 (64.3)
Deferred incoma tax essets 304 387
Deforred income tax liabilitles
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes {31.8) (25.9)
Owerseas tax on urwemitied eamings {24.1) 27.1)
Intangibie assets {154.9) 148.2
Other temporary difterences {13.1) 12.9)
Otiset ageinst asseis 812 €43
Detarved Income tax abilitis (162.5) 149.3)
Net daterred income 1ax liability (132.1) {110.6)
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The movement in deferred income tax assets and fiabilities during the period was as follows. .- "Ir‘

Urtanad
Accelerated Ovarsess RNTVES
Post  deprecistion tax oa & other
employmer fortan  unremitted Iimanghle PO rary N
banefits PErpoASs samings asasts differsnces Total
tm m £m tm om £m
At 31 December 2010 18.9 ©.0 @21.7 {79.6) 43.4 (48.0)
Acquisitions - .4 - 75.2) 13.5 66.1)
{Charged) credited to the Income statsment {note 7) 5.0) (8.5) 8.7) 7.2 (1.9 (12.9)
Credited to equity 9.1 - - - 5.7 148
Exchange edjustment - - 1.3 03 - 1.8
At 30 Dacamber 2011 - restated (note 2) 2.0 (18.9) {27.1) [147.3) 80.7 {110.8)
Acquisitions ~ (22) - 21.4) 06 3.0
[{Charged) creditad to the incoms statement (note 7) 0.5) 7.6} 3.0 83 “w.n (1.5)
Credited (charged) to equity 0.7 - - - B3.1) 24)
Exchange adjustment 0.2) 1.1 - 6.1 {1.6) 54
At 28 December 2012 23.0 {26.6) {24.1) (154.3) 519 {132.1)

Untaxed reserves primarily relate to temporarily disaliowed inventory/dabtor provisions and accruals/provigions for liablities where the tax
glliowance is deterrad untll the cash axpanse OCCurs,

Deferred tax asset balances for unused tax losses of £4,.5m (2011 £1.8m) have not been recognisad on the grounds thal there is insulficiont
evidence that these assels will be recoverable. Thesa assats will be recoverad when future lax charges are sufficiant to absorb these tax
benetits. Deferred tax assat balances for capita losses in the UK amounting to £9.8m (2011: £10.7m) have not been recognised but would
be available in the event of huture capital gains being incurred by the Group.

Temporary differences associated with Group investmants

A defarred tax labllity of £24.1m {2011: £27.1m} bhas been recognised in respoct of taxes on the unremitted earnings of the South American
and Canadlian subsidiarias. As at 28 Dacember 2012. this is the only recognised deferred tax liability in respect of taxes on unremittad
sarmings as the Group does not foresse a distribution of unrermitted eamings trom other subsidlaries or joint ventures which would rasult
in @ reversal of deterred tax. The tamporary differances assoclated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, for which a deferred
ax liabllity has not been recognised, aggregate to £1,367.0m (2011: £1,095.0m).

There are no inCome tax consequences attaching o the payment of dividends by the Company to its sharehoidars.

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2012 Budgat and Autumn statement. The Finance Act
2012 enacted legislation to reduce the UK corporate rata of taxation from 249% to 23% from 1 April 2013. A turther reduction in the UK rate
has been announced reducing the corporation tax maln rate to 21% from April 2014, This further change has not bean subslantivaly enacied
at the balance sheet date and therefore, is not reflected in the consolidated resutts for tho 52 weeks endad 28 December 2012. We expec]
that these recuctions will ot have a material effect on the ettective tax rate or on the profit {or the year in iuture periods.
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24, Pensions & other post-employment benefit plans

The Group has five main defined benefit pension plans in the UK and North America. All defined benefit plans are closaed to new members.
The most significant of tha defined benefit plans are the two fundsed UK plans. Contributory salary in respect of the Group's main UK plan
is cappad and will increase in line with RP1 inflation up to a maximum of 5% per annum, The Group also provides certain additional post-
ratirament heglthcare benefits 1o senior employees in the United States. These benefils are unfunded. The essets and liabilities of the plang
are as follows.

Morih American peraions &
UK pensions post-retirement hesithcars Totsl
2012 201 2m2 200 mie 2011
tm £m tm £m £tm £m

Plan assets at fair value
Equities 156.9 1502 7.7 7a 164.8 1573
Bons 1213 g1.4 8.9 83 1282 7.7
Ingurance policy 3482 2353 - - 3482 3363
Other 7.8 14.8 0.9 1.1 8.5 15.9
Fair value of plan asseots 634.0 501.7 1585 145 6495 606.2
Present value of plan Gabilities : {700.9) (862.3) (30.0) (28.6) (738.9) {890.9)
Net pansion lability (75.9) {70.6) (14.5) {14.1) {90.4) B4.7)

The pension plans have not directly invested in any of the Group’s own financial instruments nor in properties or other assets used by the Group.

The emounts recognised in the Consobdated Income Statement and in the Consoligated Statement of Comprehensive Incomae for the period
are analysed as toBows.

Morth Americen pansions &
UK penak poat-retl heatthcare Total
2012 201 2012 20m Mz 201
b £m om m ™ tm
Recognised in the Consolidated income Statement
Current service cost 21 1.3 - - 2.1 13
Past service galn — exceptional tem fnote 5) - {18.0) - - - (19.0)
Expectad return on plan assets G0.5) (32.2) ©.6) 0.6 @31.1)  (33.1)
Intarest cost cn plan liabilties A 3341 1.2 13 33 34.4
Other finance costs 06 0.9 0.6 0.4 1.2 1.3
Taken to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Actual return on plan assets 636 any 1.5 0.5 85.1 322
Less: expectad retumn on plan assets {30.5) 32.%) 0.8) 0.9 31.1) {33.1)
a1 0.5) 09 0.9) .0 {0.9)
Other actuarial losses 453 (@.7) @n) 2.4) {481 (44.1)
Actuarial logses recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensiva Income {12.2) (42.2) (LK ] (2.8) {14.4) (45.0)

Pension contributions ere determined with the advice of independent qualified actuaries on the basis of regular valuations using the projecied
unit method. The Group made special contributions of £7.5m In 2012 (2011: £6.6m) In addition to the employers reguiar contributions. The special
contributions for 2013 are expecied to be £12.1m, raducing to £8.6m in 2014. The total contributions to the defined benefil plans in 2013 are
expacted to ba £15.4m (2012: £11.0m). Plan assats are stated at thélr market vatues at the respective balance sheet dates and overal expected
rates of return are establishod by applying published brokers forecasts to each category of plan assets and allowing for plan expenses.

Under IAS19 (Revised), thare will be no impact on the disclosed defined benefit obligation, The net charge to the Income Statermnent will
increase by approximately £3m following the introduction of the concept of recognising net interest on the net defined benefit obligation
in place of the intetest on the defined benefit obligation and the expected retusn on plan asseis recognised under the curent standard,

The Executive Schema Triennial Valuation was signed on 30 Aprii 2012 and tha Main Schema Triennial Vatuation was signed on
31 January 2013.
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North Americen Posi-retinement

UX pensions penaions bagRhcare
20u 201 2012 2011 2013 201
“ L3 % % % *
Main assumptions v
Rate of salary increase 29 3.1 33 a4 n/a na
Rate of Increase in pensions in paymant
Pra § April 2008 sarvice 2.9 28 n/a n/a n/a a
Past & April 2008 service 2.1 19 n/a na n/a wa
Discount rate 43 4.8 3.9 45 3.9 a5
Expected rates of retum on plan assets
Equitles . 76 . 6.2 n/a n/a
Bonds . a4 - 4.1 n/a na
Insurance policy . 4.8 a/a n/a n/a na
Other . 26 v as n/s nva
Retall Prices infetion essumption 29 3.4 n/a n/a n/e wa
Consumer Prices inflation sssumption 22 22 20 2.2 24 2.1
Rate of increase in healthcare costs n/a va n'a na v -

* IAS1% (Rovised). affective tor pariods beginning on or after | January 2013 ceps tha oxpectad rate of netum on s388ts #t the diacount rate appied 10 plan EablBitios,
- B8.30% per snnum decreesing 1 4.5% per annum and remaining SiEtc at thet leval bom 2028 orwverds,
~* 7.70% per sarum Socragsing 10 4.5% pet &nnum and remaining static al that lewe) from 2026 onwards.

North American Posi-relirernent

UK psnsions panakona hesithcery
w2 2011 a2 2011 2012 01t
Yaars Yean Years Yearn Years Years

Post-retirement mortality

Current pensioners at 65 - mala 2.8 209 199 19.3 195 199
Currem pensioners at 65 — famate 24.3 23.7 ne 213 214 210
Future pensioners at 65 - mals 238 23.0 21.4 194 2.0 19.1
Future pensioners at 65 - female 283 258 226 214 23 210

The post-retiremant mortalty assumptions allow for expectad increases in longevity. The ‘current’ disclogures abowve relata to assumptions
based on lchgevity (in years) tollowing retirement at the balance shest data, with “future’ being that relating to an employee retiring in 2032
(in 20 yaars tima).

Changes in key assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported retirement benefit obligation and the income statemert expense
for 2013. The effects of changes in those assumptions ere set cut In the table below.

Dx O
2012 2012 201 201
tm fm tm £m
Discount rate
Efiest on Consolidated income Staterment in the following financial year of a 1% change 43 {3.4) 0.8 2.1)
Efiect on net Bablity of a 1% change 70.6 {87.8) 711 {71.7)

The Impaci on the net tiability is significantly reduced as a result of the insurance policies held. In the absence of such policies, the impact
of a 1% decrease in discount rates would ba broadty £37m higher.

A one parcentage point changa in the assumed rate of increase In post retirement healthcare costs woukd have the following effects.

D Dx
mi2 20 an 201

o £m Cm tm

Eftect on net llability 0.7 0.6 0.6} 0.5
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24. Pensions & other post-employment benafit plans (cantinued)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are analysed as follows.

North Amwrican pensicns &
UK pansions poxt-retirpment haalthcare Tokwd
2013 2011 2012 0m 2012 20m
&m £m tm tm Lm £m
Opening defined benefit obligations 8623 633.9 28.6 259 6909 859.8
Cumert service cost 21 1.3 - - 24 13
Past sorvice gain - {19.0) - - - (19.0)
interest cost 3a 331 1.2 1.3 a3 34.4
Benefits paid 1.0} {29.5} (1.3) 0.3 823 {30.8)
Contributions by empioyees Q.1 0.8 - - 0.1 0.8
Actuarial losses 45.3 41.7 2.8 2.4 48.1 441
Exchange edjustment - - {1.3) 0.3 1.3) 0.3
Closing defined benes! obligations 709.9 662.3 30.0 28.8 739.9 690.9

‘The definad banefit obligations comprise £8.1m (2011: £8.4m) arising trom unfunded plans end £731.8m (2011: £682.5m) fror planas that are

whoily or partially funded.

Tne past service gain for 2011 of £49.0m erosa as a resuft of a decision by the Trustees of The Weir Group Pension and Retirement Saving
Schame that, following the Govermment's change in legistation, certain elarnents of pension would Increass In ling with Consumer Prices
Index (CPY rather than the Retal Prices Indax (RP1). This dacision was announcad to the members of the scheme in July 2011, The past
service gain was recognised last yaesar as an exceptional #em in the Consolidated Income Statemnent,

Changes in the fair velue of plan assets are analysed as foliows.

North American pansions &

UX pensions post-retirement hesithcare Totsl

2 201 012 om F- FH 2om

om m tm tm Em om

Opaning ptan assets 591.7 580.6 14.5 14.2 606.2 594.8
Expected returm on plan assets 0.5 322 0.6 0.9 na 331
Empioyer contributions 98 B.1 14 1.1 1.0 a2
Contributions by employees [+ X ] 08 - - 0.1 0.8
Benefits paid 8.9 28.5) .3 0.3) By (30.8)
Actuarial gains (losses) 3.1 (0.5) 08 {0.4) 340 0.9)
Exchange adjustment - - {0.9) - (0.8) -
Closing plen assets 634.0 501.7 15.5 14.5 649.5 608.2

120 The Wetr Group PLE Annusl Renort end Finencisl Steterments 2012




History of axperience gzains & losaes

2012 20m 20:0 2000 2008
tm om on £m om
UK pensions
Fair value of plan assets 634.0 591.7 580.6 539.8 4877
Present value of defined benafit obligations {709.9) (662.9) {633.9) {600.3) 5013
Deficit in the plans {75.9) (70.6) (83.3) (60.5) (13.6)
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities 145 0.9 (2.8 {10.6) 10.0)
Changas in assumptions underlytng plan Eablitles {(59.8) {42.6) (22.5) 111.8) 70.7
Experienco adjustments arising on plan assets 331 {0.5) 24.0 64.4 {(118.2)
North American pensions & post-retirement heaithcare
Fair value of plan assats 155 14.5 14.2 12.4 81.2
Present value of defined benefit obligations £30.0) (28.6) 25.8) (22.9) 77.5)
Deficit in tha plans {14.5) (a.1) avn (10.5) (18.3)
Experience adjustmants arising on plan liabilties - 0.3 0.3 1.5 -
Changes in assumptions underlying plan kabiities (2.8} (2.1) 2.3 1.2} 0.1
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets 0.8 {0.4) 0.5 0.2} 3.6

The cumulztive amournit of actuarial gains and losses recognissd In othsr comprehensive income since 28 December 2003 Is a loss

of £109.1m (2011: £95.0m).

The directors are unable to determine how much of the pension plan deficits are attributable to actuarial gains and lossas since inception
of those pension plans. Consequantly, the directors are unabis to determine the amourt of actuarial gains and Ixsses that would have baen
recognised on an IFRS basls In other comprahensive income before 27 December 2003,

25. Share capital & reserves
12 2m
Musnber Numnber
MiSon Mo
tssued & fully paid share capital
Al the beginning of tha pericd 213.0 2128
Issued during the period in respect of LTIF awards 0.6 0.2
At the end of the period 2138 2130
Treasury shares
Al the baginning of the period 1.7 2.1
Issued during the period in respect of LTIF awards i0.8) (C.4)
Al the end of the period 11 1.7

The Company has one class of ardinary share which carries no rights to fixed income,

As &t 28 Dacemnber 2012, 125,196 shares (2011: 168,142 shares) were hald by the Kleinwort EBT with a market value of £2.3m (2071: £3.4mj.

As gt 28 Dacember 2012, 104,568 shares (2011: Nif) were hetd by the Appleby EBT for the strategic and matching elements of the defarred

bonus and 51,255 shares (2011: £Nil) for the daferred element. Thesa shares have a market value of £2.9m (2011: £Nif).

Capital redemption rasarve

The capital redemption resarve was created by a repurchase and cancallation of own shares during the 53 weeks ended 1 January 1989,

Foreign cumrency tranalation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is usad to record exchange differences arising irom the transiation of the finenclal statements

of foreign operations and the Group's hedge of its net investment in foraign operations.
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2%, Share capiial & reserves {continued)
Hodge accounting reserve

This raserve records the portion of the gains or lossas on hedging instruments used as cash flow hedges that are determined to be effectiva. Net gaing
{losses) transterrad from equity into profil or loss during the period are inctuded in the foliowing Ene items in the Consolidated income Staterment.

2012 2011
m tm
Revenue - {0.5)
Cost of sales {©.8) 2.0
{0.8) 1.5
26. Additional cash flow information
Rucind
a2 fote 3
tm m
Continuing operations
Net cash genearated from operations
Operating profit 469.1 407.9
Non cash exceptional items 20.2) -
Share ot resuits of joint vemures (5.4) {4.8)
Deproaciation of property, plant & equipment 49.4 373
Amaortisation of intangible assets 36.7 238
Impairment of plant & sguipmeant - 0.4
Gains on disposal of property, plant & equipment (0.9) (0.8)
Defined bengfit plans past service cradil {19.0)
Funding of pension & post-retirement costs 1.3) 1.3)
Employee share schemes 7.5 49
Net toreign exchange including derivative financial Instruments 0.3 4.5
(Decrease) increase in provisions (16.7) 50
Cash generated from cperations before working capital cash fiows 5158 457.9
increasa In invertorias 1.6} (337.6)
Decreasa (increase) In trade & other receivables & coastruction contracts 24.4 {127.8)
(Decrease) increase in trade & other payvables & construction contracts 79.7) 110.1
Cash generated from ¢perations 358.8 302.6
Additional pension contributions pald 7.5) 6.6
Income tax paid {104.9) (87.3)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2882 188.7

The settement of the external dabt of Seaboard and Novatech on acquisition has been classified as a financing cash flow in accordance

with IAS7.
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The following tablas summarise the cashfiows arising on acquisitions:

i o1
&m tm
Acqulsitions of subsidlaries
Curmrent pefiod acquisitions {se0 below) (114.9) (384.1)
Previcus perlods acquisitions contingent consideration paid 8.4) (1.9)
(233  (©3860)
Settiement of external debt of subsidiary on acgulsition {1.9) (55.4)
Acguisition of subsidiaries — current yaar acquisitions {114.9) {384.1)
Tota cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ curront year (note 13} {118.8) (438.5)
Prgvipus periods acquisitions contingent consideration paid 84) (1.6}
Total cash cuthow relating to acquisitions (1252 (441.9)
Disposals of subskiiaries
Currem period disposatls - proceeds 252 -
- cash disposed of {1.8) -
Prior pariod disposals {0.5) -
29 -
Reconclilation of netincrease In cash & cash equivalents to movement in net debt
Net Increase in cash & cash eguivalents from continuing operations 264 .4 57
Net incraase in cash & cash equivatants from discontinued operations - investing activitias (note 8) - 246
Net Increase in debt (322.6} {362.8)
Changa in net debt resudiing from cash flows £88.9) {332.5)
Lease inceptions ©.1) 0.9)
Loans acquired @3 (55.6)
Foraign currency transiation differences 24.9 {0.6)
Changa in net debt during the period {15.7) (389.6)
Net dabt at the beginning of the period 8732) {283.6)
Net debt at the end of the period (589.9) 673.2)
Net debt comprises the following
Cash & short-term daposits {note 19) N 1139
Current interest-bearing loans & bormowings (note 20) {85.4) {92.0)
Non-currant intarest-bearing keans & borrowings (note 20) {1,014.6} (695.1)
(658.9) (673.2)
Proceads from sale 252 -
Cash disposed {(1.8) -
Net cash inflow from curren! year disposals 234 -
Currant year disposals had tha tollowing etfect on the Group's assets and kabllities
Trade and other raceivables 6.2 -
Construction contract assets 0.9 -
Nat derivative financial instruments (0.6} -
Trade and other payables {8.1) -
Construction contract liabilities 8.1 -
Provisions @9 —
Mot assets disposed (1.2 -
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27. Commitments & legal claims

Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into commercial leases for land and bulldings. motor vehicles and plant and equipment. Land and building leases
have an average term of between two and ten years, motor vehicies leases have an average term of bgtween two and four years and plant
and equipment leases have an average term of between three and five years, Certain leases have terms of renawal, at the option of the
lessee, but thare are no purchase options or escalation clauses. Future minimum rentats payable under non-cancealable operating lebses
are shown in the tabla below,

2012 20m

£m Em

Less than one year 250 16.0
After one year but not more than five years 56.1 a4.2
More than five years 19.5 11
100.6 71.3

Finanoe loaze commitments
The Group has finance leases for buidings and ltems of plant and equipment. Future minimurn lease payments under finance leases togsther
with the present value of the net minimum lesse payments ara shown in the tabie below.

Presem
SRiniemnum vaiue of Meimum Presont velus
Saymants Pyt poymonts  Of paymoents

202 i 20m 201

€m £m £m o

Less than one year 02 02 0.5 05

After one year bul not more than five years 0.5 0.8 0.6 0.6

After five years 0.1 - 0.1 -
Total minimum lease payments oe 1.2
Less amounts representing finance charges 0.1) 0.1)

Presem value of minimum laase payments 0.7 0.7 1.1 1.1

The waighted everage cutstanding lease tern is 4.42 years (2011: 4,58 years). For the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012, the weightad
avarage etiective borrowing rate was 5.74% (2011: 5.95%.

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no armngements have been enterad into {or contimgent rental payments.

Capltal commitments

2012 201
m £m
Outstanding capital commitments contracted but not provided for - property. plant & equipment 13.6 28.2

The Group's share of the capital commitments of ita joint vanturas amounted to £0.5m (2011: £0.3m).

Lagal claima
The company and certain subsidiaries are, from time to time, parties to tegal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course
of busginess.

On 6 Febsuary 2013, an Opinion and Order was filed with the United Statas District Courl, Southern District of New York dismissing the
claim against the Company (being one of many companies targeted) refating to a civil action for damages arising from the UN Oil for Food
programme which was ralsed in the US. Subsaquently the lragi Government led notice of eppeal and at the time of writing there has been
no nuling by the Court on this appeal. Wea will continue to defend this action vigorously.

To the extent not alreatly provided for, the directors do not anticipate that the outcome of these proceedings and claims, either individually
or in aggregate, will have a material adverse effect upon the Group's financial position.
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28. Equity settied share-based payments

LmP

There are thres types of award which may be mads under the LTIP to senior executives: pariormance shares, matching sheres and
Investmant shares. Datails of each award are outiined in the Remuneration report an pages 66 to 80.

Tha following table llustrates the number and weightad average share prices (WASP)} of shargs awarded undear the LTI,

2 om

Nusrber 2012 Number F |

(Y117 WASP Mo WASP

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 23 £8.2¢ 25 £6.32
Awardeg during the pariod 0.5 £10.43 0.5 £16.13
Exercised during the perlod {1.1) £4.01 0.6 £7.47
Forteited during the period - - 0.1 £7.03
Quistanding at the and of the pariod 1.7 £14.57 2.3 £8.26

An amount of £6.7m {2011: £4.9m) has been charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in respect o1 the number of awards which arg
expected to be made al the end of the vesting period. This comprises an amount of £2.0m (2011: £1.4m) in respect of parent company
employess and £4.7m (2011; £3.5m} in respact of employees of subsidiaries.

Certeln subsidiary companies made a cash contribution to the parent company of £2.0m {2011: £2.0m) In the period in respect of their
employeas’ LTIP ewards.

The remaining contractual lives of the outstanding LTIP awards at the end of the period are as follows.

2012 b b

2012 Recaining 20m Rarmecning

Number contractual Number cordrachnl

Year of award wnton ure MElon He
2009 - - 1.2 3 months
2010 08 3 months 0.6 15 months
201 0.8 15 months 0.5 27 months
012 05 27 months - -

The tair value of the conditional awards under the LTIP have besn estimated using the Monte Carlo simulation model. The following table
gives the assumptions made during the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012 and the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2011 in the calculation
of the fair value of awards made in those years,

2012 201
Weighted average expacted volatility (%) 40.00 50,00
Weighted average expectad life {years) 3.00 3.00
Weighted everage rigk iree rate (36} 0.53 1.68
Waeightad everage shere price (£) 10.43 16.13
Waeighted everage fair value (€} 14.32 1269

The expected lite of the awards is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. Tha expectad
volatility rellects the assumption that the historical volatility is volatility indicative of future trends which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcoma. Markat related performance conditions have been taken into account in the calculation of falr vahes.
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28. Equity settied share-hased payments (continued)

Deterred Bonua Plan

There are three types of award which may be made under the Deferred Bonus Plan: shares purchased on the empioyee’s behal! as pant
of ihe snnual bonus, matching shares and strategic shares for sanior exacutives apart from mambars of the Group Exacutive.

The foliowing table illustrates the number of shares awarded under the Deterred Bonus Plan.

2012 201
Number Number

MiBon MEBon

Qutstanding at the beginning of the period - -
Awarded during the period 02 -

Exercisad during the period
Forteited curing the pericd {0.1) -
Outstanding &1 the end of the period Q. -

An amount of £0.8m has bean charged to tha Consolidated Incarme Statement in respect of the number of awards which are expected to be
made at the end of the vesting period.

29. Related party disclosures
The following table provides the total amount of significant transactions which have been entered into with related parties for the refevant
finzncin) year end outstanding balances at the period end.

Gajes to Salestc  Purch Purch A

tated istsd from from owad bo

partien - parties - partes - partios - related

goods sorvices goods earvicas parties

Retated party ) tm tm tm o
Joint ventures 2012 1.0 0.2 1.7 26 -
20m 0.5 0.2 0.8 18 -

Group pension plans 2012 - - - - 1.4
201 - - - - 1.5

Contributions to the Group pension plans are disclosed in note 24.

Terms & conditions of transactions with related parties

Sales to and from ratated parties are made at normal markst prices. Outstanding balances at the period end are unsacured and settlemeant
occurs in cash, There have been no guarantees providad or recelved for any related party balances. For the 52 weeks ended 28 December
2012, the Group has not raised any provision for doubtiul dabta relating 10 amounts owad by related parties as the payment history has been
axcedent (2011: £nll). This essassment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.

N2 201
Compensation of key management personnel Em £m
Shart-term employee benefils 6.5 6.6
Share-basad payments 27 20
Post-employment benefits 0.1 -

93 8.6

Key managemeant comprises the Board and the Group Exscutive. Further details of the Board remuneration can be found in the
Remuneration report on pages 66 to 80.
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30. Financial assets A llobilitiss
Financlsl risk managoment cbjectives & policies i
The principal financial risks 1o which the Group is exposed are those relaling to foreign currency, liquidity and credit risk. Foraign currency
transactional risk arises when operating subsidiaries enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than their functional currencies,
Transtational risk arises on the translation of overseas samings and investments into sterling for consalidated reporting purpoeses. Credit risk
is the risk that B custorner or counterparty tails to mest an obligation under a contract and Equidity risk Is the risk that the Group will be v
unabie to mest its iabiities as they fell due. in addition, the Group is subject to a degree of interest rata risk on Its borrowings. The Group
uses financial assets and fiabilities, inchuding detivatives, to hedge certain foreign exchange and inferast rata risks as set out below,

Forelgn exchenge risk policy
Foreign currency transactional and translational risk could rasult in wolatility in reported consalidated earnings and net assats.

In raspect of transactional toreign currency risk, the Group maintains a policy that all operating units eiminate exposyres on material committed
transactions, usually by undertaking forward foreign currency contrects through the Group's treasury function. in addition, it ks Group policy
that thase campanias where the most significant concentration of foreign exchange risk has been identified also apply hedge accounting

in accordance with IAS39. Therefore, some of the Group's forward foreign curvency contracts form part of an effecttve cash fliow hedge.
Exchangs rate fluctuations in respect of the forward foreign currency contracts which form part of a cash flow hedge will have an impact on
shareholders equity, Exchanga rate fluctuations in respect of the other forward foreign currency contracts will have an impact on profit or
loss. It is Group policy not to engage in any speculative transaction of any kind.

{n respect of translational risk, the Group has a policy to partially hedge Unitad States doltar {US$) net assals exposure. This is achieved
through designating an element of US dollar borrowings. forward foreign currency contracts and cras9 cumency swaps as net investment
hedges against the Group’s US dollar investments. The Group does not hedge the translational exposure arising from profit and loss Rermns.

Liquidity risk policy

Uquidity risk could impact negatively on the Group's reputation, borrowing costs or ultimatety its abllity to continue as a going concem.
Liquidity risk ts managed by monitoring torecast and actual cash flews and enswiing that sufficient committed facilities are in place to mest
possible downside scenarios, The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of unding and flexibllity through the use
of bank overdrafts, bank loans and fixed rate notes. Further details of the Group's borrowing foddlities are disclosed in note 20,

Crodit risk polloy
Crediit sk coutd have a nagative impact on reported earnings and cash and consequently the liguicity of the Group.

The Group Is expesod to cradit risk to the extent of non-payment by eithar its cusiomers or the counterparties of its financlal instruments,
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables with risk spread aver a large number of countries and customaers, with
no significant concentration of risk. Whare appropriate, the Group endeavours 10 minimise risk by the use of trade finance instruments such
as letters of credit and Insurance. Cracit worthiness checks are also undertakan with external credit rating agencies betore entering into
contracts with new customers and credit limits are set as appropriate and adhared 10. As shown In nole 17, the trade roceivables presented
in the balance sheet are net of allowance for doubtiuf debis. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identifiable loss event
which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of cash lows. The Group's exposure to the credit risk
of financia! Institutions is limited by the adherence tc counterparty limits and by only trading with counterparties that have a strong credit
standing based upon ratings provided by the major agencles.

Interest rate risk policy
The Group's borowings are in & combination of fixed and variable rates of interest. Interest rate risk Is regularly monitored to ensure that the
mix of variable and fixed rate borrowing is appropriate for the Gmoup in the short to medium-term.

On 18 February 2012, the Group issued USS$1bn of fixed rate notes 1o the US private placement markel with maturities of seven years
{US$210.0m). ten years (US$590.0m) and eleven years {(US$200.0m). Cn receip! of these funds, the Group repaid the US$380.0m bridging
ioan end reduced the proportion of floating rate borrowings from 80% to 28% at 28 December 2012,

Mot investment in forelgn operations

As a1 28 December 2012, US dotar fixed rate noles of US$1,088.2m (2011: US$180.0m) and US dollar variable rate loans of US$252.0m
{2011: US$926.5m), both included in interest-bearing loans and borowings, cross currency swaps of US$89.4m (2011: US$254.0m) and
neat forward foreign currency liability contracts of US$48.0m (2011: LUS$48.0m) have bean designated as a hedge of the Group's exposum
1o translational foreign exchange risk on its net investments in Weir SPM, Wair Warman, Seaboard and Novatech. Gains or 105365 on the
ratransiation of tha borrowings and the fair value of the cross currency swaps and forward forelgn currency contracts are transferred to
equity to offsat any gains or losses on translation ol the net investments in these subsidiarias.
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Financlat Staterments

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

30. Financial assets & Habilities {continued)
Camrying amounts & fair vatues

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group's financlal instruments that are reperted
in the financial slatements.

Camyrg
amout Fair vy
Carrying xom 201
smount  Felrvalue Restatod Restexd
02 2012 om thow 2
tm tm m Cn
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments recognised at feir value through profit or loss 42 42 5.0 58
Derivative financial instruments in designated hedge accountiing relationships 02 0.2 0.7 0.7
Trade & other recaivablas axcluding statutory assets & prepayments 449.0 449.0 489.7 489.7
Cash & short-tarm deposits 391.1 391.1 1139 1138
844.5 8445 6101 6101
Financlal inabiiilies
Derivative financial instruments recognised st fair value through profit or kss (14.6) {14.8) 9.2) 5.2}
Derivative financial instruments in designated hedge accounting relaticnships {0.9) 09 (304} (30.4)
Amortised cost
Bank overdratis & short-1erm bomowings (6.9) {6.9) (5.3) (5.3
Trace & other payables excluding statutory liabilities & defered Income {424.9) {424.8) {500.6) {500.6)
Obligations under finance leasas 0N {0.7) {1.1) (1.1)
Floating rate bamowings (300.9) {300.9) 622.1) 622.1)
Fbeed rate bormowings {7T71.5) frea.m (158.6) {168.1)

(,520.4) (1,541.8) (1.327.3) {1,334.8)

The Group enters imo derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally dnancial institutions with investment grade credit
ratings. The derivativa financial instruments are valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs including spot and forward
toreign exchangs rates and inlersst rate curves. The fair value of cross currency swaps is calcutated as the present vatue of the estimated
future cash flows based on spot foreign exchange rates. The fair value of forward foraign currency contracts is caiculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows based on spot and forward foreign exchange rates.

The Group uses the foliowing hierarchy tor determining and disclosing the fair value of financia! instruments by valuation techniquer:
Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assals or liabilitias;
Level 2: ather lechniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded falr vahse are cbservable, either directly
or indirectly;
Levet 3: technigques which use inputs which have a significant eftect on ihe recorded fair value thal are not based on observable
market data.

Al 28 December 2012 and 30 December 2011, the Group heid all financial instiruments at level 2 fair value measurement. During the 52 weeks
ended 28 December 2012 and the 52 weeks ended 30 December 2011, thare were no transfars batween level 1 and tevel 2 talr value
measuremeants and no transtars into or out of level 3 falr value measurements.

The tair vahue of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximates their carrying amount

due to the short-lerm maturities of these instrumenis. The fair value of borrowings and obligations under finance leases is eslimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on simitar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Derivative financial instruments S
Set out in the table below is a summary of tha types of derivative financial instruments included within each balance sheet category. ]
22 on
tm £m
Included in non-current assets v
Forward foreign cumency contracts designated as cash low hedges - 0.1
Other forward foreign curmency contracts 0.8 = Se—
oa 0.4
Included in current asaats
Forward foreign cutrency contracts designated as cash flow hodges 0.2 0.6
Other forward foreign currency contracts 34 58
36 8.4
included in curvent Habilities
Forward foreign cumency contracts cesignated as cash flow hedges 0.1 2.1
Forward torgign currancy contracts designated as net investment hadges 03 0.4
Cross currency swaps designated as net investment hedpes - 129
Other Cross cunmency swaps A -
Other forward torelgn curvency contracts 52 9.0
14.7 24.4
included in non-curvent ilabllitles
Forward {oreign currancy contiacts designated as cash flow hedges - 0.7
Cross currancy swaps designated 85 net investment hedges 0s 143
Other forward loreign currency contracts 03 0.2
0.8 15.2
Not dorivative financial Babilitios 11.1 33.1
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

30. Finencial assets & abiiltiss (continued)

Liquidity & crodit risk

The maximum exposwe to credit risk at the balance sheet date is reprasented by the carrying value of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instrumants. The liabiities which could impact liquidity risk ara best represented by the camying value and maturity profile
of aach financial labiity, including derivative financial instruments. The tollowing tables include the undiscounted cash fiows of financial assets
and liabiities based on tha earfiast date on which the Group can be required to receive or pay these financial assats or Eabilities and inchude
both interest and principal cash flows. In respect of derivative iinancial nstruments the net credit/Bquidity risk is best represented by the net
inflows {outfiows) shown below together with the Group's headroom under the borrowing facifities s disclosed in note 20,

£2 weeks endod 28 December 2012 Lazs then 1

More than
your 1toRyssrs 2toSysan yaars Totad
o m m tm tn
Trade & other raceivables excluding statutory assets & prepayments 449.0 - - - 445.0
Cash & short-term daposits 39141 - - - 391.1
Non-darivative financial assets 840.1 - - - B840.1
Trade & other payables exchuding statutory fiablities & deferred income {400.5) 54) (4.8) (27.8)  (a30.5)
QObligations under finance leases 0.2 ©.2) {0.3) {0.1) {0.8)
Bank overdrafts & short-term borrowings (6.9) - - - 8.9)
Bank ioans 60.8)  (243.7) = - {304.5)
Fixad rate notes £33.6) @35 (158.7) (@030) (.020.7)
Non-derivative financial liabilities (501.9) (282.8) (164.8) ©30.8) (1,780.4)
et non-derivative inancial assets fiabiities) 338.2 (2826) (184.6)  (830.8) {940.3)
52 woaka endad 30 Decamber 2011 (restated note 2} Lass then Y More than §
yoor io2yos  2©0b8years yours Toial
om om tm o m
Tracle & other receivables excluding statutory assets & prepaymants 4890.7 - - - 489.7
Cash & shori-term deposits 113.9 - - - 1139
Non-derivative financial assets 603.6 - - - 603.6
Trade & cther payables excluding statutory liablities & defermad income {485.1} - 8.2) (15.8) {509.1)
Obligations undar inance leases 1.5} 0.3) 0.3) 0.1) 1.2
Bank overdratis & short-term bormowings 5.9 - - - (5.3
Bank loans (99.0) Q12.8) (236.2) - (B47.8)
Fixad rate loans {7.6) {7.6) {B5.6) f02.7) {194.5)
Non-derivative financia!l liabilities {597.5) {320.85) (331.3) (108.6) {1.357.9)
Net non-derivative financial assets (iabiities) 6.1 {320.5) (331.3) (108.6} {754.3)
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52 wasks ended 20 December 2012

Laws than ¥

Mors than & ul
ysar 1todysars 2tofywars yours Total
tm tm m o £m
Cross currency swaps — outfiow {33.1) {2.9) {(19.3) {43.4) (1180
Cross currency swaps — inflow 43.8 28 19.0 431 108.7 N
Croas currency swaps - nel outflow ©.3) ©.1) 0.9) 03 {10.0)
Forward foreign cumrancy contracls — outliow (584.8) (13.9) [33.0] - 8317
Forward foreign currency contracts - inflow 5833 14.2 338 - 631.1
Forward foreign cumency contracts - nel (outfiow) inflow (1.5} 0.3 08 - {0.8)}
Derivative financial instiuments — net outfiow {697.9} {18.8) (525)  (434)  {T504)
Derivative financial Instruments ~ net inflow 8271 170 5286 43.1 7388
Derivative financial instruments — net {outfow) inflow {10.8) 02 0.3 {0.9) (10.8)
Effect of discounting {0.5)
Net derivalive finencial kabilities {11.1)
52 woeks ended X) December 2011 Laxs than 1 Move than 5
yoer 1102 yoors 2 to 5yoers yoors Total
m m tm tm fm
Cross currency swapsg — outflow (57.1) {55.3) {20.7 47.6) {180.7}
Cross currency swaps —inflow 45.1 439 19.6 45.4 154.0
Cross cutrency swaps = nat outfiow {12.Q) {11.4) (1.1) 2.2) (26.7)
Forward fgreign currency contracts — outflow (542.4) (23.1) (6.0) - {s71.5
Farward toreign currency contracts — inflow 637.6 22.3 59 - 6658
Forward foreign currency contracts ~ net culfiow 4.8) 0.8) ©.1) - (5.7)
Derivative financial instruments — outflow {699.5} {78.4) {26.7) {47.8) B52.2)
Dertvative financial instruments — inflow 6982.7 68.2 25.5 45.4 8198
Desivative financial instruments — net outflow (16.8} 022 (1.2 2.2 32.4)
Effect of discounting 0.7
Net derivalive financial liabilities (33.1)
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

Continued

30. Financial assets & liabllitiea {continued)
Interest rate risk & matyrity profile

The following tables set out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group's financial instruments that are exposed to interes! rate risk and
the Group's notional value of derivative financial instruments, by matunty, exposed to interest rate risk.

62 wesks endsd 28 December 2012

Lass then 1 Mors than §
year 1-2 years 2-5yuurs yoars Total
m bn £m e m
Fixed rate debt
Bank loans {0.1) - - - 1)
Fixad rate notes - - (67.7) {7 (4
Obigations under finance leases 0.9) {03) 0.3 - ©.8)
(0.4) 0.2 {68.0) Fo3.n (T2.3)
Fixed rate desivatives
Notionad cross curnency swaps US doliar leg - - {19.5) (89.9) {89.4)
Notlonat croas currency swapa stariing leg - - 120 430 55.0
- - {7.5) {26.9) 84.4)
Net fixad rate financial instruments 0.4) 02) {75.5) {730.8) {806.7)
Floating rote net debt
Cash & short-term deposits 391.1 - - - 391,
Bank overdrafts & short-tarm borrowings {6.9) - - - {6.9)
Bark loans (58.3) (242.7) - - {301.0)
3259 {242.7) - - 83.2
Floating rate derivatives
Naotional cross curmency swaps US dollar leg 810 - - - (81.0)
Notional cross currency swaps steriing leg 490 - - - 410
(40.0) - - - 40.0)
Net ficating rate financial instruments 2859 242.7) - - 43.2
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52 weeks snded 30 December 2041 L then 1

Mors then § m
your 1-2ysars 25 ywonn yoirs Yol
om £m €m tm tm
Fixed rato debt
Bank loans 0.3) 0.1) - - {0.4) [\,
Fixed rate notes - - 70.1) {88.1) (158.2)
Qbilgations under finance leasaes 0.5 {0.3) {0.3) - 1.1)
0.8) 0.4 {70.4) (88.1) (159.0
Fixed rete derivatives
Notional cross currency swaps US dolar leg - - (12.8) (45.1) (57.7)
Notional eress currancy swaps sterding leg - - 120 43.0 550
- - (0.6} {2.9) 2.7
Net fixed rata financial instruments 0.8} 0.4) (71.0) {80.2) (182.9)
Flogting rate net debt
Cash & short-term doposlts 113.8 - - - 113.9
Bank overdratts & short-term bomowings 8.3) - - - {5.3)
Bank loans 85.9) {304.4) 231.8) - {822.1)
22.7 {304.4) 231.8) - 513.5)
Hoatirg rate derivatives
Notlona! cross cummency swaps US doliar leg (53.5) {52.2) - - {105.7)
Notlonal cross currancy swaps sterting leg 40.6 41.0 - - 81.6
(12.9) {(11.2) - - 24.1)
Net floating rate financial instruments k] £315.6) (231.8) - {537.6)

Interest on fnancial ingtruments classified as fixed rate is fixad until the maturity of the instrument. Interest on financial instruments classified
as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than one year. Tha other financial instruments of the Group that are not included in the above
tables are non-interest bearing and are therefure not subject to interast rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a raasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constan, of the
Group's profit before tax and equily through the impact on floating rate borrowings and cross currency swaps in respect of each currency to
which the Group has 8 significant exposure 10 interest rate risk.

2tfect on profit
botore tex pain Effecton
incresms in [ ] wqmaty Does)
baata points £m m
2012
UK sterting + 100 2.2 -
US dollar + 100 {1.9) 24)
2011
UK stering + 100 1.5 -
US doflar + 100 1.8 (8.7)

A decreass of 100 basis points would have an equal and opposite effect.
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Financid Statemaents

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
Continued

30, Financlal assets & liabHities {continued)

Etiect of hedging & derivative financial instruments included In the income statement & equity

The Group uses lorward foseign currency contracts 1o hedge cunency risk associatad with expected future sales or purchases for which the
Group has firm commitments. Tha terms of the forward loreign currency contracts are negotiated 10 match the terms of the commitments,
During the period two subsidiaries within the Group applied cash flow hedge accounting 10 thaese transactions. As at 28 December 2012 one
of thase subsidiaries, LGE Process Ltd, was disposed of and the hedge relationship discontinued with the existing hedge reserve balance of
£0.2m charged to the income statement. Al other forward foreign currency contracts, white representing commaercial hadges. are not subject
to cash fliow hedge accounting with all fair valus movements being recognised in the incorme statement.

Tha net carrying amourt, rmaturity dates and 1he amounts recognised 101 the pertiod in profit or loss and equity for each derivative financial
instrument are sét out below.

62 woeks onded 20 December 2012

Gainfoss) Gain

Mt carrying recogrised in  recognised

amount profitor ot In squity

£m Maturity dates tm m

Forward foreign cumvency contracts designated as cash flow hedges 01 2013 (©.8) 1.0
Forward foreign cumency contracts designated as net irvastmant hedges {0.3) 2013 - 1.4
Cross cumency swaps designated as net investment hadges {05) 2013to 2018 04 49
Other torward foreign currency contracts at lair value through profil or loss (104) 201210 2017 1.7 -
(11.1) [ X 73

52 weeln endad 30 December 2011 Gain Galvioas)
Nt carying recogrited i recegrised in

snourt proft of kes oquity

om Maturty dates om tm

Forward foreign currency contrects designated es cash flow hedges 2.1 2012102013 1.5 1.2
Forward forelgn currency contracts designated as net investment hadges {0.4) 2002 - 0.1)
Cross cumency swaps designated as net invastment hedges (27.2) 2012102018 D2 1.0
Other lorward foreign currency contracts at fair vatue through profit or loss B.4) 201210 2017 43 -
(33.1) 6.0 {0.3)

The £0.4m gain (201%: £0.2m) recognised in profit or 0SS In respect of cross currency Swaps designated as nel investmen hedges reflocts
the benefit of US dollar/steding interest rate differential. The Group's forward foreign cumrency contracts subjeci to cash flow hedge
accounting which were deemeadt 1o be ineffective curing the period resutted in a net charge to the income statement of Enil (2011: Enil).
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Forelgn exchange risk

The Group considers the most significant forelgn exchangs risk relates to the Australian dollar, Canadian doliar, Euro and United States doliar.
The fcliowing table demonstratas the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in these foreign currency exchange rates with all other
variables held conslant. The sensitivity analysis shows the eflect on proft or koss in respect of financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currancy, including payaebles, receivables, borrowings and torward toreign currency contracts but excluding all financial assels and
kabilities qualified as either cash flow or net invesiment hedges. The sensitivity analysis also shows the effect on equity in respect of financial
assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currency qualifying as either cash flow or net investment hedges inclhuding forward foreign
currency contracts, borrowings and cross cumency swaps. The senshivity analysis below has bean presented to demonstrate the impact

of a 26% strangthening of the relevant functional currency apainst tha currencies shown below and therefora give an indication of the
transactional toralgn exposura that exists at a subsidiary level across the Group.

Effect on Effetcton

cumrency Oonsd (loss)
rats tm tm
2012
Australtan doflar +25% 03 -
Canadian dollar +25% - -
Euro +25% 4.9 0.7
US dollar +25% 50 183.3
201
Australian doltar +25% 0.3 -
Canadian doliar +25% 0.5 -
Euro +25% (12.6) (1.4}
US dotllar +25% 86 183.7

As noted above, the Group doss nol hedge transiational exposure arising from profit and loss items. The Group's operating profit from
continuing opérations before excaptional items and intangibles amortisation was denominated in the foflowing currencies.

2012 1
£m tm
US dollar 30285 2535
Australian dotlar 57.4 57.0
Euro 36.4 27.7
Canadlan dollar 3.9 20.5
Braziian real 7.8 1.7
Chilean peso 3.3 24.4
South African rand 8.8 8.4
United Kingdom pound {19.2) {18.8)
Other 25.7 19.3
Operating profit from continuing operations beiore exceptional ilems & intangibles amortisation 4856 4127
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
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31. Capital management

The primary objactive of tha Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains robust capital ratios In order to support its business and
maximisa shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjusimeaTts to it In ight of changas in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 1o sharsholders or
issue new shares. The Group monitors capita! using the lobowing indicators.

GQearing ratio
Gearing comprises net debt divided by totzl aquity. Net dabt comprises cash and short-term deposits and Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings (note 26}

Rostsod

o )

2012 2011

Nat debt (Em) 688.9 673.2
Total equity (Em} 13103 1,117.5
Gearing ratio (%) 53 B0

Nst debt to EBITDA cover
Nat debt to EBITDA comyprises net debt divided by eperating profil from continuing operalions before exceptional tems, depreciation,
intangibles amortisation and impalmment.

Raxtatad

nom

012 2011

Nai1 debt (Em) 683.9 873.2

Opemating profit (Cm} 468.1 407.9

Exceptional hems Included in operating profit (note 5) (Em) {20.2) (19.0)

Depreciation, intangibles amortisation 8 impalrment (£m) 88.1 61.5

EBITDA {Em) 835.0 450.4

Net debt to EBITOA cowver (ratio) 13 1.5
Interest cover

irterest cover comprises oparating profit from continuing operations before exceptional ilems and intangibles amertisation divided by net
finance costs (excluding exceptional items and other finance costs)

o1 200
Qperating profit belore exceptional iterns & intangibles amortization (Em) 4858 412.7
Net finance costs (axcluding exceptional items and other finance costs) (L) 413 151
Intarest cover {ratio} 118 27.3
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The Group's banking arrengaments also require the calcutation of net debt to EBITDA and interest cover ag part of the bi-annual financial
covenan! certifications, For the purposes of the covenants required by the Group's lenders, the net debt is to be corwvarted at the exchange
rate used in the preparation of the Group's income statement and cash fows, ie. averago rate. In addition, profits of businesses acquired

in the financial year have 10 be included as if the acquisitions occurred at the start of the financia! year. The covenant calcuiations for the

pumposes of the Group's lenders are shown below.

Net debt to EBITDA cover - lencer covenants baals

Restatad
fnow 2)
2012 201
Nst debt at average exchange rates (Em) 7198 8525
Operating prot” (Cm) an.? 436.2
Exceptional item included in operating profit (note 5) (£m) {20.2) {19.0}
Depreciation, intangibles amortisation 8 impairment” (Cm) 86.3 B67.2
EBITDA" (Em) 8378 4844
Mat deb! to EBITDA cover (ratio) 13 1.3
Interest cover - lender covenants basis
2012 21
Operating profit betore axceptional iterms & intangibles amortisation® (£m) 488.2 4917
Net Bnance costs (exciuding exceptional items anki other finance costs) (£m) .3 15.1
Interest cover {ratio) 118 20.3
* Acusted for CUTont yaer acqulsitions.
32. Exchange rates
The principal exchange rates applied in the preparation of these financial statements were as follows.
012 20m
Average rate (per £}
US dofar 1.58 1.80
Australian dollar 153 1.56
Ewro 123 1.15
Canadian dollar 1.58 1.59
Brazillan real i 268
Chilean paso 770.51 77499
South African rand 13.01 11.684
Closing rate (per £)
US dotar 1.62 1.55
Australian dofiar 1.58 151
Euro 122 1.20
Canadian dotar 1.61 1568
Brazilian resl 350 289
Chilean peso 7765.12 805.00
South African rand 13.69 12,53

23. Events after the balance shoet date

0On 31 December 2012, the Group completed the acguisition of Mathena, Inc. tor an initial cash consideration of US$240m (£148m) with

potential additional payments of US$145m payabile over two years, contingent upon meeting profit growth targets.

©On 20 February 2013, the Group announced the acquisition of R Wales ant Cheong foundry and ihe agreement to acquine a heavy bay

toundry in South Alrica for a total combined consideration of £55m.

No further disclosures have been provided under IFRS3 In respect of business combinations after the balance sheet date on tha basis that

the initial accounting is not yat complete.
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Fingncial Stataments

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of The
Weir Group PLC

We have audited the Company financial statements of The Weir Group PLC for the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012 which comprise
the Company Balance Sheel and the related notes 1 to 18. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicabla law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (UK GAAP).

This report is mede solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008,
Our audit work has been undsrtaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are requirad to state to them
In an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s membaers as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or tor the opinions we hava formed.

Raspective responsibilities of directors and suditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibilities £6t out on pages 63, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Company financial staterents and for baing satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Qur responslbility is to audit and express an
opinion on the Company financial statements in accerdance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Iraland).
Those standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors,

Scope of the pudit of the financial statementa

An audit irvolves oblaining evidence about the amounts end disclosuras in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financlal stetements ere free {rom materiad misstatament, wheather caused by (raud or error. This includes an assessmant of: whather
tha accounting policias are appropeiats 1o the Company’s circumsiances and have boen consistently appied and adaquataely disclosed.

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial staterments.

In addition, we read ell the financial and nen-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012 to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statemonts. If we bocomp aware of any apparent matarial misstatemenis or inconsistencias we
consider the implcations tor our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Company financial statements:

- give B true and talr view of the state of the Company's ettairs as at 28 December 2012;
-~ hawve baen properly prepared in accordance with UK GAAP: end

- have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Cpinlon on othor matters prescribed by the Companiss Act 2006

In our opinion;

- the part ol the Ramuneration Raport to be audited has bean property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

- the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
Company financial statemems.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to reaport in respect of the tollowing mattars where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report 10 you i, in our apinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for cur augit have not been received trom
branches not visited by us; or

- thes Company financia! statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the eccournting
records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- wa hava nat recalvad all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter

We have reported agparetely on the Group financial statements of The Weir Group PLG for the 52 wecks anded 28 December 2012,
James Douglas Riabat tor Auditor)

for and on behalf of Erngt 8 Young LLP/tatutory Auditor

Glasgow

27 February 2013
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Company Balance Sheet

at 28 December 2012
28 Decambar 30 December
"2 201

Nortas £m £m
Fixed asscls
Tangible assats 3 12 0.8
Intangible assels 4 1.7 -
Investments 5 22458 1.597.5
Total fixed assots 22485 1,588.3
Current assaots
Debtors ] 382 303
Derhative financial Instruments " 2.0 17.6
Cash at bank & in hand * 2.6 473
Tota! current assets 36508 5.2
Creditors falling dus within one year
Creditors 1 6976 568.7
Derivative financial instruments n 192 20.6
Total current liabilities 7168 588.3
Net curvent llabilities 3480 503.1
Total assets lass current liabliities 1,900.5 1.0856.2
Creditors falling due atter mora than one year
Loans ] 13187 684.4
Derivative financial instruments " 1.4 15.5
Total creditors talling dus after more than one yesr 1,320.1 700.9
Provisions ) 2.1 5.4
Net assots excluding retiroment benofita 578.3 370.9
RAstirement banefita 10 1.0 1.0
Nat asssts including retirement benefits 5773 378.8
Capital & reserves
Share capital 12 267 26,6
Shara premium 13 38.0 38.0
Treasury shares 12 {56) (5.5
Capital rademption reserve 13 0.5 0.5
Specia! resorve 13 1.9 18
Profit & loss account 12 515.9 3176
Yotal equity 5713 3788

* The cash at Gank & in hand includes C148.4m. o! short tarm deposits.

Approved by the Board of Directora on 27 February 2013

Keith Cochrane Jon Stanton
Director Di
L]
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies
The accounting policies which tollow have been epplied consistertly to all periods presented in these financial statements.

PBasls of preparation
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Unlted Kingdom accounting standards.

Foreign currency transiation

The presentation and functlonal currency of the Company is stering. Transactions denominated in foreign currencles are transiated into

the Company's functional currancy at the exchange rata ruling on the date of tha transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies am retransiated at the exchangé rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Currency transtation differences ere recognised
in the profit end loss account except whan hedgs accounting is applied.

Tangibla azsats
Tangible essats are statad at cost and the cost is depreciated ower the estimated usetul life by equal annual instalments at rates of 7.5%
for office equipment and 25% for computer equipment.

Intangible assets
Imangible assets ere stated at cost and the cost Is amortised over the astimated uasful ke by equal annual instaiments at tha rate of 25%
for purchased software.

Investments
Investmaents in subsidiaries are held at historical cost tess a provision for impairment.

Deferred tax

Defamea tax Is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originatad but not reversad at the balance sheet dale whore
transactions or events have occurred at that date that wiit result in an obligation to pay more, or a right to pay less or to receive more, tax,
with the exception that deferred tax assets are recognisad onty to the extant that the directors consider that it is more Ekaly than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the {uture reversal of the undertying timing differences can be deducted.

Deterred tax is maasured on an undiscountad basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the perioda in which timing differences
reversa, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantivaly anactad at the balance sheet date.

Post-employment benefits

Tha Company and other UK subsidiaries of the Group participate in multi-employer defined benefit pension ptans which are sel up under
separata trusts. These plans are operated on a basis that doss not enable individual companies to identify their share of the underlying
assets and liabilities and, in accordance with FRS17, the Company accounts for its contributions 1o the plans as if they are defined
contribution ptans.

In addition, the Company has unfunded unapproved pension promises. Contributions are made 10 the plans on the advica of an independent
qualified actuary, Pension pian kabilities are measured using the projected unit method and discounted st tho current rate of return on a high
quality corporate bond of equivalent 1em and currency to the lability. Any increase In the present vatue of the liabilities of the Company's
unfundad wnapproved pension promises exected 10 arise from employee service in the period is charged egainst operaling profil. The increase
in the periad in the present velus of the plan's Babilitiss, arlsing from the passage of time, is induded in other finance costs. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognisad in the statemen: of total recognised gains and losses.

Contributions to defined contripution pension plans are charged to the profit and joss accourt when they become payable,

Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are chargad to income on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.
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Share-basad paymonts
Equity ssttied share-based incontives are provided to employees under the Company's Long Term incentiva Plan {LTIP), the Executive
Bonus Scheme {EBST and as a consequence of pccasional ong-off condltional awards made to senior executives.

The fair value of the LTIP at the date of the grant Is calcutated using appropriate option pricing models and the cost is recognised on
a straight-fine basis over the vesting period. Adjustmants are made 10 reflect expected and actual torfeilures during the vesting pariod
dus to fallure to satisty service conditions or performance conditions.

The EBS is detarmined as & percentage of the annual bonus. This parcentage ts matched by the Comparny with a share award that will
vest on the third annivarsary of the grant data provided the individugl continues to hotd the orlginal bonus shares awarded and continiues
to ba empicyed by the company at the data of vesting. The EBS includes a strategic bonus shares slement for a mited number of aenjor
empioyees. The fair value of the matching and strategic elamants of the EBS is determined al the dats of grant of the bonus and the cost
Is recognised on a suaight lina basis over the vesting period. The Company recognises a compensation cost in respect of this plan that
is basad on the fair valus of the awards. The fair valus is determined at the date of grant and Is not subsequently re-measured unless the
conditions on which the award was granted are modified.

As permittad by FRS20, the Companty has applied FRS20 "Share-based Payment’ retrospectively anly 1o equity-settled awards that had
not vested as &t 1 January 2005 and were granted on or afier 7 November 2002.

Financlal assets & Uabilitles
The Campany's principal financial assais and liabifities, other than derivatives, comprise bank overdraits, short-term borrowings, loans and
fixed rate notes, cash and shart-term deposits.

A firancial assat is generally derecognised when the contract that gives riss 2o it is settled, sold, cancaled or explres,

A financial ability is derecognised whan the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an existing fnancial
Hability is replaced by another trom the same lander on substantially ditferent terms, or the terms of an existing liabilty aro substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Eabiity, such
thal the difference in (he respective carrying amounts together with any caosts or fees incurred are recognised in profit or loss.

Deorivative financial instruments

The Company usss derivative financial instrumenits, principally forward foreign currency cantracts, to reduce its exposure 1o exchange rate
mowaments. Additionally, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure (o interest rate risk. The Comparny does not hold
or issus derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised as assets and tiabililies measured at their fair values al the balance sheet date. The fair value
of forward foreign cuntency contracts is calcuated es the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on spot and forward toreign
exchange rates. The fair value of intarost rate swaps and cross cumency swaps is calculated es the present value of the estimated future
cash fiows based on Interest rate curves and spot lorelgn exchange rates. Changes in their fair values have been recognised in the profit and
loss account, excepl where hedge accounting is used, provided the conditions specified by FRS26 are met. Hedge accounting is applied in
respect of hadge relationships whare It is both permissible under FRS28 and practical to do so. When hedge accounting is used. the relevant
heiging relationships will be classified as a cash flow hedge or fair value hadge.

To tha exient that the hedgs is effective. changes in the falr value of the hadging instrument will be recognised directly in equity rather than

in the profit and loss atcount. When the hedged item is recognised in the financial statemems, the eccurmutated gains end losses recognised
in equity will be either recycied to the profit and toss account or, ¥ tha hedged item results in & non-financial asset, will ba recognised as
adjustments to its initia!l carrying amount.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hadging instrument explres or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hadge
scoounting. At that polnt in time, any cumutative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept in equity until the
forecastad transaction occurs. If @ hedgad transaction is no longer expectad to occur, the net cumulative gain o loss recognised in equity
is transterred to net profit or loss for the period.

The Company has taken advantage of ths exemption in FRS29 and has not disclosed information requirad by that standard in retation
to derivative Enancial instruments as the Group's consolidated financlal statements, in which the Company is included., provide equivalent
disciosures for the Group undar IFRS7.

Treasury shares

Tha Welir Group PLC shares heid by the Company are classified in shareholders equity as treasury shares and are recognised at cost.
Considaratian received for the sale of such shares ls also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the
original cost being taken directly to revenue reserves, No gain or loss is recognised in the performance statements on the purchasae, sale,
issue or cancellation of equity shares.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

2. Profit attributable to the Company
The profit dealt with in the accounts of the Company was £267.2m (2011: £11.6m). In accordance with the concession granted under section 408
of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company has not been separately presented in these financig! statements,

Dividanda paid & proposed
2012 201
£m £m
Declared & pald during the perlod
Equity dividends on ordinary shares
Final dividend tor 2011: 25.8p (2010: 21.0p} 54.8 44.3
Interim dividend for 2012: 8.0p (2011: 7.2p) 16.9 152
7 59.5
Proposad for approval by shareholders at the ennual general mesting
Final dividend for 2012: 30.0p (2011; 25.8p) 63.B 54,5

The proposed dividend is based on the number of shares in issue, excluding treasury shares, at the date the financial statements were
approved and authorised for issuae. The final dividend may differ due to increases or decreasas in the number of shares in lssue between
the date of approval of tha report and financial statements and the record date for the final dividend.

Directors
Details of directors remuneration, benefits and LTIP awards ara included in the Remuneration report on pages 66 to 80.

Auditors remunerution

The totel fees payabla by tha Compary to Emst & Young LLP for work performed in respect of the audit of the Company were £13,000
(2011: £13,000). Fees paid to Emst & Young LLP tor non-audit services to the Company itself are not disclosed in these accounts as the
Group's consolidated financial statements, in which the Compary is inchuded, are required to disclose such fees on a consalidated basis.

8. Tangible assets
Office &
computer
squlpmem
£m

Cost
At 30 Dacambar 2011 . 18
Addlitions 08
Reclassifications to intangible assets 0.9
Al 28 Dacamber 2012 1.8
Apgregate depreciation
At 30 December 2011 10
Charge for year 0.2
Reclassifications to intangible assets 0.6)
At 28 December 2012 06
Nat book valug &t 30 December 2011 0.8
Nat book value at 28 Dacember 2012 12
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4. Intangible assets

Purchased
BOftwEre
£m
Cost
At 30 December 2011 -
Additions 1.5
Reclassifications from tangible assets 09
At 20 December 2012 24
Aggregate amortisation
At 30 Dacember 2011 -
Charge for year 0.1
RAaclassifications from tangibla assats 0.6
At 28 December 2012 0.7
Net book value at 30 December 2011 -
Netbook value at 28 December 2012 1.7
§. Fixed asset invastments
Subsidinries
Shares Loans Total
£m [ m
Cost
At 30 December 2011 s92.7 1,010.4 1,603.1
Agiditions. 145.2 595.9 T4 A
Repaymaents - 93.0) (93.0)
At 28 Dacarmnbar 2012 7319 15133 22512
Impairment
At 30 December 2011 & &t 28 December 2012 a2 54 58
Nat book valus at 30 December 2011 §925 100650 1,597.5
Net book value at 28 December 2012 731.7 1,507.9 22456
The principal subsidiarias and joint ventures of the Company are lisied on page 151.
8. Dabtors
2012 2011
£m &m
Amounts recoverable within one year
Amounts owed by subsldlaries 328 21.3
Tax recoverable - 0.8
Deterrad tax recoverable {note 14) 23 8.7
Other debtors 26 19
Prepayments & accrued income 05 06
38.2 303
7. Creditors
012 aon
&m £m
Bank ovardrafis & short-term bomowings 114.7 197.0
Loans from subsidieries 5348 3452
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 8.8 20
Tax payable 0.5 -
Other taxes & social security costs 13 240
Other creditors 4.8 4.3
Accruals 8 deferred income 219 18.2
697.6 568.7
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Financia Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued
8.Loans

2012 m

tm m

Amounts due are repayable as follows
Lesgs than one year
- bank loans 583 85.9
- loang from subsidlaries 544.7 345.2
More than one yaar but not mare than two years
= bank loans 2927 304.4
- lnans from subsidiaries 1.9 -
More than two yaars but nol more than five years
= bank loans - 231.8
- fixed rate notes 81.7 701
More than five years
— fixed rate notes T04.7 88.1
- luans from subsidiaries 202.7 -

1,921.7 1,125.5

Less current instalments due on:

- bank ioans {50.3) (85.9)
- kans from subsidiaries {544.7) 345.2)

1,318.7 694.4

The loans from subsidiaries with a malurity greater than five years ara rapayable in 2018 and have an interest rale of 6.37%. Thesa lans are
not secured.

Details of the interest and repaymennt 1erms of the bank loans and fixed rate notes can be found in note 30 to the Group Financial Statements.

9. Provisions
Dot
8 & Ry Total
£m fm fm
At 30 December 2011 13 41 5.4
Reatlocation of opening provision [ ] 02 -
Released — unutiised - 3.3) 33)
At 28 Decamber 2012 1.1 10 21
Subzidiarias

As at 28 December 2032, a provision of £1.1m {2011: £1.3m) has been made against the deficiency of undsrtying net assets in cerlain
subsidiaries. It is axpected that this amount walt be sattied within one year of the balance sheet date,

Discontinued operations warranty & indemnity

Provisions in respect of discontinued operations include provision for warranty and indemnity exposures under assel and share agresments,
The provision as at 28 December 2012 is bassd on management’s current best estimate of the remaining Babitities. The actual outcome may
ditfar, and in some casaes, this will ba dependent on the outcome of legal proceedings. i is expectad that the majority of these costs will be
incurred within two years of the balance shest date.
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10. Retirament benefits
The net pension liability in respect ol the Company unapproved plan is reflected on the Company’s balance sheel. The liabilities of the
Company unapproved plan are shown below.

i

2012 2011
£m pm
Present value of plan liabfities {1.4) {1.4)
Related deferred tax asset (note 14) 0.4 0.4
Net pension liality {1.09) 0.0
2 2011
om om
Recognised in the profit & loss account
interast cost oh plan Labilities 0.1 0.1
Other finance costs 0.1 0.1
The major assumptlons used by the actuary for the Company unapproved plan wera as follows.
2012 201
5% k]
Rate of increase In pensions in payment 26 29
Discount rute 43 48
Inflation assumption 29 31
The mortality assumptions used wers as follows.
2012 201
Years Years
Post-rgtirement mortality
Current pensioners at 65 - male 28 20.8
Current pensioners at 65 - famale 243 23.7
Future pensioners at 65 — male 236 23.0
Future pansioners et 65 - female 26.3 258

The post-ratirament mortality assumptions aflow for expected increases in longevity. The ‘current’ disclosuras above relats to assumptions
based on longevity (in years) following retiremant at the balance sheet date, with ‘future’ baing that relating to an employee retiring In 2032

{in 20 years time),

Changes in the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligations are analysed es follows.

2012 Xm
£m on
Opening defined benefit obligations 14 13
Interes! cost 0.1 01
Bengfits paid ©.1) {0.1)
Actuarial losses - 0.1
Closing defined banefit obligations 14 1.4
Changas in the falr value of plan assets are analysed as follows.
w2 20n
tm tm
Opening plan assets - -
Employer contributions 0.1 0.1
Benefits paid ©.1) 0.1
Closing plan assets - -
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Finan¢lal Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

10, Retirement benefits (continued)
History of experience gains A lossas

012 2014 2010 2009 2008

tm tm fm om £m
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation {1.4) {1.4) .3) (1.1} {1.1)
Deficit In the plans (1.4) {1.4) 03 (1.9 .1
Expenence adjustmants arising on ptan liabilities - - - - -
Changes in assumptions undertying plan babilities - 0.1} 0.2 - 0.1)

In addition, the Company also participates in the defined benefit plan arreangements within The Welr Group Pension & Retirement Savings
Schame and The Weir Group 1972 Pensions and Life Assurance Plan for Senior Executives. These defined benefits plans are funded
multl-employer plans which are operated by The Weir Group PLC and which are rur on a basis that does not enable individual companies
to identify theit share of the underlying assets and liabiities. In accordance with FRS17, the Company accounts for Its contributions to these
plans as if they were defined contribution plans. While assets and liabllities in respect of these plans era not reflected on the Company’s
belance sheet, detalls of these are sat out below.

Pension contributions are determinad with the advice of independent qualified actuaries on the basis of annual valuations using the projected
unit method. The Comparny made special contributions of £7.5m in 2012 (2011: £6.6m) in addition to the employers’ regular contributions.
The special contributions for 2013 are expecied to be £12.1m, reducing to £9.6m in 2014, The total contributions to the defined bensfit plans
in 2013 are expected to be £14,4m (2012; £6.6m).

Plan assets are stated at their market values at the respective balance sheet dates and overall expectad rates of return are established by
applying published brokers forecasts 1o sach category of plan assets and aliowing for plan expenses. The actual ratum on plan asssts in the
period was a gain of £63.6m (2011: £31.7m).

Tha assets and iabiities of the ptans and the long-term expected rates of return are as foBows.

2012 2012 2011 2011
. % £m [ £m
Equitias a.8 1569 7.6 1502
Bonds 34 1213 3.4 914
Insurance policy 43 348.2 4.8 3353
Other 0.5 7.8 26 14.8
Falr value of plan assats 6340 591.7
Present valug of plan linbiities (708.5) {660.9)
Net deficit in the plans {14.5) {69.2)
w012 201t
£m om
Recognised in the profit & loss account
Current service cost 290 1.3
Past service gain - {19.0)
Expected return on plan t: __[30.5) 32.2)
Interést cost on plan fablities KR 330
Other inance costs 0.6 0.8
Taken to the statement of total recognised gains & lossas
Actual return on plan assats 63.8 s
Lass: axpected return on plan assets (30.5) 82.2)
331 {0.5)
Other actuarial bosses “45.3) 41.6)
Actuarial losses recognised in the statemaent of total recognised gains & losses (12.2) {42.1)

The past sarvice gain of £19.0m in 2011 was as a resutt of a decision by the Trustees of The Weir Group Pension and Retirement Saving Schema
that, following the Government's recant change in legistation, certain elements of pension woutd increase in ling with Consumer Prices Index
{CP1) rather than tha Retail Prices tndex (RPY). This dacision was announced 1o the members of the schema In July 2011. The past service

galn was recognised last yaar as an exceptional item in the Consolidated income Statement.
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The major assumptions used by the actuary ware as foflows.
2012 A (1]
% %
Rate of increasa in salares 29 3.1
Rate of increase in pensions in payment "
Pre B April 2008 service 29 29
Post 8 April 2008 service 21 18
Discount rate 43 48
Inflation assumption ) 29 3.1
The mortality assumptions used were as follows.
2012 20m
Years Yesry
Post-retirement mortatity
Current pensionars at 85 - mate ans 208
Current pensioners at 85 - fomale 43 23.7
Future pensioners at B5 - male 238 230
Future pensioners at 65 - female 26.3 258

The post-retirament mortality assumptions allow for expected increases In longevity. The "current” disclasures above relate to assumptions
bagad on longevity {in years) following retirement at the balance sheet date, with ‘future’ being that relating to an employse retiring in 2032

(n 20 years time).
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are analysed as follows.
o *tn
Opening defined benelt obligalions 6609 632.6
Cument senvice cost 20 1.3
Past servica gain - {19.0)
nterast cost FIR 33.0
Benefits paid 30.9) (29.4}
Contributions by employees 0.1 0.8
Actuarial losses 45.3 1.6
Closing defingd benefit obligations 708.5 660.8
Changes in the falr value of plan assets are anatysed as follows.
2012 2
£ tm
Opening plan asssts 597 580.6
Expectad return on plan assets 32.2
Employer contributions 85 B8O
Contributions by employees 0.1 0.8
Benefits paid {30.9) (20.4)
Actuarial gains (losses) 3.1 (0.5)
Closing plan assets 634.0 501.7
History of experience gains & losses
012 2011 2010 2000 2008
e tm tm tm tm
Falr value of plan asseats 6340 591.7 580.6 5398 487.7
Present value of defined beneft obligations {roa.5) (660.9) (632.6) {599.2) (500.2)
Deficit in the plans {74.5) 69.2) (52.0) (59.4) (12.5)
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities ' 14.5 0.9 (2.8} {10.6) {10.0)
Changes in assumptions undertying plan fabilities (59.89) {42.5) {22.3) (111.6) 0.7
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets 331 {0.5) 24.0 64.4 {118.8)

The cumulative amount of actuarial }osses recognised in the statament of recognised gains and losses is £285.1m (2011: £252.9m).
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

11, Derivative financlal instruments

2012 201
tm Em

Current assets

Derivative inancial instruments due within one year

Forward foreign currancy contracts a1 16.5

Derivative financial instruments due after more than one year

Forward foreign cummancy contrects 09 1.1
8.0 176

Creditors falling due within one year

Cross cumency swaps 0.1 129

Forward foreign currency contracts 10,1 16.7

19.2 296

Creditors falling due after more than ane year

Cross cumency swaps 0.9 14.3

Forward foreign currency contracts 0.5 12
14 15.5

The figures in the above table are inclusive of derivative Bnancial instrurments where the counterparty is a subsidiary of The Weir Group PLC.

12. Shore capital
2012 2011
Em £m
Allotted, called up & fully paid
Ordinary shares of i2.5p each 26.7 26.6
xm2 201
Naumber Humber
Mikon Mallon
Shares allotied
Issued during the period In respect of LTIP awards 06 0.2
Treasury shares
Al tha beginning of the pernod 1.7 21
Issued during the peried in respect of LTIP awards (0.8) (0.4)
At the end of the period 1.1 1.7
Equity settied share-based payments
LTIP awards oulstanding at the end of the period 1.7 2.3

Further detalls of the equity settied share-bassd payments and the associated cost for the period can be found in note 28 to the Group

financial statements,
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13. Resarves SR
Capetal m
Bhars  Tressury redemgpth Special  Profit & loas
pramiun shares reserve renerve WOCOWTt
tTn m Em tm o
At 31 December 2010 38.0 {6.8) 05 .8 356.7 \Y}
Profit for the period - - - - 11.8
Actuarial lsses on defined benefil plans - - - - {0.1)
Dividends - - - - (59.5)
Cost of share-based payment inclusive of tax cradis = - - - 101
Exercisa of LTIP awards - 1.2 - - 12
At 30 December 20M 38.0 {5.6) 0.5 1.8 317.6
Profit for the period - - - - 267.2
Dividends - - - - (7.7
Cost of share-basaed payment inclusive of 1ax credits - - - - 4.9
Purchase of shares - {2.0) - - -
Exarcise of LTIP awards - 2.0 - - {2.1)
At 28 December 2012 38.0 (5.8) 05 18 5159

The profit and loss account above is stated after deducting an accumulated koss in respect of retirement bensfits of £1.0m (2011: £1.0m).

14, Balanco sheot — deferred tax

Daterred hix
[ ]
At 30 Dacember 2011 8.1
Includad in profit for the period (0.8)
Credit for the period included in aquity 2.8)
Al 28 December 2012 27
2012 201
£m m
inciuded in deblors (nots 6) 23 57
Included in retirement beredits {note 10) 0.4 04
27 8.1
Other timing differences 24 5.7
Retirement banefits 0.4 0.4
2.7 6.1
15. Operating loase commiments
2012 201t
£000 £000
As at 28 December 2012, annual commitiments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office
squipment amounted to 9 g
of which payable in respect of operating leases ending in the second to fifth years inclusive -] ]
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

16. Contingent liabllities & legal claims

Quarantoes

The Campany has given guarantess In relation to the bank and other borrowings of cartain subsidlary companies. Tha net funds of the
companies party 1o thesa facilities as at 28 December 2012 ameunted to £228.8m (2011: £125.2m).

Legal claims
The company and cerlain subsidiaries are, irom time to time. partias to legal procesdings and claims which arise in the nommal course
of business.

On 6 February 2013, an Opinion and Order was filed with the United States District Court, Southemn District of New York dismissing the
claim against the Company (being one of many companies targeted) retating to a civil action lor damages arising from the UN Oil tor Food
programme which was raised in the US. Subsequently the lraql Government filed notice of appeal and at the time of writing there has been
no ruling by the Court on this appeal, Wa will continue to defend this action vigorously.

To the extent not already provided for, the girecters do not anticipata that the outcome of these proceedings and claims, either individually
or in eggregate. will have a matarial adverse effect upon the Company's financial position.

17. Related party disclosures

The Company has takan advantage of the exemption In FRSS8 from disclosing transactions with related perties that ane wholly owned
by & subsidiary of The Welr Group PLC. The following table pravidas the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with
non-wholly owned retated parties for the relevam financial year and outstanding balances at the period end.

Management Amounts

charge due by

Raisted party £m &mn
Weir Minerals (Indla) Private Ltd 2012 0.4 0.1
2011 0.4 0.4

18. Financial risk managemen objectives and policies
A description of the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies is provided in note 30 to the Group financial statements.

These financial risk management objectives and policies also apply to the Company.
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Principal Companies of the Group

The principal subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Group are as follows. 9
Country of % equity
registration or iertarast w
Name incorporation 2012
Subsidiarias
American Hydro Comaration USA 100 W)
ErwiroTech Pumpsystems Inc usa 100
Gema Industrigummi AB Sweden 100
Linatex Rubber Products Sdn Bhd Mataysia 100
Mesa Manufacturing Inc USA 100
Muttifio Pumps Pty Lid Australia 100
Seaboard Holdings Inc USA 100
Shengli Qilfiskd Weir Highland Pumps Company Ltd China 60
Specialised Pstroleum Manufacturing Ltd Scottand 100
SPM Flow Control Inc usa 100
SPM How Gontrot Ltd Canadia 100
Vuico SA Chile 89
Weir Canada Inc Canada 100
Wair do Brast Ltda Brazil 100
Welr Engineering Services Lid Scotland 100
Wen Floway Inc USA 100
Weir Gabbioneta Sr Haty 100
Weir Haziston Inc usA 100
Weir india Private Ltd india 100
Walr Intermnational Co. Ltd South Koraa 80
Weir Minarals Africa [Pty) Ltd South Alrica 100
Weir Minerals Austraila Lid Australia 100
Weir Minarals Europe Lid England & Wales 100
Weir Minerals Natherlands BV Netherlands 100
Novatech Holdings Inc USA 100
Woelr Power & Industrial France SAS France 100
Weir Shrry Group Inc Usa 100
Welr Solutions FZE Dubal 100
Welr SOS Lwd The Bahamas 100
Weir Valves & Controls UK Ltd” England & Wales 100
Wair Vaives & Controls USA Inc USA 100
Weir Vatves & Controls {Suzhou} Co. Ltd China 100
Yrfinili Engineering Services SL Spain 77
Joint ventures
Weir Arabian Metats Company Saudi Arabia 49
Wesco LLGC UAE 49

* Company whoss shares. ere owned directly by The Wolr Group PLC.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by providing Informaticn only in retation
10 subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial pastiion, (n the opinion of the Directors, principally stfected the financial statements.

Acomplete fist of subsidiary and associated undertakings is attached to the annual return of the The Weir Group PLC filod et Companies House.

Group products
in this Raport, the fallowing trademarks are registered in ona or more countries:

WARmNbllmdenwkmwﬁlmmummUaLmandWeirGmdecanIPud;CAVExIsatrndemaﬁthehMinaralammmﬁaLtd:VULCOlaa
wrademnark of Vilco SA; LINATEX is a trademark of Linatex Ltd; SPM is a trademark of 5.P.M. Row Control, inc; SEABOARD is a rademark of Seaboord
Intermational, Inc; NOVATECH I3 a rademark of Novatech, LLC; MESA Is a trademark of Masa Manmwdacturing, Inc GABBIONETA is a tredemark of Wair
Gabbioneta Sri; WEIR OIL & GAS SERVICES is » rademark of Welr Engineering Services Lid; ALLEN STEAM TURBINES s a trademark of Walr Engineering
Services Lict AMERICAN HYDRO is a trademark of American Hydro Corporation; ATWOCD 8 MORRILL and TRICENTRIC are trademarks of Walr Vaives

& Contrets USA, ing; BDK is & trademark of Weir Incia Pvt Ltd; BATLEY VALVE, BLAKEBOROUGH, HOPKINSONS and MAC VALVE ere trademarks ol Wer
Valves & Controts UK Ltd; SARASIN-RSBD and SEBIM ere tradamarks of Weir Power & Industriel France SAS; WEMCC {3 a trademerk of FLSmidth A/S
wadmdnrimbycomnhufommgpmorThaWaerron.mPLC:WElHlsalradmd(olWatEngkmﬁngSaMcmud
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Financial Statamants

Shareholder information

Sharsholder enquiries

The Company's registrars are:
Computarshare Investor Services plc

The Pavlions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol, BS99 627

Wabslte: www.investorcentra.co.uk/contactus
Telephone: 0870 707 1402

Shareholder enquiries relating to shareholding, dividend payments, change of address, loss of share certificate, etc. should be sddressed
to Computershare,

Investor Centre

Irvestor Centre is a free, secute share management website provided by Computershare. This service allows you to view your share portioho
and sea the latest markst price of your shares, chack your dividend payment and tax information, change your address, update payment
Instructions and receive your shareholder communications online. To take advantage of this service, piease log in Bt www.investorcentra,co.uk
and enter your Sharaholder Reference Number {'SRN") and Company Code WEP. This information can be fourd on your share certificate

or dividend tax voucher.

Dividends

2012 final dividend

The directers have recommended & final dividend of 30.0p per share, for tha 52 weeks ended 28 December 2012. Payment of this dividend
is subject 10 approval 81 the 2013 Annual General Meeting. Key dates relating to this dividend are given beloa:

Ex dividend date 1 May 2013
Recom date 3 May 2013
Final day for recsipt of DRIP elections 9 May 2013
Annual Genera! Meeting 1 May 2013
Payment date 31 May 2013
Dividend payments

You can choose to receive your dividend in a number of ways. Dividends will automatically be paid to you by cheque and sant 10 your
registergd address unless you have chosen one of the options below:

- Direct payment to your bank
Cash dividends can be paid directly to a UK bank or builiding society account. This is more converisnt and helps reduce the risk of cheques
becoming kst or delayed In the post. To switch to this method of payment you can apply online at www.Investorcentre.co.uk or download
a dividend mandate form trom the FAQ section of the Company’'s website (welr.co.uk), under ‘Shareholder Information’ in the “Investor’
section. Attematively, you can cormact Computershara, who will also be able to assist with any guestions you may have. A Consolidated
Tax Voucher 'CTV") detailing all payments made throughout the tax yaar will then be sent you once a year either electronicaly ot 1o your
registered address. In 2013, the CTV will be dispatched with the Novembar 2013 dividend payment and contain the tax and paymant
Information for dividends paid during the 2013/2014 tax year.

- Dividend Relinvestment Plan {'DRIP'}
The Comparnty offers shareholders the opportunity to join the Computershare regulated DRIP to use their dividend to purchase further
Weir Group shares. Instaad of receiving cash, shareholders receive as many whole shares as can be bought with their dividend, taking
into account related purchase costs. Any residusl cash will be carriad forward and added to thelr next dividend. It you wish to participate
in the DRIP, you can apply online at www.Invastorcantre.co.uk or alternatively, you can complste a DRIP mandate form obtainable from
Computershare,

- Gilobal Payment Service
If you live oversaas, Computershare offers a Global Payment Service which is available in certain countries. This may make it possible
to receive dividends direct into your bank account in your local cumency. Please note that a payment charge would be daducted from
each individual payment before conversion Into your local currency. This service can be set up at www.investorcentre.co.uk or by
contacting Computershara.

Capftal gaina tax

For tha purpose of capital gains tax, the market value of an ordinary share of The Weir Group PLC as at 31 March 1982 was 29.75p. This
markst value has baen adjusted 1o take account of the sub-division of the share capital wheroby each ordinary share of 26p was sub-divided
into two ordinary shares of 12.5p each on 28 June 1993. Rights issues of ondinary shares took place in Apsil 1887 at 157p per share on the
basis of one new ordinary share for every seven ordinary shases held, in July 1990 at 250p per share on the basis of one new ordinary share
for every five ordinary shares hek! and in September 1994 at 252p per share on the basis of one new ordinary share for every four ordinary
shares heid.
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Communications

Annual snd inferim Reports

The Weir Group publishes an Annual and Interim Report every year. The Annual Report is sent to all sharehotders who have elected to
receive a hard copy through the post as a printed documen unless the shareholder has chosen to receive e-communications (see below),
The interim Raport s published on the Company’s website and a printed copy is available from the Company Secrstary on requast.

E-communicaticns

The Company offers shareholders the opportunity to access shareholkler documents, such as Annual Reports and Notices of tha AGM,
via e-communications rather than recaiving printed documaents in the post. To sign up for e-communications, pleasa registar at
www.investorcentre.co.uk. In order to do this, you will need your SRN which can be found on your share certificate or on your dividend
tax voucher. Once registered. you will need to change your mailing preferance to e-communications and provide your emall address.
We will then be abla to notity you by email as soon as sharsholdar documents are available on the Company's website.

Company webalts

Shereholders are encouraged to visit the Company's corporate weabsite fweir.co.uk), which contains a wealth of information about the Welr
Group. The webskite inchudes information about the markets In which we operate, our strategy and hussiness pertormance, recent news from
the Group and product information. The investor section is a keéy source of information for shareholders, containing detas on the shame price,
our financial rosults, sharehotder meetings and dividonds, as well as a ‘Frequently asked questions’ section. Currert and past Annual and
interim Reports are a!so available 10 view and download,

Share dealing services

Gomputarshare provida Welr Group shareholders with a quick and easy way to buy or sell Weir Group shares on the London Stock Exchangs.
Intemet share desling commission is 1%, subject to & minimum charge of £30. In addition, stamp duty, currently 0.5%, is payabls on purchasss.
There I3 no nesd to open & trading account in omder to deal, Real time dealing is avaliable during market hours (08:00 to 16:30 Monday to
Friday axcluding bank holidays). in addition, there is a8 cormenient facility to ptace your order outside of markat hours. Up 1o 90 day limit orders
are avallable for sales. To access the service, log on to www-uk.computershare.com/irvestor/ShareDealing.asp. Shareholdars shauld have
their SRN available. Tha SRN appears on share certificates and tax dividend vouchers. Ploase note that, at present, Lhis service is only
available to shareholders in certain European jurisdictions. Please refer to the Computershare wabsits for an up-to-date Iist of thesa countries.

Telephone share dealing commission is 1%, plus £35. In addition, stamp duty. currently 0.5%, is payable on purchases. You can contact
Computershare on 0870 703 0084. Shareholders should have thelr SRN ready when making the call. The SRN appears on share cerlificates
and tax dividend vouchers. Detalled terms and conditions are avallable on request by tetephoning 0870 707 1402. Pteass note this servica |8,
at present, only availabls to shareholdars resident in tha UK and lreland.

These services are offarsd on an exscution only basis and subject to the applicable terms and conditions. Computershara Investor Services
pic is authorised end regulated by the Financlal Services Authority.

This s not & recommendation to buy, sel or hold shares in The Welr Group PLC. Shareholders who are unsure of what action to take shouid
obtain independent financial advice. Share values may go down as well as up which may result in a shareholder receiving less than he/she
originally Investad.

Voting
Information on how you can vota elactronically can be obiained through our registrars by visiting www.investarcentre.co.uk/eproxy.

Shareholder alarty

Unsolicited investment advice and fraud

Marny companies have become awarne tha thelr sharsholders have recelved unscliciied phone calls or correspandence conceming
investment matters, Share scamas ere often run from “boller rooms’ where fraudsters cold-call investors offering them worthless, overpricad
or @ven non-existent sharas, '

These callers can be very persistent and extremely persuasive and their activities have resutted in consliderable losses for soma investors.
Whiist usually by telephone, the high-pressure sales tactics can aiso come by email, post, word of mouth or at a seminar. Sharehotders
are advised to be vary wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy shares at a discount, sell your shares al a premium or offers of free
compary reports.

If you receive any unsolichted investment advice:

- Make sure you get the correct name of the parson and organisation and take a note of any cthar details they provide, such as a telephone
number or address.

- Check that the caler is property authorised by the Finance Services Authority (FSA') by visiting www.isa.gov.uk/isaregister.

- Report any approach from such organisations to the FSA yusing the share fraud reporting form at www.fsa.gov.uk/scams, where you can
also find out about the latest investment scams. You can also call the Consumer Helpline on 0845 606 1234.

- It calls persist, hang up.

Please note that if you deal with an unauthorised firm, you will not be eligible to recsive payment under the Rnancial Services
Compensation Scheme.
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Glossary

AGM Annua! Genaral Meeting

Appleby EBT Employes benefit trust {Appleby Trust {Jersey) Uid)

Board The Board of Directors of The Weir Group PLC

bps Basla poims

capex Capital expenditure

Company The Weir Group PLC

Director A Director of The Weir Group PLC

EBIT Ermings betore interest and tax

EBITA Earnings bedore interast, tax and amortisation

EBITDA Earnings before interest, tax, daepreciaticn and amortisation

£HS Environmant, heahh and satety

efastomer An alastic polymar used in pump linings

emerging markats Asia-Pacific, South Ametrica, Africa and the Middle East

EPCs Engineering, Procurement and Construction Companies

EPS Eamings per share

Excellenca Committees Walr Group Management Commitises ensuring best practice

{ree cash flow Nat cash flow generated from continuing operations excluding the cash impact in refation
to acquisitions. disposals and net proceads from/repayments of borrowings

Group The Company togethar with its subsidiaries

HR Humean resources

IAS Intamaticnal Accounting Standards

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Independent auditors Emsi & Young LLP

Input Orders received {rom customers

IS0 Intemational Organisation for Standardisation

Klainwort EBT Employee banefit trust (Kleinwort Benson (Guemsey) Trustees Lid)

ke for like ©n a congistent basis, exclugding the impact of acguisitions

low carbon ingustries

Nuciear, wind, hydro, solar. biomass and geothermal incustries

LTIP

Long Term Incentive Flan

mill circuit The various stagas of extracting and processing ore

Qit 8 Gas Forum An initiziive 10 develop products and services for the North American upstream cll and gas markets
by leveraging the expertise of all three Wair divisions

operating margin Operating profit inchuding our share of resutis of joint ventures divided by fevenue

ordinary shares The ordinary shares in the capitat of tha Company of 12.5p each

PBTA Profil before tax and amortisation

Registrar Computarshare lmvestor Services plc

RAD Research and development

ROCE (ke tor tke)

Continuing operations EBIT (excluding Seaboard and Novatech EBIT and exceptional items)
divided by average net assets excluding net debt, pension deficit {net of deferred tax asset}
and Seaboard and Novatech net assets

AP UK Retail Prices Indax

subsidiary An entity that is controlled, aither directly or indirectly, by the Company

TIR Total Incident Rate (medical treatment of any kind required by employeas divided
by 200,000 hours worked)

TSR Total Shareholder Return comprising dividends paid on ordinary shares and the increase or detrease
in the market prica of ordinary sharas

UK GAAP United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

whn Wast Taxas Intermediate
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Financial Calendar

Ex-dividend date for final dividend
1 May 2013

Record date for final dividend
3 May 2013
Shareholders on the register at this date will receive the dividend.

Annual General Mesting
1 May 2013

Final dividend paid .
31 May 2013

Cautionary Statement

This Annual Report contains forward-looking siatements with
raspect to the financial condition, operations and performance

of the Group. By their nature, these statements Involve uncertainty
since future events and circumstances can cause resuits and
developmants to difter materially from those anticipated. The
forward-looking statements refiect knowledge and information
available at the date of preparation of this Annual Report and the
Company undertakes no obligation to update thesa lorward-fooking
statements. Nothing in this Annual Report should be construed

as a profit forecast.

Registered Office and Company Numbaer
Clydesdale Bank Exchange

20 Waterloo Street

Glasgow G2 6DB

Scotland

Registered in Scotland

Company Number 2034

It is important that our Annuat Report Is produced in an
anvironmentaly responsible mannar, including the sourcing of
materials. The Annual Report Is printed in the UK by CP1 Colour,
a Carbon Neutral printing company. using wegetable-based Inks.
The material is Symbal Freelife Satin goover) and Arcoprint EW ety
The printer and paper manufacturing mill both have ISO 14001
accreditation for environmental management.




The Weir Group PLC
Ciydesdale Bank Exchange
20 Weterioo Street
Glasgow G2 608, Scotland

Telephona: +44 {0)141 637 7111
Facsimile: +44 (01141 221 5788

Emall: investor-refations@weir.co.uk
‘Website: weir.co.uk




